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ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF
4S

CITY OF KENNEDALE TEXAS COMBINATION TAX AND REVENUE
CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION SERIES 1998

IN THE AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF5150000

THE STATE OF TEXAS

COUNTY OF TARRANT

CITY OF KENNEDALE

WHEREAS the City Council deems it advisable to issue Certificates of Obligation in the
amount of5150000 for paying all or aportion of the Citys contractual obligations for certain

municipal improvements as follows for the construction of a new municipal complex and the

acquisition ofland therefor improvements to streets in the City and improvements to the Cityswater

system including a new water well new ground and elevated water storage facilities and water lines
and for the payment oflegal fiscal and engineering fees in connection with these projects and

WHEREAS the Certificates of Obligation hereinafter authorized and designated are to be
issued and delivered for cash pursuant to Subchapter C ofChapter 271 Local Government Code and

Articles 11111118VATCSas amended and

WHEREAS the City Council has heretofore passed aresolution authorizing and directing the

City Secretary to give notice of intention to issue Certificates of Obligation and

WHEREAS said notice has been duly published in a newspaper ofgeneral circulation in said

City said newspaper being a newspaper as defined in 2051044 Texas Government Code and

WHEREAS the City received no petition from the qualified electors ofthe City protesting the

issuance of such Certificates of Obligation and

WHEREAS it is considered to be to the best interest of the City that said interest bearing
Certificates of Obligation be issued

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KENNEDALE

Section 1 RECITALS AMOUNT AND PURPOSE OF THE CERTIFICATES The recitals
set forth in the preamble hereofare incorporated herein and shall have the same force and effect as

if set forth in this Section The certificates of the City of Kennedale Texas the Issuer are hereby
authorized to be issued and delivered in the aggregate principal amount of5150000 for paying all
or a portion ofthe Cityscontractual obligations for certain municipal improvements as follows for
the construction of anew municipal complex and the acquisition of land therefor improvements to

streets in the City and improvements to the Citys water system including a new water well new

ground and elevated water storage facilities and water lines and for the payment oflegal fiscal and

engineering fees in connection with these projects collectively the Project



Section 3 INTEREST The Certificates scheduled to mature during the years respectively set

forth below shall bear interest from the date of their initial delivery to their respective dates of

maturity or redemption prior to maturity at the following rates per annum

Maturity 2002 5875 Maturity 2012 4375

Maturity 2003 5875 Maturity 2013 4400

Maturity 2004 5875 Maturity 2014 4450

Maturity 2005 5875 Maturity 2015 4500

Maturity 2006 4375 Maturity 2016 4550

Maturity 2007 4375 Maturity 2017 4550

Maturity 2008 4375 Maturity 2019 4600

Maturity 2009 4375 Maturity 2019 4700

Maturity 2010 4375 Maturity 2020 4750

Maturity 2011 4375 Maturity 2021 4800

Said interest shall be payable in the manner provided and on the dates stated in the FORM OF

CERTIFICATE set forth in this Ordinance

Section 4 CHARACTERISTICS OF THE CERTIFICATES a Registration Transfer

Conversion and Exchange Authentication The Issuer shall keep or cause to be kept at the principal
corporate trust office ofUS Trust Company of Texas National Association Dallas Texas the

Paying AgentRegistrar books or records for the registration of the transfer conversion and

exchange of the Certificates the Registration Books and the Issuer hereby appoints the Paying
AgentRegistrar as its registrar and transfer agent to keep such books or records and make such

registrations oftransfers conversions and exchanges under such reasonable regulations as the Issuer
and Paying AgentRegistrar may prescribe and the Paying AgentRegistrar shall make such

registrations transfers conversions and exchanges as herein provided The Paying AgentRegistrar
shall obtain and record in the Registration Books the address of the registered owner of each
Certificate to which payments with respect to the Certificates shall be mailed as herein provided but

it shall be the duty of each registered owner to notify the Paying AgentlRegistrar in writing ofthe

address to which payments shall be mailed and such interest payments shall not be mailed unless such
notice has been given The Issuer shall have the right to inspect the Registration Books during regular
business hours ofthe Paying AgentRegistrar but otherwise the Paying AgentRegistrar shall keep
the Registration Books confidential and unless otherwise required by law shall not permit their

inspection by any other entity The Issuer shall pay the Paying AgentRegistrarsstandard or

customary fees and charges for making suchregistration transfer conversion exchange and delivery
of a substitute Certificate or Certificates Registration of assignments transfers conversions and

exchanges of Certificates shall be made in the manner provided and with the effect stated in the
FORM OF CERTIFICATE set forth in this Ordinance Each substitute Certificate shall bear a letter
andor number to distinguish it from each other Certificate



Except as provided in Section4c ofthis Ordinance an authorized representative ofthe Paying
AgentRegistrar shall before the delivery of any such Certificate date and manually sign said
Certificate and no such Certificate shall be deemed to be issued or outstandingunless such Certificate
is so executed The PayingAgentRegistrarprnmptly shall cancel all paid Certificates and Certificates

surrendered for conversion and exchange No additional ordinances orders or resolutions need be

passed or adopted by the governing body of the Issuer or any other body or person so as to

accomplish the foregoing conversion and exchange of any Certificate or portion thereof and the

Paying AgentRegistrar shall provide for the printing execution and delivery of the substitute
Certificates in the mannerprescribed herein and said Certificates shall be printed or typed on paper
of customary weight and strength Pursuant to Vernons Ann Tex Civ St Art 717k6 and

particularly Section 6 thereof the duty of conversion and exchange of Certificates as aforesaid is

hereby imposed upon the Paying AgentRegistrar and upon the execution of said Certificate the
converted and exchanged Certificate shall be valid incontestable and enforceable in the same manner

and with the same effect as the Certificates which initially were issued and delivered pursuant to this

Ordinance approved by the Attorney General and registered by the Comptroller of Public Accounts

b Payment of Certificates and Interest The Issuer hereby further appoints the Paying
AgentRegistrar to act as the paying agent for paying the principal ofand interest on the Certificates
all as provided in this Ordinance The Paying AgentlRegistrar shall keep proper records of all

payments made by the Issuer and the Paying AgentRegistrar with respect to the Certificates and of

all conversions and exchanges ofCertificates and all replacements ofCertificates as provided in this

Ordinance However in the event ofa nonpayment ofinterest on a scheduled payment date and for

thirty 30 days thereafter a new record date for suchinterest payment a Special Record Date will
be established by the Paying AgentRegistrar if and when funds for the payment ofsuch interest have

been received from the Issuer Notice of the past due interest shall be sent at least five 5 business

days prior to the Special Record Date by United States mail firstclass postage prepaid to the
address ofeach registered owner appearing on the Registration Books at the close ofbusiness on the
last business day next preceding the date ofmailing of such notice

c In General The Certificates i shall be issued in fully registered form without interest

coupons with the principal of and interest on such Certificates to be payable only to the registered
owners thereof ii may be redeemed prior to their scheduled maturities notice ofwhich shall be

given to the Paying AgentRegistrarbythe Issuer at least 50 days prior to any such redemption date
iiimay be converted and exchanged for other Certificates iv may be transferred and assigned v
shall have the characteristics vi shall be signed sealed executed and authenticated vii the

principal ofand interest on the Certificates shall be payable and viii shall be administered and the

PayingAgentRegistrarand the Issuer shall have certain duties and responsibilitiestyith respect to the

Certificates all as provided and in the manner and to the effect as required or indicated in this

Section 4 and in the FORM OF CERTIFICATE set forth in this Ordinance The Certificate initially
issued and delivered pursuant to this Ordinance is not required to be and shall not be authenticated

by the Paying AgentRegistrar but on each substitute Certificate issued in conversion of and

exchange for any Certificate or Certificates issued under this Ordinance the Paying AgentRegistrar
shall execute the PAYING AGENTREGISTRARSAUTHENTICATION CERTIFICATE in the

form set forth in the FORM OF CERTIFICATE
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dBookEntryOnly System The Certificates issued in exchange for the Certificate initially
issued to the initial purchaser specified herein shall be initially issued in the form ofa separate single
fully registered Certificate for each ofthe maturities thereof Upon initial issuance the ownership of
each such Certificate shall be registered in the name of Cede Co as nominee of The Depository
Trust Company New York New York DTC and except as provided in subsection f hereof
all ofthe outstanding Certificates shall be registered in the name ofCede Co as nominee of DTC

With respect to Certificates registered in the name of Cede Co as nominee ofDTC the

Issuer and the Paying AgentRegistrar shall have no responsibility or obligation to any securities

brokers and dealers banks trust companies clearing corporations and certain other organizations
on whose behalfDTC was created DTC Participant to hold securities to facilitate the clearance

and settlement ofsecurities transactions among DTC Participants or toany person on behalfofwhom
such a DTC Participant holds an interest in the Certificates Without limiting the immediately
preceding sentence the Issuer and the Paying AgentRegistrar shall have no responsibility or

obligation with respect to ithe accuracy ofthe records ofDTC Cede Co or any DTC Participant
with respect to any ownership interest in the Certificates iithe delivery to any DTC Participant or

any other person other than a Registered Owner ofCertificates as shown on the RegistrationBooks
ofany notice with respect to the Certificates or iii the payment to any DTC Participant or any other

person other than a Registered Owner ofCertificates as shown in the Registration Books of any
amount with respect to principal of or interest on the Certificates Notwithstanding any other

provision ofthis Ordinance to the contrary the Issuer and the PayingAgentRegistrarshall beentitled
to treat and consider the person in whose name each Certificate is registered in the Registration
Books as the absolute owner ofsuch Certificate for the purpose of paymentofprincipal and interest

with respect to such Certificate for the purpose of registering transfers with respect to such

Certificate and for all other purposes whatsoever The Paying AgentRegistrar shall pay all principal
of and interest on the Certificates only to or upon the order of the Registered Owners as shown in

the Registration Books as provided in this Ordinance or their respective attorneys duly authorized

in writing and all such payments shall be valid and effective to fully satisfy and discharge the Issuers

obligations with respect to payment ofprincipal ofand interest on the Certificates to the extent ofthe

sum or sums so paid No person other than aRegistered Owner as shown in the Registration Books
shall receive a Certificate evidencing the obligation ofthe Issuer to make payments ofprincipal and

interest pursuant to this Ordinance Upon delivery by DTC to the Paying AgentRegistrar ofwritten

notice to the effect that DTC has determined to substitute anew nominee in place ofCede Co
and subject to the provisions in this Ordinance with respect to interest checks being mailed to the

Registered Owner at the close of business on the Record date the words Cede Co in this

Ordinance shall refer to such new nominee of DTC

e Successor Securities Depository Transfers OutsideBookEntry Only System In the event

that the Issuer determines that DTC is incapable of discharging its responsibilities described herein

and in the representations letter ofthe Issuer to DTC or that it is in the best interest ofthe beneficial

owners of the Certificates that they be able to obtain certificated Certificates the Issuer shall i
appoint a successor securities depository qualified to act as such under Section 17A ofthe Securities
and Exchange Act of 1934 as amended notify DTC and DTC Participants of the appointment of
such successor securities depository and transfer one or more separate Certificates to such successor
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securities depository or ii notify DTC and DTC Participants of the availability through DTC of

Certificates and transfer one or more separate certificated Certificates to DTC Participants having
Certificates credited to their DTC accounts In such event the Certificates shall no longer be

restricted to being registered in the Registration Books in the name of Cede Co as nominee of

DTC but may be registered in the name ofthe successor securities depository or its nominee or in

whatever name or names Registered Owners transferring or exchanging Certificates shall designate
in accordance with the provisions ofthis Ordinance

f Payments to Cede Co Notwithstanding any other provision of this Ordinance to the

contrary so long as any Certificate is registered in the name of Cede Co as nominee ofDTC all

payments with respect to principal of and interest on such Certificate and all notices with respect to

such Certificate shall be made and given respectively in the manner provided in the representations
letter ofthe Issuer to DTC

g Cancellation of Initial Certificate On the closing date one initial Certificate representing
the entire principal amount ofthe Certificates payable in stated installments to the TEXAS WATER

DEVELOPMENT BOARD or its designee executed by manual or facsimile signature ofthe Mayor
and City Secretary of the Issuer approved by the Attorney General ofTexas and registered and

manually signed by the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas will be delivered to

such purchaser or its designee Upon payment for the initial Certificate the Paying AgentRegistrar
shall cancel the initial Certificate and deliver to the Depository Trust Company on behalf of such

purchaser one registered definitive Certificate for each year of maturity of the Certificates in the

aggregate principal amount of all ofthe Certificates for such maturity

Section 5 FORM OF CERTIFICATES The form of the Certificates including the form of

Paying AgentRegistrarsAuthentication Certificate the form of Assignment and the form of

Registration Certificate of the Comptroller of Public Accounts ofthe State of Texas to be attached

to the Certificates initially issued and delivered pursuant to this Ordinance shall be respectively
substantially as follows with such appropriate variations omissions or insertions as are permitted or

required by this Ordinance
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a Form ofCertificate

NO R

Interest Rate

REGISTERED OWNER

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

STATE OF TEXAS

CITY OF KENNEDALE TEXAS

COMBINATION TAX AND REVENUE

CERTIFICATE OF OBLIGATION

SERIES 1998

Dated Date

November 1 1998

Maturity Date

February 15

PRINCIPAL

AMOUNT

CUSIP No

DOLLARS

ON THE MATURITYDATE specified above the City ofKennedale in Tarrant County Texas

the Issuer being a political subdivision and municipal corporation ofthe State of Texas hereby
promises to payto the Registered Owner specified above or registered assigns hereinafter called the

Registered Owner on the Maturity Date specified above the Principal Amount specified above

The Issuer promises to pay interest on the unpaid principal amount hereof calculated on the basis

ofa 360dayyear oftwelve30daymonths from the Dated Date specified above at the Interest Rate

per annum specified above Interest is payable on February 15 2000 and semiannually on each

August 15 and February 15 thereafter to the Maturity Date specified above or the date ofredemption
prior to maturity except if this Certificate is required to be authenticated and the date of its

authentication is later than the first Record Date hereinafter defined such Principal Amount shall

bear interest from the interest payment date next preceding the date of authentication unless such

date ofauthentication is after any Record Date but on or before the next following interest payment
date in which case such principal amount shall bear interest from such next following interest

payment date provided however that if on the date of authentication hereof the interest on the

Certificate or Certificates if any for which this Certificate is being exchanged is due but has not been

paid then this Certificate shall bear interest from the date to which such interest has been paid in full

THE PRINCIPAL OF AND INTEREST ON this Certificate are payable in lawful money ofthe

United States of America without exchange or collection charges The principal ofthis Certificate

shall be paid to the registered owner hereof upon presentation and surrender of this Certificate at

maturity or upon the date fixed for its redemption prior to maturity at the principal corporate trust

office ofUS Trust Company of Texas National Association Dallas Texas which is the Paying
AgentRegistrar for this Certificate The payment ofinterest on this Certificate shall be made by the

Paying AgentRegistrar to the registered owner hereof on each interest payment date by check or

draft dated as of such interest payment date drawn by the Paying AgentRegistrar on and payable
solely from funds ofthe Issuer required by the ordinance authorizing the issuance ofthis Certificate



the Certificate Ordinance to be on deposit with the Paying AgentRegistrar for such purpose as

hereinafter provided and such check or draft shall be sent by the Paying AgentRegistrar by United

States mail firstclass postage prepaid on each such interest payment date to the registered owner

hereof at its address as it appeared on the fifteenth day ofthe month preceding each such date the
Record Date on the Registration Books kept by the Paying AgentRegistrar as hereinafter

described In addition interest may be paid by such other method acceptable to the Paying
AgeniRegistrar requested by and at the risk and expense of the registered owner In the event of

anonpayment ofinterest on a scheduled payment date and for 30 days thereafter a new record date

for such interest payment a Special Record Date will be established by the Paying
AgentRegistrar if and when funds for the payment of such interest have been received from the

Issuer Notice ofthe Special Record Date and ofthe scheduled payment date ofthe past due interest

which shall be I S days after the Special Record Date shall be sent at least five business days prior
to the Special Record Date by United States mail firstclass postage prepaid to the address of each

owner of a Certificate appearing on the Registration Books at the close of business on the last

business day next preceding the date of mailing of such notice

ANY ACCRUED INTEREST due at maturity or upon the redemption ofthis Certificate prior
tomaturity as provided herein shall be paid to the registered owner upon presentation and surrender

of this Certificate for redemption and payment at the principal corporate trust office ofthe Paying
AgentRegistrar The Issuer covenants with the registered owner ofthis Certificate that on or before

each principal payment date interest payment date and accrued interest payment date for this

Certificate it will make available to the PayingAgentRegistrar from the Interest and Sinking Fund

created by the Certificate Ordinance the amounts required to provide for the payment in immediately
available funds ofall principal ofand interest on the Certificates when due

IF THE DATE for the payment of the principal of or interest on this Certificate shall be a

Saturday Sunday a legal holiday or a day on which banking institutions in the City where the

principal corporate trust office ofthe Paying AgentRegistrar is located are authorized by law or

executive order to close then the date for such payment shall be the next succeeding day which is not

such a Saturday Sunday legal holiday or day on which banking institutions are authorized to close
and payment on such date shall have the same force and effect as if made on the original date payment
was due

THIS CERTIFICATE is one of a series of Certificates dated as of November 1 1998
authorized in accordance with the Constitution and laws ofthe State ofTexas in the principal amount

of5150000 for paying all or a portion of the Citys contractual obligations for certain municipal
improvements as follows for the construction of a new municipal complex and the acquisition of

land therefor improvements to streets in the City and improvements to the Citys water system
including a new water well new ground and elevated water storage facilities and water lines and for

the payment of legal fiscal and engineering fees in connection with these projects

THE CERTIFICATES OF THIS SERIES maturing on February 15 2021 and on February 15
2024 are subject to mandatory redemption prior to maturity in part at random by lot or other

customary method selected by the Paying AgentRegistrar at par plus accrued interest to the
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redemption date in amounts sufficient to redeem said Certificates on February 15 in the years and

principal amounts shown on the following schedule Such Certificates shall be redeemed with funds
from the Interest and Sinking Fund created by the Certificate Ordinance and shall be redeemed by
the Paying AgentRegistrar in part prior to maturity with funds from the Interest and Sinking Fund
for the principal amount thereofand accrued interest to the date ofredemption and without premium
on each of the aforesaid dates in the principal amounts respectively as set forth in the following
schedule

Certificates Maturing February 15 2021

Year Principal Amount

2020 335000
20211 3 50 000

Certificates Maturing February 15 2024

Year Principal Amount

2022 205000
2023 215000
2024

225000

lFinal maturity of Certificate

The principal amount ofthe Certificates required to be redeemed pursuant to the operation ofsuch

mandatory sinking fund shall be reduced by the principal amount of any Certificates which at least

50 days prior to the mandatory sinking fund redemption date shall have been 1 purchased by the
Issuer and delivered to the Paying AgentRegistrar for redemption or2 redeemed pursuant to the

optional redemption provision described below and delivered to the Paying AgentRegistrar for
cancellation

ON February 15 2006 or on any date thereafter the Certificates maturing on or after

February 15 2007 may be redeemed prior to their scheduled maturities at the option ofthe Issuer
with funds derived from any available and lawful source as a whole or in part and if in part the

particular Certificates or portions thereof to be redeemed shall be selected and designated by the

Issuer provided that a portion of a Certificate may be redeemed only in an integral multiple of

5000at a redemption price equal to the principal amount to be redeemed plus accrued interest to

the date fixed for redemption

AT LEAST 30 days prior to the date fixed for any redemption of Certificates or portions
thereof prior to maturity a written notice of such redemption shall be sent by the Paying
AgentRegistrarby United States mail firstclass postage prepaid at least 30 days prior to the date
fixed for any such redemption to the registered owner of each Certificate to be redeemed at its
address as it appeared on the 45th day prior to such redemption date and to major securities

depositories national bond rating agencies and bond information services provided however that
the failure of the registered owner to receive such notice or any defect therein or in the sending or

mailing thereof shall not affect the validity or effectiveness ofthe proceedings for the redemption of

any Certificate By the date fixed for any such redemption due provision shall be made with the

Paying AgentRegistrar for the payment of the required redemption price for the Certificates or

portions thereofwhich are to be so redeemed If suchwritten notice ofredemption is sent and if due
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provision for such payment is made all as provided above the Certificates or portions thereof which

are to be so redeemed thereby automatically shall be treated as redeemed prior to their scheduled
maturities and they shall not bear interest after the date fixed for redemption and they shall not be

regarded as being outstanding except for the right ofthe registered owner to receive the redemption
price from the Paying AgentRegistrarnutofthe funds provided for suchpayment Ifa portion ofany
Certificate shall be redeemed a substitute Certificate or Certificates having the same maturity date
bearing interest at the same rate in any denomination or denominations in any integral multiple of

5000 at the written request ofthe registered owner and in aggregate principal amount equal to the
unredeemed portion thereof will be issued to the registered owner upon the surrender thereof for

cancellation at the expense of the Issuer all as provided in the Certificate Ordinance

ALL CERTIFICATES OF THIS SERIES are issuable solely as fully registered certificates
without interest coupons in the denomination of any integral multiple of5000 This Certificate

may at the request of the registered owner or the assignee or assignees hereof be as signed
transferred converted into and exchanged for a like aggregate principal amount offully registered
certificates without interest coupons payable to the appropriate registered owner assignee or

assignees as the case maybe having the same denomination ordenominations in any integral multiple
of5000 as requested in writing by the appropriate registered owner assignee or assignees as the

case may be upon surrender ofthis Certificate to the Paying AgentRegistrar for cancellation all in

accordance with the form and procedures set forth above and in the Certificate Ordinance Among
other requirements for such assignment and transfer this Certificate must be presented and

surrendered to the PayingAgentRegistrar together with proper instruments ofassignment in form

and with guarantee of signatures satisfactory to the Paying AgentRegistrar evidencing assignment
ofthis Certificate or any portion or portions hereof in any integral multiple of5000 to the assignee
or assignees in whose name or names this Certificate or any suchportion or portions hereof is or are

to be registered The form of Assignment printed or endorsed on this Certificate maybe executed by
the registered owner to evidence the assignment hereof but such method is not exclusive and other

instruments ofassignment satisfactory to the Paying AgentlRegistrar may be used to evidence the

assignment ofthis Certificate or any portion or portions hereof from time to time by the registered
owner The Paying AgentRegistrarsreasonable standard or customary fees and charges for

assigning transferring converting and exchanging any Certificate or portion thereofwill be paid by
the Issuer In any circumstance any taxes or governmental charges required to be paid with respect
thereto shall be paid by the one requesting such assignment transfer conversion or exchange as a

condition precedent to the exercise of such privilege The Paying AgentRegistrar shall not be

required to make any such transfer conversion or exchange i during the period commencing with
the close of business on any Record Date and ending with the opening of business on the next

following principal or interest payment date or ii with respect to any Certificate or any portion
thereof called for redemption prior to maturity within 45 days prior to its redemption date

IN THE EVENT any Paying AgentRegistrar for the Certificates is changed by the Issuer
resigns or otherwise ceases to act as such the Issuer has covenanted in the Certificate Ordinancethat
it promptly will appoint a competent and legally qualified substitute therefor and cause written notice
thereofto be mailed to the registered owners of the Certificates
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IT IS HEREBY certified recited and covenanted that this Certificate has been duly and

validly authorized issued and delivered that all acts conditions and things required or proper to be

performed exist and be done precedent to or in the authorization issuance and delivery of this

Certificate have been performed existed and been done in accordance with law that this Certificate
is a general obligation of said Issuer issued on the full faith and credit thereof and that annual ad

valorem taxes sufficient toprovide for the payment ofthe interest on and principal ofthis Certificate
as such interest comes due and such principal matures have been levied and ordered to be levied

against all taxable property in said Issuer and have been pledged for such payment within the limit

prescribed by law and that this Certificate is additionally secured by and payable from an amount not

to exceed1000 over the life ofthis series ofCertificates ofthe revenues ofthe IssuersWaterworks

and Sewer System remaining after payment ofall maintenance and operation expenses thereof and

all debt service reserve and other requirements in connection with all ofthe Issuers revenue bonds

now or hereafter outstanding which are payable from all or part ofthe Net Revenues ofthe Issuers

Waterworks and Sewer System constituting the Surplus Revenues thereof all as provided in the

Certificate Ordinance

BY BECOMING the registered owner of this Certificate the registered owner thereby
acknowledges all ofthe terms and provisions ofthe Certificate Ordinance agrees to be bound by such

terms and provisions acknowledges that the Certificate Ordinance is duly recorded and available for

inspection in the official minutes and records ofthe governing body ofthe Issuer and agrees that the
terms and provisions ofthis Certificate and the Certificate Ordinance constitute a contract between

each registered owner hereofand the Issuer

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the Issuer has caused this Certificate tobe signed with the manual

or facsimle signature of the Mayor of the Issuer and countersigned with the manual or facsimile

signature ofthe City Secretary of said Issuer and has caused the official seal ofthe Issuer to be duly
impressed or placed in facsimile on this Certificate

sinaturel signature
City Secretary Mayor

SEAL

b Form ofPaying AgentlRegistrarsAuthentication Certificate

PAYING AGENTREGISTRARSAUTHENTICATION CERTIFICATE

To be executed if this Certificate is not accompanied by an

executed Registration Certificate of the Comptroller
of Public Accounts ofthe State of Texas

It is hereby certified that this Certificate has been issued under the provisions ofthe Certificate

Ordinance described in the text of this Certificate and that this Certificate has been issued in
conversion or replacementof or in exchange for a certificate certificates or a portion ofa certificate



orcertificates ofa series whichoriginally wasapproved by the Attorney General ofthe State ofTexas
and registered by the Comptroller ofPublic Accounts ofthe State ofTexas

Dated US Trust Company ofTexas National Association

Dallas Texas

Paying AgentRegistrar

By
Authorized Representative

c Form of Assignment

ASSIGNMENT

For value received the undersigned hereby sells assigns and transfers unto

Please insert Social Security or Taxpayer Identification Number of Transferee

Please print or typewrite name and address including zip code of Transferee

the within Certificate and all rights thereunder and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints

attorney to register the transfer ofthe within

Certificate on the books kept for registration thereof with full power of substitution in the premises

Dated

Signature Guaranteed

NOTICE Signatures must be guaranteed by
an eligible guarantor institution participating
in a securities transfer association recognized
signature guarantee program

NOTICE The signature above must

correspond with the name of the registered
owner as it appears upon the front of this

Certificate in every particular without

alteration or enlargement or any change
whatsoever

d Form of Registration Certificate ofthe Comptroller ofPublic Accounts
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COMPTROLLERSREGISTRATION CERTIFICATE REGISTER NO

I hereby certify that this Certificate has been examined certified as to validity and approved
by the Attorney General of the State of Texas and that this Certificate has been registered by the

Comptroller ofPublic Accounts ofthe State of Texas

Witness my signature and seal this

Comptroller ofPublic Accounts of the State of Texas

COMPTROLLERSSEAL

e Initial Certificate Insertions

iThe initial Certificate shall be in the form set forth is paragraph a ofthis Section except
that

A immediately under the name ofthe Certificate the headings Interest Rate and Maturity
Date shall both be completed with the words As shown below and CUSIP No
shall be deleted

B the first paragraph shall be deleted and the following will be inserted

THE CITY OF KENNEDALE IN TARRANT COUNTY TEXAS the Issuer being apolitical
subdivision and municipal corporation ofthe State ofTexas hereby promises to pay to the Registered
Owner specified above or registered assigns hereinafter called the Registered Owner on each

February 15 in the years in the principal installments and bearing interest at the per annum rates set

forth in the following schedule

Years Principal Installments Interest Rates

Information from Sections 2 and 3 to be inserted

The Issuer promises to pay interest on the unpaid principal amount hereof calculated on the basis

ofa 360dayyear oftwelve30day months from the Dated Date as set forth above at the respective
Interest Rate per annum specified above Interest is payable on February 15 2000 and semiannually
on each August 15 and February 15 thereafter to the date of payment ofthe principal installment

specified above or the date ofredemption prior to maturity except that ifthis Certificate is required
to be authenticated and the date of its authentication is later than the first Record Date hereinafter
defined such Principal Amount shall bear interest from the interest payment date next preceding the
date of authentication unless such date ofauthentication is after any Record Date but on or before

the next following interest payment date in which case such principal amount shall bear interest from
such next following interest payment date provided however that if on the date of authentication
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hereof the interest on the Certificate or Certificates if any for which this Certificate is being
exchanged is due but has not been paid then this Certificate shall bear interest from the date to which
such interest has been paid in full

C The Initial Certificate shall be numberedTl

Section 6 INTEREST AND SINKING FUND A special Interest and Sinking Fund is

hereby created and shall be established and maintained by the Issuer at an official depository bank of

said Issuer Said Interest and Sinking Fund shall be kept separate and apart from all other funds and
accounts of said Issuer and shall be used only for paying the interest on and principal of said
Certificates All ad valorem taxes levied and collected for and on account ofsaid Certificates shall be

deposited as collected to the credit ofsaid Interest and Sinking Fund During each year while any
of said Certificates are outstanding and unpaid the governing body ofsaid Issuer shall compute and

ascertain a rate and amount ofad valorem tax which will be sufficient to raise and produce the money

required to pay the interest on said Certificates as such interest comes due and to provide and

maintain a sinking fund adequate to pay the principal of said Certificates as such principal matures

but never less than 2ofthe original amount ofsaid Certificates as a sinking fund each year and
said tax shall be based on the latest approved tax rolls of said Issuer with full allowances being made

for tax delinquencies and the cost of tax collection Said rate and amount of ad valorem tax is hereby
levied and is hereby ordered to be levied against all taxable property in said Issuer for each year
while any of said Certificates are outstanding and unpaid and said tax shall be assessed and collected

each such yearand deposited to the credit ofthe aforesaidInterest and Sinking Fund Said ad valorem

taxes sufficient toprovide for the payment ofthe interest on and principal ofsaid Certificates as such
interest comes due and such principal matures are hereby pledged for such payment within the limit

prescribed by law

Section 7 SURPLUS REVENUES The Certificates are additionally secured by and shall be

payable from and secured by an amount not to exceed1000 over the life ofthe Certificates ofthe

revenues ofthe IssuersWaterworks and Sewer System the System remaining after payment of

all maintenance and operation expenses thereof and all debt service reserve and other requirements
in connection with all ofthe Issuers revenue obligations now or hereafter outstanding which are

payable from all or part of the Net Revenues of the System constituting Surplus Revenues The
Issuer shall deposit such Surplus Revenues to the credit of the Interest and Sinking Fund created

pursuant to Section 6 to the extent necessary to pay the principal and interest on the Certificates

Notwithstanding the requirements of Section 6 if Surplus Revenues are actually on deposit in the

Interest and Sinking Fund in advance of the time when ad valorem taxes are scheduled to be levied
for any year then the amount of taxes which otherwise would have been required to be levied

pursuant to Section 6 may be reduced to the extent and by the amount ofthe Surplus Revenues then
on deposit in the Interest and Sinking Fund

Section 8 DEFEASANCE OF CERTIFICATES a Any Certificate and the interest thereon
shall be deemed to be paid retired and no longer outstanding a Defeased Certificate within the

meaning ofthis Ordinance except to the extent provided in subsection d of this Section 8 when

payment ofthe principal of such Certificate plus interest thereon to the due date whether such due
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date be by reason ofmaturity or otherwise either i shall have been made or caused to be made in
accordance with the terms thereof or ii shall have been provided for on or before such due date by
irrevocably depositing with or making available to the Paying AgentRegistrar for such payment
1 lawful money ofthe United States ofAmerica sufficient to make such payment or2 Government

Obligations which mature as to principal and interest in suchamounts and at suchtimes as will insure
the availability without reinvestment of sufficient money to provide for such payment and when

proper arrangements have been made by the Issuer with the Paying AgentRegistrar for the payment
of its services until all Defeased Certificates shall have become due and payable At such time as a

Certificate shall be deemed to be a Defeased Certificate hereunder as aforesaid such Certificate and
the interest thereon shall no longer be secured by payable from or entitled to the benefits of the ad
valorem taxes or revenues herein levied and pledged as provided in this Ordinance and suchprincipal
and interest shall be payable solely from such money or Government Obligations

b Any moneys so deposited with the Paying AgentRegistrar may at the written direction
of the Issuer also be invested in Government Obligations maturing in the amounts and times as

hereinbefore set forth and all income from such Government Obligations received by the Paying
AgentRegistrar which is not required for the payment ofthe Certificates and interest thereon with

respect to which such money has been so deposited shall be turned over to the Issuer or deposited
as directed in writing by the Issuer

c The term Government Obligations as used in this Section shall mean direct obligations
ofthe United States ofAmerica including obligations the principal of and interest on which are

unconditionally guaranteed by the United States ofAmerica which may be United States Treasury
obligations such as its State and Local Government Series which may be in bookentry form

d Until all Defeased Certificates shall have become due and payable the Paying
AgentRegistrar shall perform the services ofPaying AgentRegistrar for such Defeased Certificates

the same as if they had not been defeased and the Issuer shall make proper arrangements to provide
and pay for such services as required by this Ordinance

Section 9 DAMAGED MUTILATED LOST STOLEN OR DESTROYED

CERTIFICATES a Replacement Certificates In the event any outstanding Certificate is damaged
mutilated lost stolen or destroyed the Paying AgentRegistrar shall cause to be printed executed
and delivered a new certificate of the same principal amount maturity and interest rate as the

damaged mutilated lost stolen or destroyed Certificate in replacement for such Certificate in the
manner hereinafter provided

b Application for Replacement Certificates Application for replacement of damaged
mutilated lost stolen or destroyed Certificates shall be made by the registered owner thereof to the

Paying AgentRegistrar In every case of loss theft or destruction of a Certificate the registered
owner applying for a replacement certificate shall furnish to the Issuer and to the Paying
AgentRegistrarsuch security or indemnity as may be required by them to save each ofthem harmless
from any loss or damage with respect thereto Also in every case of loss theft or destruction of a

Certificate the registered owner shall furnish to the Issuer and to the Paying AgentRegistrar
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evidence to their satisfaction ofthe loss theft or destruction of such Certificate as the case maybe
In every case of damage or mutilation of a Certificate the registered owner shall surrender to the

Paying AgentRegistrar for cancellation the Certificate so damaged or mutilated

c No Default Occurred Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Section in the
event any such Certificate shall have matured and no default has occurred which is then continuing
in the payment of the principal of redemption premium if any or interest on the Certificate the
Issuer may authorize the payment of the same without surrender thereof except in the case of a

damaged or mutilated Certificate instead of issuing a replacement Certificate provided security or

indemnity is furnished as above provided in this Section

d Charge for Issuing Replacement Certificates Prior to the issuance ofany replacement
certificate the Paying AgentRegistrar shall charge the registered owner of such Certificate with all

legal printing and other expenses in connection therewith Every replacement certificate issued

pursuant to the provisions of this Section by virtue of the fact that any Certificate is lost stolen or

destroyed shall constitute a contractual obligation of the Issuer whether or not the lost stolen or

destroyed Certificate shall be found at any time or be enforceable by anyone and shall be entitled to

all the benefits of this Ordinance equally and proportionately with any and all other Certificates duly
issued under this Ordinance

eAuthority for Issuing Replacement Certificates In accordance with Section 6 ofVernons
Ann Tex Civ St Art 717k6 this Section 9 of this Ordinance shall constitute authority for the

issuance ofany such replacement certificate without necessity offurther action bythe governing body
of the Issuer or any other body or person and the duty of the replacement of such certificates is

hereby authorized and imposed upon the Paying AgentRegistrar and the Paying AgentRegistrar
shall authenticate and deliver such Certificates in the form and manner and with the effect as

provided in Section 4a of this Ordinance for Certificates issued in conversion and exchange for

other Certificates

Section 10 CUSTODY APPROVAL AND REGISTRATION OF CERTIFICATES
ENGAGEMENTOF BOND COUNSEL ANDBOND COUNSELSOPINION CUSIP NUMBERS
AND CONTINGENT INSURANCE PROVISION IF OBTAINED a The Mayor ofthe Issuer
is hereby authorized to have control ofthe Certificates initially issued and delivered hereunder and

all necessary records and proceedings pertaining to the Certificates pending their delivery and their

investigation examination and approval by the Attorney General of the State of Texas and their

registration by the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas Upon registration of the
Certificates said Comptroller of Public Accounts or a deputy designated in writing to act for said

Comptroller shall manually sign the Comptrollers Registration Certificate attached to such

Certificates and the seal of said Comptroller shall be impressed or placed in facsimile on such
Certificate The approving legal opinion of the Issuers Bond Counsel and the assigned CUSIP
numbers may at the option of the Issuer be printed on the Certificates issued and delivered under
this Ordinance but neither shall have any legal effect and shall be solely for the convenience and
information ofthe registered owners ofthe Certificates In addition if bondinsurance is obtained the
Certificates may bear an appropriate legend as provided by the insurer
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b The obligation ofthe initial purchaser to accept delivery ofthe Certificates is subject to

the initial purchaser being furnished with the final approving opinion ofMcCall Parkhurst Horton

LLPbond counsel to the Issuer which opinion shall be dated as of and delivered on the date of

initial delivery of the Certificates to the initial purchaser The engagement of such firm as bond

counsel to the Issuer in connection with issuance sale and delivery of the Certificates is hereby
approved and confirmed The execution and delivery ofan engagement letter between the Issuer and

such firm with respect to such services as bond counsel in the form presented to the City Council

at the meeting at which this Ordinance was adopted is hereby approved and the Mayor is hereby
authorized to execute such engagement letter

Section 11 COVENANTS REGARDING TAX EXEMPTION OF INTEREST ON THE
CERTIFICATES The Issuer covenants to take any action necessary to assure or refrain from any
action which would adversely affect the treatment of the Certificates as Obligation described in
section 103 ofthe Code the interest on which is not includable in the gross income of the holder

for purposes offederal income taxation In furtherance thereof the Issuer covenants as follows

a to take any action to assure that no more than 10 percent of the proceeds of
the Certificates less amounts deposited to a reserve fund if any are used for any private
business use as defined in section 141b6 ofthe Code or if more than 10 percent of the

proceeds or the projects financed therewith are so used such amounts whether or not

received by the Issuer with respect to such private business use do not under the terms of

this Ordinance or any underlying arrangement directly or indirectly secure or provide for the

payment ofmore than 10 percent of the debt service on the Certificates in contravention of
section 141b2ofthe Code

b to take any action to assure that in the event that the private business use
described in subsection a hereofexceeds 5 percent ofthe proceeds ofthe Certificates or the

projects financed therewith less amounts deposited into a reserve fund if any then the

amount in excess of 5 percent is used fora private business use which is related and not

disproportionate within the meaning ofsection 141b3ofthe Code to the governmental
use

c to take any action to assure that no amount which is greater than the lesser of

5000000 or 5 percent ofthe proceeds ofthe Certificates less amounts deposited into a

reserve fund if any is directly or indirectly used to finance loans to persons other than state

or local governmental units in contravention of section 141c ofthe Code

d to refrain from taking any action which would otherwise result in the
Certificates being treated as private activity bonds within the meaning ofsection 141b of

the Code

e to refrain from taking any action that would result in the Certificates being
federally guaranteed within the meaning of section 149b ofthe Code
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fj to refrain from using any portion ofthe proceeds of the Certificates directly
or indirectly toacquire or to replace funds which were used directly or indirectly toacquire
investment property as defined in section 148b2 ofthe Code which produces a materially
higher yield over the term ofthe Certificates other than investment property acquired with

1 proceeds ofthe Certificates invested for a reasonable temporary period
of 3 years or less or in the case ofa refunding bond for a period of 30 days or less
until such proceeds are needed for the purpose for which the bonds are issued

2 amounts invested in a bona fide debt service fund within the meaning
of section11481b of the Treasury Regulations and

3 amounts deposited in any reasonably required reserve or replacement
fund to the extent such amounts do not exceed 10 percent of the proceeds of the

Certificates

g to otherwise restrict the use of the proceeds ofthe Certificates or amounts

treated as proceeds ofthe Certificates as may be necessary so that the Certificates do not

otherwise contravene the requirements ofsection 148 ofthe Code relating to arbitrage and
to the extent applicable section 149dof the Code relating to advance refundings and

h to pay to the United States ofAmerica at least once during each fiveyear
period beginning on the date ofdelivery ofthe Certificates an amount that is at least equal
to 90 percent ofthe Excess Earnings within the meaning ofsection 148f ofthe Code and
to pay to the United States ofAmerica not later than 60 days after the Certificates have been

paid in full 100 percent ofthe amount then required tobe paid as a result ofExcess Earnings
under section 148f ofthe Code

In order to facilitate compliance with the above covenant h a Rebate Fund is hereby
established by the Issuer for the sole benefit ofthe United States ofAmerica and such Fund shall not

be subject to the claim of any other person including without limitation the certificateholders The
Rebate Fund is established for the additional purpose of compliance with section 148 ofthe Code

For purposes of the foregoing a and b the Issuer understands that the term proceeds
includes disposition proceeds as defined in the Treasury Regulations and in the case ofrefunding
bonds transferred proceeds if any and proceeds ofthe refunded bonds expended prior to the date
of issuance ofthe Certificates It is the understanding of the Issuer that the covenants contained
herein are intended to assure compliance with the Code and any regulations or rulings promulgated
by the US Department ofthe Treasury pursuant thereto In the event that regulations or rulings are

hereafter promulgated which modify or expand provisions of the Code as applicable to the

Certificates the Issuer will not be required to comply with any covenant contained herein to the
extent that such failure to comply in the opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel will not

adversely affect the exemption from federal income taxation of interest on the Certificates under
section 103 ofthe Code In the event that regulations or rulings are hereafter promulgated which
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impose additional requirements which are applicable to the Certificates the Issuer agrees to comply
with the additional requirements to the extent necessary in the opinion ofnationally recognized bond

counsel to preserve the exemption from federal income taxation ofinterest on the Certificates under

section 103 ofthe Code In furtherance ofsuch intention the Issuer hereby authorizes and directs the
Mayor to execute any documents certificates or reports required by the Code and to make such

elections on behalfof the Issuer which may be permitted by the Code as are consistent with the

purpose for the issuance ofthe Certificates

Section 12 ALLOCATION OF CERTIFICATE PROCEEDS The Issuer covenants to

account for the expenditure ofsale proceeds and investment earnings to be used for the construction
and acquisition ofthe Project on its books and records by allocating proceeds to expenditures within
18 months ofthe later ofthe date that 1 the expenditure is made or 2 the Project is completed
The foregoing notwithstanding the Issuer shall not expend proceeds of the sale ofthe Certificates
or investment earnings thereon more than 60 days after the earlier of1 the fifth anniversary ofthe

delivery of the Certificates or2 the date the Certificates are retired unless the Issuer obtains an

opinion ofnationallyrecognized bond counsel that such expenditure will not adversely affect the

status for federal income tax purposes of the Certificates or the interest thereon For purposes
hereof the Issuer shall not be obligated to comply with this covenant ifit obtains an opinion that such
failure to comply will not adversely affect the excludability for federal income tax purposes from

gross income ofthe interest

Section 13 DISPOSITION OF PROJECT The Issuer covenants that the Project will not be
sold or otherwise disposed in a transaction resulting in the receipt by the Issuer of cash or other

compensation unless the Issuer obtains an opinion ofnationallyrecognized bond counsel that such

sale or other disposition will not adversely affect the taxexempt status of the Certificates For

purposes ofthe foregoing the portion ofthe property comprising personal property and disposed in
the ordinary course shall not be treated as a transaction resulting in the receipt of cash or other

compensation For purposes hereof the Issuer shall not be obligated to comply with this covenant

if it obtains a legal opinion that such failure to comply will not adversely affect the excludability for
federal income tax proposes from gross income ofthe interest

Section 14 SALE OF CERTIFICATES APPROVAL OF OFFICIAL STATEMENT The
Certificates are hereby initially sold and shall be delivered to First Southwest Company for cash for
the par value thereof and accrued interest thereon to date ofdelivery The Certificates shall initially
be registered in the name ofFirst Southwest Company It is hereby officially found determined and
declared that said purchaser is the highest bidder for the Certificates as a result of invitations for

competitive bids It is further officially found determined and declared that the Certificates have
been sold at public sale to the bidder offering the lowest interest cost after receiving sealed bids

pursuant to an Official Notice of Sale and Bidding Instructions and Official Statement prepared and
distributed in connection with the sale ofthe Certificates Said Official Notice of Sale and Bidding
Instructions and Official Statement and any addenda supplement or amendment thereto have been
and are hereby approved by the governing body ofthe Issuer and their use in the offer and sale of
the Certificates is hereby approved It is further officially found determined and declared that the
statements and representations contained in said Official Notice ofSale and Bidding Instructions and
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Official Statement are true and correct in all material respects to the best knowledge and belief of

the governing body of the Issuer

Section 19 INVESTMENTS INTEREST EARNINGS ON CERTIFICATE PROCEEDS

Money in any Fund established by this Ordinance may at the option ofthe City Council ofthe Issuer
be invested in eligible investment securities as described in the Texas Public Funds Investment Act
Chapter 2256 Texas Government Code as amended provided that all such investments shall be

made in such manner that the money required to be expended from any Fund will be available at the

proper time or times Interest earnings derived from the investment ofproceeds from the sale ofthe

Certificates shall be used along with other certificate proceeds for construction and acquisition ofthe

Project provided that after completion ofthe Project if any ofsuch interest earnings remain on hand
such interest earnings shall be deposited in the Interest and Sinking Fund and used to pay debt service

on the Certificates when due for payment at maturity or upon early redemption It is further

provided however that any interest earnings on certificate proceeds which are required to be rebated

to the United States of America pursuant to Section 1 I hereof in order to prevent the Certificates

from being arbitrage bonds shall be so rebated and not considered as interest earnings for the

purposes of this Section

Section 20 CONSTRUCTION FUND The Issuer hereby creates and establishes and shall

maintain on the books ofthe Issuer a separate fund to be entitled the Series 1998 Combination Tax

and Revenue Certificate of Obligation Construction Fund for use by the Issuer for payment of all

lawful costs associated with the acquisition and construction ofthe Project as hereinbefore provided
Upon payment of all such costs any moneys remaining on deposit in said Fund shall be transferred

to the Interest and Sinking Fund Amounts so deposited to the Interest and Sinking Fund shall be

used in the mannerdescribed in Section 16 of this Ordinance

Section 21 COMPLIANCE WITH RULE 15c212

a Annual Reports

i TheIssuer shall provide annually within six months after the end ofeach fiscal

year ending in or after 1998 financial information and operating data with respect to the

Issuer ofthe general type described in Exhibit A hereto provided that such information and

data is customarily prepared by the Issuer Such information shall be provided to any person

upon request made to the Issuer provided that the Issuer reserves the right at any time to

commence making such annual filings with the SID if any and if none to each NRMSIR
in lieu of providing such information upon request Any financial statements so to be

provided shall be 1 prepared in accordance with the accounting principles described in
Exhibit A hereto or such other accounting principles as the Issuer may be required to employ
from time to time pursuant to state law or regulation and 2 audited if the Issuer

commissions an audit of such statements and the audit is completed within the period during
which they must be provided If the audit ofsuch financial statements is not complete within

such period then the Issuer shall provide audited financial statements for the applicable fiscal

year to the SID when and ifthe audit report on such statements become available
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ii If the Issuer changes its fiscal year it will notify the SID and each NRMSIR
ofthe change and ofthe date ofthe new fiscal year end prior to the next date by which the
Issuer otherwise would be required to provide financial information and operating data

pursuant to this paragraph a The financial information and operating data to be provided
pursuant to this Section maybe set forth in full in one or more documents or may be included
by specific reference to any document including an official statement or other offering
document if it is available from the MSRB that theretofore has been provided to the SID or

filed with the SEC

b Material Event Notices The Issuer shall notify the SID and the MSRB in a timely
manner ofany ofthe followingevents with respect to the Certificates if such event is material within
the meaning ofthe federal securities laws

1 Principal and interest payment delinquencies
2 Nonpayment related defaults
3 Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties
4 Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties
5 Substitution of credit or liquidity providers or their failure to perform
6 Adverse tax opinions or events affecting the taxexempt status of the

Certificates
7 Modifications to rights of holders of the Certificates
8 Certificate calls
9 Defeasances
10 Release substitution or sale of property securing repayment of the

Certificates and

11 Rating changes

The Issuer shall notify the SID and the MSRB in a timely manner of any failure by the Issuer to

provide financial information or operating data in accordance with subsection a ofthis Section by
the time required by such subsection

c Limitations Disclaimers and Amendments

i The Issuer shall be obligated to observe and perform the covenants specified
in this Section only for so long as the Issuer remains an obligated person with respect to

the Certificates within the meaning ofthe Rule except that the Issuer in any event will give
the notice required by Subsection b hereofofany Bond calls and defeasance that cause the
Issuer to no longer be such an obligated person

ii The provisions ofthis Section are for the sole benefit ofthe registered owners

and beneficial owners ofthe Certificates and nothing in this Section express or implied shall

give any benefit or any legal or equitable right remedy or claim hereunder to any other

person The Issuer undertakes to provide only the financial information operating data
financial statements and notices that it has expressly agreed to provide pursuant to this
Sectionand does not hereby undertake to provide any other information that maybe relevant
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or material to a complete presentation ofthe Issuersfinancial results condition orprospects
or hereby undertake to update any information provided in accordance with this Section or

otherwise except as expressly provided herein The Issuer does not make any representation
or warranty concerning such information or its usefulness to a decision to invest in or sell
Certificates at any future date

iii UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES SHALL THE ISSUER BE LIABLE TO
THE REGISTERED OWNER OR BENEFICIAL OWNER OF ANY BOND OR ANY
OTHER PERSON IN CONTRACT OR TORT FOR DAMAGES RESULTING IN
WHOLE OR IN PART FROM ANY BREACH BY THE ISSUER WHETHER
NEGLIGENT OR WITHOUT FAULT ON ITS PART OF ANY COVENANT SPECIFIED
IN THIS SECTION BUT EVERY RIGHT AND REMEDY OFANY SUCH PERSON IN

CONTRACT OR TORT FOR OR ON ACCOUNT OF ANY SUCH BREACH SHALL BE

LIMITED TO AN ACTION FOR MANDAMUS OR SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE

iv No default by the Issuer in observing or performing its obligations under this

Section shall comprise a breach of or default under the Ordinance for purposes ofany other

provision of this Ordinance Nothing in this Section is intended or shall act to disclaim
waive or otherwise limit the duties ofthe Issuer under federal and state securities laws

v The provisions ofthis Section may be amended by the Issuer from time to time
to adapt to changed circumstances that arise from a change in legal requirements achange
in law or achange in the identity nature status or type ofoperations ofthe Issuer but only
if1 the provisions ofthis Section as so amended would have permitted an underwriter to

purchase or sell Certificates in the primary offering of the Certificates in compliance with the

Rule taking into account any amendments or interpretations of the Rule since such offering
as well as such changed circumstances and 2 either a the registered owners ofa majority
in aggregate principal amount or any greater amount required by any other provision ofthis
Ordinancethat authorizes such an amendment ofthe outstanding Certificates consent tosuch

amendment or b aperson that is unaffiliated with the Issuer such as nationally recognized
bond counsel determined that such amendment will not materially impair the interest ofthe

registered owners and beneficial owners of the Certificates If the Issuer so amends the

provisions ofthis Section it shall include with any amended financial information oroperating
data next provided in accordance with subsection a of this Section an explanation in
narrative form ofthe reason for the amendment and ofthe impact ofany change in the type
offinancial information or operating data so provided The Issuer may also amend or repeal
the provisions of this continuing disclosure agreement if the SEC amends or repeals the

applicable provision of the Rule or a court of final jurisdiction enters judgment that such

provisions of the Rule are invalid but only if and to the extent that the provisions of this
sentence would not prevent an underwriter from lawfully purchasing or selling Certificates
in the primary offering of the Certificates

d Definitions As used in this Section the following terms have the meanings ascribed
to such terms below

MSRB means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board

22



NRMSIR means each person whom the SEC or its staff has determined to be a

nationally recognized municipal securities information repository within the meaning
ofthe Rule from time to time

Rule means SEC Rule 15c212 as amended from time to time

SEC means the United States Securities and Exchange Commission

SID means any person designated by the State of Texas or an authorized

department officer or agency thereof as and determined by the SEC or its staff to

be a state information depository within the meaning of the Rule from time to time

Section 22 METHOD OF AMENDMENT The Issuer hereby reserves the right to amend
this Ordinance subject to the following terms and conditions towit

a The Issuer may from time to time without the consent of any holder except as otherwise

required by paragraph b below amend or supplement this Ordinance in order to i cure any
ambiguity defect or omission in this Ordinance that does not materially adversely affect the interests
ofthe holders iigrant additional rights or security for the benefit of the holders iii add events of
default as shall not be inconsistent with the provisions ofthis Ordinance and which shall not materially
adversely affect the interests ofthe holders v qualify this Ordinance under the Trust Indenture Act
of 1939 as amended or corresponding provisions of federal laws from time to time in effect or iv
make such other provisions in regard to matters or questions arising under this Ordinance as shall not

be inconsistent with the provisions ofthis Ordinance and which shall not in the opinion ofthe Issuers
Bond Counsel materially adversely affect the interests ofthe holders

b Except as provided in paragraph a above the holders of Certificates aggregating in

principal amount 51 of the aggregate principal amount ofthen outstanding Certificates which are

the subject of a proposed amendment shall have the right from time to time to approve any
amendment hereto which maybe deemed necessary or desirable by the Issuer provided however
that without the consent of100 ofthe holders in aggregate principal amount ofthe then outstanding
Certificates nothing herein contained shall permit or be construed to permit amendment ofthe terms

and conditions ofthis Ordinance or in any of the Certificates so as to

1 Make any change in the maturity of any of the outstanding Certificates

2 Reduce the rate of interest borne by any ofthe outstanding Certificates

3 Reduce the amount of the principal of or redemption premium if any payable
on any outstanding Certificates

4 Modify the terms ofpayment of principal or ofinterest or redemption premium
on outstanding Certificates or any ofthem or impose any condition with respect to

such payment or
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5 Change the minimum percentage of the principal amount of any series of

Certificates necessary for consent to such amendment

c Ifat anytime the Issuer shall desire to amend this Ordinance under this Section the Issuer
shall send by US mail to each registered owner ofthe affected Certificates a copy of the proposed
amendment and cause notice of the proposed amendment to be published at least once in a financial

publication published in The City of New York New York Such published notice shall briefly set

forth the nature ofthe proposed amendment and shall state that a copy thereofis on file at the office
ofthe Issuer for inspection by all holders ofsuch Certificates

dWhenever at any time within one year from the date of publication of such notice the
Issuer shall receive an instrument or instruments executed by the holders ofat least 51in aggregate
principal amount of all ofthe Certificates then outstanding which are required for the amendment
which instrument or instruments shall refer to the proposed amendment and which shall specifically
consent to and approve such amendment the Issuer may adopt the amendment in substantially the

same form

e Upon the adoption of any amendatory Ordinance pursuant to the provisions of this

Section this Ordinance shall be deemed to be modified and amended in accordance with such

amendatory Ordinance and the respective rights duties and obligations ofthe Issuer and all holders
of such affected Certificates shall thereafter be determined exercised and enforced subject in all

respects to such amendment

fAny consent given by the holder of a Certificate pursuant to the provisions of this Section

shall be irrevocable for a period ofsix months from the date ofthe publication ofthe notice provided
for in this Section and shall be conclusive and binding upon all future holders ofthe same Certificate

during such period Such consent may be revoked at any time after six months from the date ofthe

publication of said notice by the holder who gave such consent or by a successor in title by filing
notice with the Issuer but such revocation shall not be effective if the holders of51in aggregate
principal amount of the affected Certificates then outstanding have prior to the attempted
revocation consented to and approved the amendment

For the purposesofestablishing ownership ofthe Certificates the Issuer shall rely solelyupon
the registration ofthe ownership of such Certificates on the registration books kept by the Paying
AgentRegistrar

Section23DESIGNATION AS QUALIFIEDTAXEXEMPTOBLIGATIONS TheIssuer

hereby designates the Certificates as qualifiedtaxexempt obligations as defined in section265b3
of the Code In furtherance of such designation the Issuer represents covenants and warrants the

following a that during the calendar year in which the Certificates are issued the Issuer including
any subordinate entities has not designated nor will designate obligations which when aggregated
with the Certificates will result in more than10000000 of qualified taxexempt bonds being
issued b that the Issuer reasonably anticipates that the amount oftaxexempt obligations issued
during the calendar year in which the Certificates are issued by the Issuer or any subordinate
entities will not exceed10000000and c that the Issuer will take such action or refrain from
such action as necessary and as more particularly set forth in Section 11 hereof in order that the
Certificates will not be considered private activity bonds within the meaning of section 141 ofthe
Code
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EXHIBIT A

DESCRIPTION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following information is referred to in Section21a ofthis Ordinance

Annual Financial Statements and Operating Data

The financial information and operating data with respect to the Issuer to be provided annually in
accordance with such Section are as specified and included in the Appendix or under the headings
of the Official Statement referred to below

Financial information and operating data which is customarilyprepared by the District and is publicly
available ofthe general type included under Tables numbered 16 and817ofthe Official Statement

Appendix B to the Official Statement financial statements for the last completed fiscal year which
will be unaudited unless an audit is performed in which event the audited financial statements will

be made available

Accounting Principles

The accounting principles referred to in such Section are the accounting principles described in the
notes to the financial statements referred to in paragraph above
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FRSTSOUTIMESTCOMPANY

November 5 1998

Honorable Mayor and Councilmembers

City ofKennedale

209 N New Hope Road

Kennedale Texas 76060

r

Re 5150000Combination Tax Revenue Certificates ofObligation Series 1998

Honorable Mayor and Councilmembers

We have taken bids for the sale of the above referenced certificates the Certificates at

1100AM in our office We received a total of six bids for the Certificates The number

of bids received is reflective of the very strong bond market the size of the transaction
the availability of bond insurance and the credit quality and positive momentum of the

City ofKennedale

The best bid received on the Certificates was46602 from First Southwest Company
This is an extremely low interest rate fora 25 year debt issue

We applied for a credit rating from Moodys Investors Service Inc Moodys
Moodys assigned a Baal rating with a stable outlook to the Citys underlying credit

Moodys will also assign a Aaa rating based upon the bond insurance commitment

from Financial Guarantee Insurance Corporation FGIC

The bond market has performed exceedingly well over the past several months with

interest rates dropping to historically low levels The low interest rate environment is due

to a steady economy combined with low inflation While we cannot predict the future of

interest rates we can state that this is an advantageous time to sell certificates and lock in

the very low interest rates

Overall we are satisfied with the sale process the bond market the number of bids

received and the low bid of First Southwest Company We recommend your approval of

the low bid and congratulate the City Council and Staff on an excellent sale

r j
Sincerely

Mark C Kim

Associate

r

INVLSTMEIVT BANKERS SINCE 1946
1700 Paeific Avenue Suize 500 Dallas Texas 7S2o146522149534000 8006783792 Far2149534050



MOODYS ASSIGNS Baal RATING WITH A STABLE OUTLOOK TO THE CITY OF KENNEDALE
TX DEBT ISSUANCE

w

Kennedale City of TX

Municipality
rr

Texas

MoodysRating

rIssue Rating

Combination Tax And Revenue Certificates Of Obligation
Series 1998 Baal

Sale Amount 515000000
Expected Sale Date 110598

Rating Description GENERAL OBLIGATION LIMITED TAX

56 MILLION DEBT AFFECTED

iNEW YORK October 23 1998 Moodys Investors Service has assigned a Baal

rating with a stable outlook to the City of Kennedale TX Combination Tax and
Revenue Certificates of Obligation Series 1998 The rating assignment and
outlook reflect Moodys assessment of the citys modestly sized tax base with

gradual valuation growth strong management team and wellmaintained financial

operations and an affordable debt position

rrCONSISTENT VALUATION GROWTH EXPECTED TO CONTINUE OVER THE MEDIUMTERM

The city retains a primarily residential profile with an active industrial

wand commercial sector Moodys expects continued growth as single family
residential construction and new industrial growth continues Tax base growth
registers a healthy and manageable 73per annum over the past four years
Further combined with the citysplanned annexation of another 825 acres in

omits extraterritorial jurisdiction management anticipates another valuation
increase of approximately 26 million Resident wealth and income levels
approximate and trend slightly above those of the state

WELL MANAGED FINANCIAL OPERATIONS REFLECTED BY AMPLE LEVELS OF GENERAL FUND
RESERVES

Financial operations are well maintained with General Fund balance levels

ample at 27 for ending fiscal year 1997 Given the partially built out nature
of this growing city which is approximately 40 undeveloped and its moderate

debt needs Moodys expects continuation of the citys generally conservative

management practices Moodys believes they will result in the maintenance of

managements stated target of three months of undesignated General Fund
reserves

MANAGEABLE DEBT LEVELS FUTURE DEBT ISSUANCE TO BE MONITORED

wMoodysbelieves debt position is manageable despite debt levels which are

slightly above average at 49 and a relatively slow rate of principal
retirement with only 26 of principal amortized in ten years with no

r

r



immediate additional debt issuance planned and the continued expansion and

growth of the economic base Moodys expects the citys debt position to

remain affordable The proceeds from the current issue are expected to address

needs and projects over the next two to three years Management does

anticipate approaching voters in the future with a more comprehensive capital
program although an approximate amount has not yet been targeted
7anagements ability to adequately handle additional debt given the slow rate

f debt retirement will remain key credit considerations

ANALYSTS

Juist Hinds Analyst Public Finance Group Moodys Investors Service

Laura Barrientos Backup Analyst Public Finance Group Moodys Investors

Service

iicole Johnson Director Public Finance Group Moodys Investors Service

CONTACTS

Tournalists 212 5530376

Research Clients 212 5531625

r

r

r

r
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tIRST SOUTHWEST COMPANY

1700 Pacific Avenue
wr

Suite 500

Dallas Texas 75201

214 9534000

r

TABULATION OF BIDS
RECEIVED AT SALE OF

5150000
CITY OF KENNEDALE TEXAS

COMBINATION TAX AND REVENUE CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION SERIES 1998

SELLING THURSDAY NOVEMBER 5 1998 AT 1100AM CST

r

r

r

ACCOUNT MANAGER

TRUE

INTEREST COST

FIRST SOUTHWEST COMPANY 4660232

SOUTHWEST SECURITIES 4745190

SALOMON SMITH BARNEY 4750139

EVEREN SECURITIES INC 4752274

SUNTRUST EQUITABLE SECURITIES 4789700

DEAN WITTER REYNOLDS 4831900



w REVISED
OFFICIAL BID FORM

Honorable Mayor and Ciry Coutxil

City of Kennedale Texas

Members of the Ciry Council

November 5 1998

Reference is made to your Official Statement and Notice of Sale and Bidding Inswctions dated Octoher 22 1998 ofSI5Q000 CITY OF
KENNEDAIE TEXAS COMBINATION TAX AND REVENUE CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION SERIES 1998 twth of which

constitute a part hereof

For your legally issued Certificates as described in said Notice of Sale and Bidding Inswctions and Official Statement we will pay you par and
accrued interest from date of issue to date of delivery to us plus a cash premium of for Certiticates maruring and bearing interest

as follows

Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest

Maturity Amount Rate Maturity Amount Rate Maturity Amount Rate

2002 65000 1 lt 9e 2010 2100009c 2018 305000 l0O ry

2003 65000 2011 225000 k 2019 3200x1 ylp
rrr

2004 160010 2012 230000 2020 335000 y1 c

2005 170000 rlo 2013 240000 2021 350000

2006 180000 7c 2014 250000 f l0 2022 205XX T9o
rrr 2W7 185000 i 7a 2015 260H10 SG c 2023 215000 4U

2008 190000 10 2016 275000 2024 225000 g9c

2009 2000H 9 2017 290000 4 c

Certificates maruring in the years 2002 through 2018 shall be Serial Certificates As indicated bebw the Bidder Wray bid one or two temt

certificates consisting of the 2019 through 2024 maturities with each term consisting of a least two but not more than five consecutive annual

r principal amounts accumulated fmm the maturity schedule shown above For those years which have been combined into term cenifiwtes the
principal amount shown in the table above shall he the mandatory sinking fund redemption amounts insuch years except that the amount shown
in the year of the term certificate mamriry date shall mature in such year The term certificates created are as follows

rr
Year of Total

Msruriry Date First Maniatory Princ7pal Interest

Redemption Amount of Mamtiry Rate

a1ISILt 0515 7jIc

r teatslam ry yAn
Our calculation which is not a part of this hid of the interest cost from the above is

TRUE INTEREST COST ZI lIli2 k

We are having the Certificates of the following maturities Cl r insured by I
r

at apremium of d2ui saidpremium to be paid by the Purchaser Any fees to be paid to the rating
agencies as a result of said insurance will be oai by the City

The htitial Certificates shall be registered inthe name of which will upon payment for the

Certificates be cancelled by the Paying AgentlRegistrar The Certificates will then be registered inthe nanrc of Cede Co DTCspartnership
nominee under the BookEntryOnlySystem

A bank cashiers check or certified check of the Bank in the amount of103000which
tit represents our Good Faith Deposit is attached hereto or has been made available to you prior to the opening of this bid and is submitted in

accordance with the terms as set forth inthe Official Statement and Notice of Sale and Bidding Inswttions

We agree to accept delivery of the Certificates utilizing the BuukEntryOnlySystem through DTC and make payment for the Initial Certificate in

immediately available funds inthe Corporate Trust Division US Trost Company of Texas NA Dallas Texas not later than 1000AM CST
on December 9 1998 or drereafter on the date the Certificates are tendered for delivery pursuant to the terms set Torth inthe Nodce of Sale and

Bidding hrswctions It will be the obligation of the purchaser of the Certificates to complete the DTC Ehgibiliry Questionnaire

rr

r



The undersirted aerees to complete execute and deliver to the City at least six business days prior to delivery of dre Cc niticates a certificate

relatin to the issue price of the Certificates in the form and to the effect acmmpanyine the Notice of Sale and Biddine lastnrcdons with such

changes theretors rtrtybe acceptable to the Ciry

Weagree to provide in writing the initial reoffering prices and other terms if any to the Financial Adtiuor by the ckrse of the next
rir business day after theaward

Respectfully submitted Syndicate Members

ter

First Southwest Company StephensCoMRI
Name of Underwater or Manacer

Peter B Stare SVP

Authorized Representative

2149534040
tier

Phone Number

Sienature

ACCEPTANCE CLAUSE

The abtrvc and foregoing bid is hereby in all things accepted by the City of Kennedale Texas subject to and in accordance with the

rr Notice of Sale and Bidding Instructions this the 5th dayof November18

ATTEST

it Mayor
City of Cennedale Texas

City Secretary
City of ICetvreda Texas

rtrr

or

rr

wr



Final Numbers

r

r

rr

wM

rr

i

City of Kennedale Texas
Combination Tax Bc Revenue Certifrcates ofObligation

Series 1998

5150000

DEBT SERVICE SCHEDULE

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total PIFISCAL TOTAL

lzro9n99s

2152000 31385733 31385733

snsnoao zl7ssoo 1217ssoo
9302000 43561233
2152001 12175500 12175500
8l152001 12175500 12175500
9302001 24351000
2152002 6500000 5875 12175500 18675500
8152002 11984563 11984563
9302002 30660063
2152003 6500000 5875 11984563 18484563

8152003 11793625 11793625
9302003 30278188

2152004 16000000 5875 11793625 27793625
8152004 11323625 11323625
9l302004 39117250
2152005 17000000 5875 11323625 28323625
8152005 10824250 10824250
9302005 39147875
2152006 18000000 5875 10824250 28824250
8l152006 0295500 10295500
9302006 39119750

2152007 18500000 4375 10295500 28795500
815l2007 9890813 9890813
9302007 38686313

2152008 19000000 4375 9890813 28890813
81152008 9475188 9475188
9l302008 38366001

21152009 20000000 4375 9475188 29475188

8152009 9037688 9037688
9302009 38512876
2152010 21000000 4375 9037688 30037688
8152010 8578313 8578313
9l302010 38616001
2152011 22500000 4375 8578313 31078313
8152011 8086125 8086125
9302011 39164438
2158012 23000000 4375 8066125 31086125
8152012 7583000 7583000

9302012 38669125
2152013 24000000 4400a 7583000 31583000

8152013 7055000 7055000

930t2013 38638000
2152014 25000000 4450 7055000 32055000
815t2014 6498750 6498750

First Southwest Company File Kenndalesf98cofscSINGLE PURPOSE

Public Finance 1151998 1131AM

Page 1

yr
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rr

Final Numbers

City ofKennedale Texas
Combination Tax Revenue Certificates ofObligation

Series 1998

5150000

DEBT SERVICE SCHEDULE

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total PIFISCAL TOTAL

9302014 38553750
2152015 26000000 4500 6498750 32498750
8152015 5913750 593750

930l2015 38412500

2152016 27500000 4550 5913750 33413750

8152016 5288125 5288125

930l2016 38701875
21512017 29000000 4550 5288125 34288125

8152017 4628375 4628375
930l2017 38916500
2152018 30500000 4600 4628375 35128375
81512018 3926875 3926875

9302018 39055250

2152019 32000000 4700 3926875 35926875

8152019 3174875 3174875

9302019 39101750

2152020 33500000 4750a 3174875 36674875

8152020 2379250 2379250
9302020 39054125
2152021 35000000 4750 2379250 37379250

8152021 1548000 1548000
9302021 38927250

2152022 20500000 4800 1548000 22048000
8152022 1056000 1056000
9302022 23104000
2152023 21500000 4800 1056000 22556000
8152023 540000 540000

9l302023 23096000

2152024 22500000 4800 540000 23040000

9l302024 23040000

Total 515000000 381851113 896851113

Fiat Southwest Company
Public Finance

Page 2

File Kenndalesf98cofscSINGLE PURPOSE

1151998 1 L31 AM



w

Final Numbers

City ofKennedale Texas
Combination Tax Revenue Certificates ofObligation

Series 1998

S1S0000

DEBT SERVICE SCHEDULE

YIELD STATISTICS

Accrued Interest from 11011998 to 12091998 2570383

Bond Yeaz Dollars 58180778

Average Life 15885 Years

Average Coupon 46676627

Net Interest Cost NC 46676627

True Interest Cost 1TC 46602319

Bond Yield for Arbitrage Purposes 46980872
ire

All Inclusive Cost AIC 47689149

IRS FORM 8038

wr Net Interest Cost 46672567

Weighted Average Maturity 15779 Years

First Southwest Company File Kenndalesf98cofscSINGLE PURPOSE

Public Finance 1151998 1131 AM

r

it

it

r

Page 3



Final Numbers

City of Kennedale Texas

Combination Tax Revenue Certifrcates ofObligation
rrr

Series 1998

5150000

DEBT SERVICE SCHEDULE
r

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total PI

9301999
r 9302000 43561233 43561233

9302001 24351000 24351000
9302002 6500000 5875 24160063 30660063
9302003 6500000 5875 23778188 30278188
9302004 16000000 5875 23117250 39117250

9302005 17000000 5875 22147875 39147875

9302006 18000000 5875 21119750 39119750

r
9302007 18500000 4375 20186313 38686313
9302008 19000000 4375 19366001 38366001
9302009 20000000 4375 18512876 38512876

9302010 21000000 4375 17616001 38616001

tw 9302011 22500000 4375 16664438 39164438
9302012 23000000 4375 15669125 38669125

9302013 24000000 4400 14638000 38638000

9302014 25000000 4450 13553750 38553750

9302015 26000000 4500 12412500 38412500

9302016 27500000 4550 11201875 38701875
91302017 29000000 4550 9916500 38916500

9302018 30500000 4600 8555250 39055250
91302019 32000000 4700 7101750 39101750
9302020 33500000 4750 5554125 39054125
91302021 35000000 4750 3927250 38927250

9302022 20500000 4800 2604000 23104000
9302023 21500000 4800 1596000 23096000

9302024 22500000 4800 540000 23040000

r
Total 515000000 381851113 896851113

YIELD STATISTICS

Accrued Interest from 11011998 to12091998 2570383
Bond Year Dollars 58180778

Average Life 15885 Years

Average Coupon 46676627

NetInterest Cost NIC 46676627

True InterestCost TIC 46602319

tww Bond Yield for Arbitrage Purposes 46980872

All Inclusive Cost AIC 47689149

IRS FORM 8038

r Net Interest Cost 46672567

Weighted Average Maturity 15779 Years

First Southwest Company

Public Finance

r

Page 4

File Kenndalesf98cofscSINGLE PURPOSE

1151998 1131 AM



Final Numbers
r

City ofKennedale Texas
Combination Tax Revenue Certificates ofObligateon

Series 1998

51S0 ODO

PRICING SUMMARY
r

Maturity Type of Bond Coupon Yield Maturity Value Price Dollar Price

2152002 Serial Coupon 5875 5875 6500000 100000 6500000
wr 2152003 Serial Coupon 5875 5875 6500000 100000 6500000

2152004 Serial Coupon 5875 5875 16000000 100000 16000000
2152005 Serial Coupon 5875 5875 17000000 100000 17000000
2152006 Serial Coupon 5875 5875 18000000 100000 18000000

r 2152007 Serial Coupon 4375 4375 18500000 100000 18500000
21512008 Serial Coupon 4375 4375 19000000 100000 19000000
2158009 Serial Coupon 4375 4375 20000000 100000 20000000
2152010 Serial Coupon 4375 4375 21000000 100000 21000000
2158011 Serial Coupon 4375 4375 22500000 100000 22500000
2158012 Serial Coupon 4375 4375 23000000 100000 23000000
2158013 Serial Coupon 4400 4400 24000000 100000 24000000
2158014 Serial Coupon 4450 4450 25000000 100000 25000000
2158015 Serial Coupon 4500 4500 26000000 100000 26000000
2152016 Serial Coupon 4550 4550 27500000 100000 27500000
2152017 Serial Coupon 4550 4550 29000000 100000 29000000
2IS2018 Serial Coupon 4600 4600 30500000 100000 30500000
2152019 Serial Coupon 4700 4700 32000000 100000 32000000
2152021 Tenn 1 Coupon 4750 4750 68500000 100000 68500000
2152024 Tenn 2 Coupon 4800 48011 64500000 100000 64500000

Total 515000000 515000000

8DINFORMATION

Par Amount of Bonds 515000000
Gross Production 515000000

r

Bid100000 515000000

Accrued Interest from ll011998 to 12091998 2570383
Total Purchase Price 517570383

Bond Year Dollars 8180778

Average Life 15885 Yeazs

Average Coupon 46676627

Net Interest Cost NIC 46676627
True Interest Cost TIC 46602319

First Southwest Company

Public Finance

err

Page 5

File Kenndalesf98cofscSINGLE PURPOSE

l l51998 1131 AM



r

Final Numbers

City ofKennedale Texas
Combination Tax Revenue Certcates ofObligation

Series 1998

CITYHALL et al

DEBT SERVICE SCHEDULE

w

r

r

wr

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total PIFISCAL TOTAL

121091998

2152000 18809078 18809078

8152000 7296625 7296625

9302000 26105703
2152001 7296625 7296625
8152001 7296625 7296625
9302001 14593250
2182002 7296625 7296625
8I52002 7296625 7296625

9302002 14593250

215Z003 7296625 7296625
8152003 7296625 7296625
9302003 14593250
2152004 9000000 5875 7296625 16296625
8152004 7032250 7032250
9302004 23328875
2152005 9500000 5875 7032250 16532250
8152005 6753188 6753188
9302005 23285438
2152006 10000000 5875 6753188 16753188
8152006 6459438 6459438
9302006 23212626
2152007 10500000 4375 6459438 16959438
8152007 6229750 6229750

9302007 23189188
2152008 10500000 4375 6229750 16729750
8152008 6000063 6000063
930R008 22729813
2152009 11000000 4375 6000063 17000063
8IS2009 5759438 5759438
9302009 22759501
2152010 11500000 4375 5759438 17259438
8152010 5507875 5507875
930R010 22767313
2152011 13000000 4375 5507875 18507875
8152011 5223500 5223500
9302011 23731375
2152012 13000000 4375 5223500 18223500
815R012 4939125 4939125
930R012 23162625
2158013 13500000 4400 4939125 18439125
8158013 4642125 4642125
9302013 23081250
2152014 14000000 4450a 4642125 18642125
8152014 4330625 4330625

First Southwest Company
Public Finance

File Kenndalesf98coCity Hall

1 l51998 129 PM

rn



Final Numbers

City of Kennedale Tegas
Combination Tax Revenue Certifrcates ofObligation

r
Series 1998

CITYHALL et al

DEBT SERVICE SCIIEDULE

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total PIFISCAL TOTAL

9302014 22972750

2152015 14500000 4500 4330625 18830625

8152015 4004375 4004375

9302015 22835000

2152016 15500000 4880 4004375 19504375

815Y2016 3651750 3651750

9302016 23156125

2152017 16500000 4550 3651750 20151750

8152017 3276375 3276375

9302017 23428125

2152018 17000010 4600 3276375 20276375

8152018 2885375 2885375

w 9302018 23161750

2152019 18000000 4700 2888375 20885375

8152019 2462375 2462375

9l302019 23347750

21152020 19000000 4750 2462375 21462375
8152020 20I l 125 2011125

9302020 23473500

2152021 19500000 4750 20L1125 21511125
r

81152021 1548000 1548000

9302021 23059125

2152022 20500000 4800 1848000 22048000

irr 8152022 1056000 1056000

9302022 23104000
2152023 21500000 4800 1056000 22556000
8ISl2023 540000 540000
9302023 23096000

2l52D24 22500000 4800 540000 23040000

9302024 23040000

Total 3100OD000 245807582 555807582

First Southwest Company File Kenndalesf98coCity Hall

Public Finance 1151998 129PM

Yb

rr



Final Numbers

City of Kennedale Texas

Combination Tax Revenue Certificates ofObligation
Series 1998

CITYHALL et al

DEBT SERVICE SCIDULE
rr

YIELD STATISTICS

Accrued Interest from 11011998 to12091998 1540399
Bond Year Dollars 5254056
Average Life 16949 Years

Average Coupon 46784352

NetInterest Cost NIC 46784352
True Interest Cost TIC 46670431
Bond Yield for Arbitrage Purposes 46980873

wr
All Inclusive Cost AIC 47707135

IRS FORM 8038

Net Interest Cost 46782530

Weighted Average Maturity 16843 Years

First Southwest Company File Kenndalesf98cloCity Hall
rr

Public Finance 1151998 129 PM

w

r

w

rrr



r

Final Numbers

City of Kennedale Texas

Combination Tar Revenue Certificates ofObligation
Series 1998

CITYHALL et al

DEBT SERVICE SCHEDULE

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total PI

9301999
rr 9302000 26105703 26105703

9302001 14593250 14593250

9302002 14593250 14593250

9302003 14593250 14593250

9302004 9000000 5875 14328875 23328875

93012005 9500000 5875 13785438 23285438

9302006 10000000 5875 13212626 23212626

9302007 10500000 4375 12689L88 23189188
rr

9302008 10500000 4375 12229813 22729813

9302009 11000000 4375 11759501 22759501

9302010 11500000 4375 11267313 22767313

9302011 13000000 4375 10731375 23731375

9302012 13000000 4375 10162625 23162625

9302013 13500000 4400 9581250 23081250

9302014 14000000 4450 8972750 22972750

r 9302015 14500000 4500 8335000 22835000

9302016 15500000 4550 7656125 23156125

9302017 16500000 4550 6928125 23428125

9302018 17000000 4600 6161750 23161750

9302019 18000000 4700 5347750 23347750

9302020 19000000 4750 4473500 23473500

9302021 19500000 4750 3559125 23059125

9302022 20500000 4800 2604000 23104000
rr

9302023 21500000 4800 1596000 23096000

9302024 22500000 4800 540000 23040000

Total 310000000 245807582 555807582

YIELD STATISTICS

Accrued Interest from l1011998 tol2091998 1540399

Bond Year Dollars 5254056

Average Life 16949 Years

Average Coupon 46784352

NetInterest Cost NIC 46784352

True InterestCost TIC 46670431

Bond Yield for Arbitrage Purposes 46980873
r

All Inclusive Cost AIC 47707135

t

IRS FORM 8038

Net InterestCost 46782530

Weighted Average Maturity 16843 Years

First Southwest Company

Public Finance

File Kenndalesf98coCity Hall

11151998 129 PM

vr



Final Numbers

r

City ofKennedale Texas
Combination Tax Revenue Certificates ofObligation

Series 1998

WATER SEWER SYSTEMIMPROYEMENTS

DEBT SERVICE SCHEDULE

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total PIFISCAL TOTAL

12091998

2152000 12576656 12576656
8182000 4878875 4878875
9302000 17455531
2182001 4878875 4878875
8152001 4878875 4878875
9302001 9757750
2152002 6500000 5875 4878875 11378875

8152002 4687938 4687938
r 9302002 16066813

2152003 6500000 S87S 4667938 11187938
8182003 4497000 4497000
9302003 15684938
2152004 7000000 5875 4497000 11497000
8152004 4291375 4291375
9302004 15788375

2152005 7500000 5875 4291375 11791375
rr

81152005 4071063 4071063
9302005 15862438
2152006 8000000 5875 4071063 12071063
8182006 3836063 3836063
9302006 15907126
2182007 8000000 4375 3836063 11836063

8IS2007 3661063 3661063
rr 9302007 15497126

2182008 8500000 4375 3661063 12161063
8IS2008 3475125 3475125

9302008 15636188
2152009 9000000 4375 3475125 12478128
8152009 3278250 3278250
9302009 18753375
2IS201D 9500000 4375 3278250 12778250
8182010 3070438 3070438
9302010 15848688
2152011 9500000 4375 3070438 12570436
8182011 2862625 2862625
9302011 18433063
2152012 10000000 4375 2862625 12862625
8IS2012 2643875 2643875

rr 9302012 15506500
2152013 10800000 4400 2643875 13143875

8152013 2412675 2412875
9302013 tS5S6750

P 2152014 11000000 4450 2412875 13412875
8IS2014 2168125 2168125

Nr FirstSouthwest Company

Public Finance

s

File Kenndalesf98coSelfSupporting
1181998 130PM

nw
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Final Numbers

City of Kennedale Texas
Combination Tax Revenue Certificates ofObligation

Series 1998
WATER SEWER SYSTEMIMPROVEMENTS

DEBT SERVICE SCHEDULE

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total PIFISCAL TOTAL

9302014 15581000
2152015 11500000 4500 2168125 13668125
8152015 1909375 1909375
9302015 15577500
2152016 12000000 4550 1909375 13909375
8152016 1636375 1636375

9302016 15545750
2152017 12500000 4550 1636375 14136375

8152017 1352000 1352000

9302017 154883J5

2152018 13500000 4600 1352000 14852000

8152018 1041500 1041500
9302018 15893500
2152019 14000000 4700 1041500 18041500

8l152019 712500 712500

9302019 15754000

2152020 14500000 4750 712500 15212500

8152020 368125 368125

9302020 15580625
252021 15500000 4750 368125 15868125
9l302021 15868125

iota 205000000 136043536 341043536

YIELD STATISTICS

Accrued Interest from 11011998 to 12091998 1029985

Bond Year Dollazs 2926722

Average Life 14277 Yeazs

Average Coupon 46483242

NetInterest Cost NIC 46483242

True Interest Cast TIC 46485619

Bond Yield for Arbitrage Purposes 46980873
All Inclusive Cost AIC 47658325

IRS FORM 8038

NetInterest Cost 46474932

Weighted Average Maturity 14171 Years

First Southwest Company

Public Finance

File Kenndalesf98coSelfSupporting
1151998 130 PM

r



r

Final Numbers

City ofKennedale Texas
Combination Tax Revenue Certrfrcates ojObligation

irr
Series 1998

WATER SEWER SYSTEMIMPROVEMENTS

DEBT SERVICE SCHEDULE

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total PI

9301999

9302000 17455531 17455531

9302001 9757750 9757750

9302002 6500000 5875 9566813 16066813
9302003 6500000 5875 9184938 15684938
9302004 7000000 5875 8788375 15788375
9302005 7500000 5875 8362438 15862438
9302006 8000000 5875 7907126 15907L26

M 9302007 8Q00000 4375 7497126 15497126

9302008 8500000 4375 7136188 15636188

9302009 9000000 4375 6753375 15753375

9302010 9500000 4375 6348688 15848688

9302011 9500000 4375 5933063 15433063
9302012 10000000 4375 5506500 15506500
9302013 10500000 4400 5056750 15556750
9302014 11000000 4450 4581000 15581000
9302015 11500000 4500 4077500 15577500

9302016 12000000 4550 3545750 15545750
9302017 12500000 4550 2988375 15488375
91302018 13500000 4600 2393500 15893500
9302019 14000000 4700 1754000 15754000

9302020 14500000 4750 1080625 15580625

9302021 15500000 4750 368125 15868125

sr

Total 205000000 136043536 341043536

YIELD STATISTICS

w

Accrued Interest from l1Ol1998 to12091998 1029985

Bond Year Dollars 2926722
Average Life 14277 Years

Average Coupon 46483242

Net Inurest Cost NIC 46483242

True InterestCost TIC 46485619

Bond Yield for Arbitrage Purposes 46980873

All Inclusive Cost AIC 47658325

ar IRS FORM 8038

NetInterest Cost 46474932

Weighted Average Maturity 14171 Years

First Southwest Company

Public Finance

File Kenndalesf98coSelfSupporting
1151998 131 PM

r
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Fnmsr sovfsvvsrcoMearY
Bond BayersInde of 20 Municipal Bonds

Basis Valuation of ParBonds

rr
The most importam guide as m what the Municipal Bond Market has done in ooe time period versus another is the Bow Buyeis 20 Boud

Index Published on Thursday of each week it is the accepted guide of the Municipal Bord IttdtsuY m deurmine nns and movemems of
inurcst razes in the market To compuu the index each week a poll is taken of several Ltrge investment banking houses on the 20 year price
expressed inarms of an inurcst raze of the outstaying hoods of certain municipalities

ar

Week 1988 1989 1990 1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998
Jatnrary 1 783 744 703 709 652 617 534 666 537 570 507

2 783 740 703 715 640 619 531 653 550 571 496

3 761 729 714 710 656 616 529 644 540 572 503

4 751 727 719 706 659 610 528 649 546 57Z 511

5 700 665 573

February 1 749 729 724 686 671 604 525 640 540 570 511
rr 2 740 738 720 681 674 597 536 618 537 562 508

3 755 754 716 697 675 585 542 618 533 556 507

4 752 755 727 701 674 560 558 611 548 565 514
5 557

March 1 747 756 725 706 671 547 584 608 559 570 525

2 767 752 725 706 676 558 588 618 581 575 520

3 775 752 732 713 679 571 584 606 586 578 519

4 789 772 731 714 677 578 592 609 590 581 520

rr 5 790 764 733 607 607

April 1 780 756 733 706 673 586 634 603 586 588 519
2 781 754 731 702 666 584 622 601 603 588 518
3 787 744 739 698 660 570 619 596 594 587 521
4 777 740 751 701 668 567 616 606 591 587 525
S 669 575 532

r May 1 784 736 754 695 664 571 618 610 606 577 526
r

2 785 736 739 693 654 569 632 596 608 571 523
3 797 718 729 694 651 577 614 542 596 567 516
4 796 711 726 698 658 573 613 583 587 566 513

S 726 697 594 567

M
Tune 1 787 715 721 706 657 567 609 579 594 560 513

2 778 695 720 719 652 568 596 575 612 552 508
3 773 688 728 715 646 561 604 586 606 548 511

4 777 708 727 713 642 557 616 582 597 553 514

S 774 702 628 547

July 1 775 700 7A 710 638 555 627 591 594 553 515

2 777 692 721 707 617 555 622 581 600 538 512
aar 3 777 695 717 704 616 550 622 599 588 532 517

4 776 695 715 700 605 561 622 547 586 528 516
S 589 565 523 516

August 1 769 686 708 699 606 561 616 603 579 533 516

2 783 702 722 694 605 545 625 607 567 555 511
3 785 709 726 688 621 540 622 612 574 543 509

4 780 715 756 686 631 535 621 608 575 545 503
S 716 747 685 598 586

ri
September 1 776 715 741 686 624 535 616 590 595 542 503

2 767 716 735 681 616 524 618 583 589 544 500

3 759 733 741 678 627 527 624 591 588 533 497

4 762 740 753 673 633 530 637 600 576 536 494
S 764 530 643

Ocmber l 753 727 748 664 627 530 650 588 570 534 482

2 752 719 756 666 629 520 644 582 573 538 488

i 3 745 719 748 667 634 520 649 572 572 542 496
t

4 736 722 743 673 653 531 664 576 575 542 499

5 669 662 570 535 500

ri November 1 733 724 729 671 651 545 683 570 567 538
2 744 720 724 669 638 546 696 568 560 534

3 750 712 715 675 628 54b 706 565 555 531

4 758 708 713 678 626 549 703 565 554 529

5 704 708 554

December 1 766 700 706 680 628 54b 690 535 557 525

2 768 699 705 671 622 533 688 551 566 521
3 766 696 711 666 625 536 677 551 567 517
4 757 697 714 658 619 534 670 544 566 514r
S 750 617 528 671 515

r
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OFFICIAL STATEMENT

llated October 22 1998

Ratings
MoodysApplied For
See Other Information
Ratings herein

rr NEW ISSUE BaokEntryOnly

In the opituon of Bond Counsel interest on the Certificates will he excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes under
statutes regulations puhlished rulings and court decisions existing on the date thercof suhject to the matters described under Tax

rr Matters herein including the alternative nnnimum tax on cotporatious

iHECERTIFICATES WLLBEDESGNTED AS QUALIFIEDTAXEXEMPTOBLIGATIONS FOR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

ire 515110111
CITY OF KENNEllALETFXAS

Tarrant County
COMBINATION TAX ANU REVFN7F

nr CFRTFTCATESOF OBLIGATION SFRIES 1998

Dated Date November 1 1998 Due February 15 as shown below

r PAYMENT TEeMS Interest on the 55150000 City of Kennedale Texas Combination Tax and Revenue Cenificates of Obligation
Series 1998 the Cettificates willacaue from November 1 1998 the Dated Date and will be payable February IS and August 15
of each year commencing Febtvary I5 2000 and willhe calculated on he basis of a 360day year consoling of twelve 30day months
The dclitrilive Ccttifcates will he initially registered and delivered oily to Cede Co the nonilnee of The Depository Trust Company

r
DTC pursuant kt the BookEntryOnly System described herein Beneficial ownership of the Cenificates may be acyuired in
denominations of 55000 or integral multiples thercof No physical delivery of the Cer65cates will be made to the owners thereof

Principal of prcnuum if any and interest on the Certificates will be payable by the Paying AgentRegisuar to Ccdc Co which will
make distnbulion of the amounts so paid to the participating members of DTC for subsequent paymeut to the beneficial owners of he
Cettificates See The Ccrtiticates BookEntryOnlySystem herein The initial Paying AgenRegistrar is US Trust Company of
Texas NA Dallas Texas sec The Certificates Paying AgentRegistrar

AUTHORITY FOR SSOANCE The Cenfcates are issued pursuant to the Constitution and general laws of the State of Tcxus the
State paniculady Subchapter C of Chapter 271 Texas Locnl Govenuneut Code the Cettificate of Obligation Act of L971 as
amended and constitute direct obligations of the City of Kennedale Texas the City payable from a combination of i the levy and
collection of a direct and continuing ad valorem tax within the limits prescribed by law o all taxable property within the City and ii a
limited pledge oot to exceed1000 over the life of the Cerifcatcs of surplus net revenues of the CitysWaterworks and Sewer System
as provided in the ordinance authorizing the Ceniticates fthe Ordinance seeThe Certificates Authority for Issuanceirr

PURPOSG Proceeds from the sale of the Cenificates will be used o i acyuire land for and coustmct a municipal complex ii
acquire and construct certain improvements foe the Ciryswater system iiimake improvements to City streets and tiv pay costs of
issuance associated with the issuance of the Cenificates

irr

MATURITY SCHEDULE
rr

See Schedule on inside front cover

hrcaLrrv 1hc Cenifcates are offered for delivery when as and if issued and received by the itutia purchasers and subject to the
approving optruun of the Attorney General of Texas and the opinion of McCall Parkhurst Horton LLP Bond Counsel Daus Tcsas
see Appendix C Fonu of Bond Counsels Opinion

rr

DEh1VERY t is expected that the Certificates will be available for delivery through DTC on or about Decemher 9 1998

ear



MATURITY SCHEDULE

Prict Price

tt
ur

Amount Mahirily Rate Yiel Amrnot Maturity Rite YI

65000 2x2 250000 2014

65 000 23 260000 2015

160000 2004 275000 2016

170000 2005 290000 2017

180000 2006 305000 2018

185 fx0 2007 30000 2019

190xx 200g 335000 2020

2x000 200y 350000 2021

zin ooa 2ofo 2osooo 2oz2

225000 201 L 215000 2023

23Q000 20t2 225000 2024

240000 20t3

Accrued Interest Yrum November 1 1918 to 6e added

OPrioNnlRFnFMEroNThe City reserves the right at its option w redeem the Certificates maturing m and after Fehuury I5

2x17 in whole or in pan iu principal mnomus of5000 ur Wiry integral nwltiple thereof on Fehiuary I5 2x16 or any date thereafter at

the par value thereof plus accrued interest 40 the dale of redemption see The Certificates Redemption

MANDATOKY SINKING Funu RNUIMPr1oN Lt addition to heing subject to optional redemption as provided ahove should the

Purchasers select Alternate 2 a comhination of Serial Certificates and Term Certificates the Germ Ccrti6cutcs arc subject to

annual mandatory sinking fund redemption prior to maturity at a price of par plus accrued uuerest to the redemption date From

amounts reyuircd to he depnsircd in dtc Interest and Sinking Fund uu each Februmy15 commencing un the February 1 S following
the immediately preceedutg maturitytrCertificates until the stated maturity fix the Term Certificates The principal amount oC

Term Certificates to he redeemed on each mandatory redemption date shall be the principal amount that would have been due and

payable in the Maturity Schedule shown on page 2 hereof had no conversion ro Tenn Certificates occurred

i



This Ofjieial Statement which inchaderthe cover pnge and the Appendices hereto does no canstihue ara offer to sell ar the

salicitatiat ofan offer to bur in an jurisdiction to and person to whom it is unlawfid to make rack offer solicitation or sale

rr
No dealer brokersalesperson or other person has been muhorized to give irafornration ar to make arty representation of er t art

those cortmined in this Official Stalernent and if given or made sack other ireforrnation or represenmtintas must not be relied

upon

1rr

The information set forth herein has been obtained from the Cftl and other sources believed to be reliable but such information

is nor guaranteed as to acenracv or completeness urtd is Trot to be cnnsaued ur the prvrnise or guarantee of the Financial

Advisor This Official Statement cavaitts in par7 estinuaes and matters of opinion whkh are nut intended as statements offact

rri and no representation is made us to the correctness ofsuch esrirnares and opinions or that they will be realized

The information and expressions of opinion contained herein are subject to change without notice and neither the deliveyof

this Ofjrciul Statement noram sole made hereunder shall under any circumstances create any implication that there has been

ur
no change in the affairs of the City or other matters described
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OFFICA1STATEMENT SUNtV1ARY

This summary is subject in all rspcets to the more complete information and definitions contained or incurpnraud in his Official
Statement The offcrutg of th e Certiticates to potential mvcstars is made only by means of this entire Official Statement No
person is authorized to detach this summary From this Official Slatcmcnt or to otherwise use it without the entire Official
Statement

THE CrrY fhe City of Kenncdale is a political subdivision and municipal corporation of the State located
in Tarram County fcxas The City covers approximately a5 square miles sec Introduction
Description ufCity

TeE CERTtFteTES The Certiticates are issued as551511000 Cumhination Tax and Rcvcnue Certificates of
Oblieation Series 19y8 The Certiticates arc issued as serial certificates maturing on February
l5 in each of the years 2002 through 202d unless the purchaser designates one or more
maturities as a erro Ccrtilicutc see The Certificates Description of the Certificates

PnYmiEnT ox INTEREST Interest on the Certificates accrues from November 1 998 and is payable February I5 2000
and each February IS and August 15 thereafter until maturity or prior redemption see The
Certiticates Description of the Certilicatcs and The Certificates Redemption

AuTeoatTY FoR ISStiANCE The Certificates arc issued pursuant to the gcncral laws of the Stale particularly Sulxxhaptcr C
of Chapter 271 Texas Local Governmcni Code the Certificate of Obligation Act of 1971 as ti
amended and tin Ordinance passed by the City Council of the City see The Certificates
Aulhoriry for Issuance

SECQRiTY FOR THE

ERFteaTES The Certdicates consulate direct ublications of the City payable from a combination of i the few a

and collection of a direct and coninume ad valorem tax within the limits prescribed by law on all
taxable property within the City and ri a limited pledge not n exceed SlAN over the life otthc
Certiticates of surplus net rcacnucs oC the CitysWaterworks and Sewer System Isee The
Certificates Security and SoUreof Payrnen

QUAIlF1EDTAXEXEMPT

OBGGATIONS The City will designate the Certiticates as Qualified faxExempt Obligations t2rr financial
institutions see Tax Matters Qualified TaxExempt Obligations for Financial Institutions

RenEmtrriorr The City reserves the right at its option to redeem the Certiticates maturing on and after
February 15 2007 in whvlc or in part in principal amounts of5000 or any integral multiple
thereof on February I5 200fi or any date thereafter at the par value thereof plus accrued
interest to the date of redemption see lhe Certificates Redcmpiod Additionally the
Certificates may be subject to mandatory redemption in the event the initial purchaser elects to

aggregate one or more maturities as a Term Certificate see The Certificates Mandatory
Sinking Fund Redemption

Twx ExEMrnoty In the opinion of Rond Counsel the interest on the Certificates will be excludable from gross
income for federal income tax purpoecs under existing law subject to the matters described
under the caption Tax Maucrs herein including the alternative minimum tax on corporations

USE OF PRUCNEOS Proceeds from the sale of the Certiticates will he used Ui fi acquire land for and construct a

municipal complex ii acquire and construct certain improvements nr the Cityswater system
iii make irnprovcmcnts to City streets and iv pay costs of issuance associated with the
Certiticates i

RATNiS The presently outstanding tax supported debt of the City is rated Baal by Vloodys Investors
Service Inc Moodys An application for a contract rating on the Certificates has been
made to Vloodyssec Other Intirrmation Ratings

BooKENTRYOntYSvs1eM The definitive Certificates will be initially registered and delivered only to Cedc Co ilre
nominee of DTC pucuant w the 3ookEntryOnly System describai herein Beneficial
ownership of the Certiticates may be aryurred in denominations of 5100 or integral rnultiplcs
th f N h lereo o p ystcu delivery of the Certdicates will be made w the heneicial owners thereof
Pruuipal oG premium it any and interest on the Ccnificates will be payable by the Paying
AgenURegistrar to Cede Co which will mahc distrihutiun of the amounts so paid to the
parlictpating members oC DTC for subscyuent payment to the beneficial owners oC the
Certiticates sec The Certdicates BookEntry Only System

AYMENT RECORn The City has never defaulted in payment of us gcncral obligation tax debt fit

4

I



SELFCTFDFINANCIAL INFORMATION

Fiscal Per Capita General

Year Estimated Taxable Taxable Obligation
Ended City Assessed Assessed GO

9130 Pooulation Valuation Valuation Tax Debt

1995 5065 144406825 28511 114000

1996 5110 155180766 30428 535000

1997 5250 174145309 33L71 5x000

1998 5350 17997677 32149 450000
r

1999 5500 186525778 32149 5550000

1 Source City of Kennedale

2 Includes the Certificates

Ratio

GO

Per Tax Debt

Capita to Taxable 90 of

GOTax Assessed Current Tax

Debt Valuation Collections

2251 008Ic 979970

10490 03490 971790

9524 029 9800070

8411 0269e 97999a
tt
100909 298010 NA

GENERAL FUND CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT SUMMARY

rr Fiscal Year Ended September 30

1998 L997 1996 1995 1994

Beginning Balance 680857 653831 521585 451881 589550

Total Revenue 2738250 2562867 2358845 2041055 182L046

Total Expenditures 2609000 2535841 2685827 1969645 1958715

Net Transfers 459228 1706

Stet Funds Available 129250 27026 326982 71410 f137669

Ending Balance 810107 680857 653831 521585 451881

1 Source Unaudited numbers provided by the City of Kennedale
r

For additional information regarding the City please contact

Lynette Whidden Chris fanning
Director of Finance Mark C Kim

POBox 268 Or First Southwest Company

Kennedale Texas 76060 1700 Pacific Avenue Suite 500

w 8174780351 DaIlas Texas 75201

21495340U

wr

wr

w

trr
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CJTY OFFICIALS STAFF AND CONSUITAVTS

FiIcTeDOrrlctAts

Leneth of

City Council Scricc Tcrtn EXD1rC5 Occupation
Mark Wright 13 Yra 5 Mo 2000 Sales

Manor

Run Kovach 7 Yrs 5 Mo 2001 Management

Mayor Pro Tcm

George Barrett a Yrs 5 Mo 1999 Teacher

Councilman

Nita Vaughn 5 Months 2000 Paralegal
Councilman

John Clark Months 1999 Attorney
Councilman

Perry Hoover l Month I 99 Business Owner

Councilman

SELECTED ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF

Leneth of Local

Service t Govetnmenlal Military
Name Position Cilv Service Service

Ted Rowe City Manager 14 Yrs 5 Mo 21 Years 25 Years

Kathy Turner Ciry Secretary 13 Yrs H Mo

Lynette Whidden Finance Director A Yrs 8 Mo

Michacl Box Public Works Director 6 Yrs 6 Mo 20 Years

Linda Royster Utility Billing Director 21 Yts 2 Mo

CONSOLTANTS AND ADVISORS

Auditors Stovall Grandey Whatley
Fort Worth Texas

Rond Counsel

Financial Advisor

6

McCall Parkhurst 8c Harton LLP

Dallas Texas

First Southwest Company
Dallas Texas

3
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OFFICIAL STATEMENT

RELATING TO

5150000
CTY OF KENNEDALE TEXAS

COMi31NATION TAX AND REVENUE

CEKTIFICATES OF OBLIGATIONSERIES 1995

INTKODUCTION

r

This Official Statement which includes the Appendices hereto provides certain information regarding the issuance of 5150

City of Kennedale Texas Combination fax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation Series 1998 Capitalized terms used in this

Official Statement have the same meanings assigned to such terms in the Ordinance to be adopted on the date of sale of the

yr Certificates which will authorize the issuance of the Certificates except as otherwise indicated herein

There follows in this Official Statement descriptions of the Certficates and certain information regarding the City and its fmances

All descriptions of documents contained herein arc only summaries and arc qualified in their entirety by reference to each such

rr document Copies of such documents may be obtained From the Citys Financial Addvsor Firs Southwest Company Dallas

Texas

DESCRIFPIONoHrHe CITY The City is a political subdivision and municipal corporation of the State duly organized and

rr
existing under the laws of the State including the Citys Home Rule Charter The City was hrcorporated in 1947 and first

adopted its Home Rule Charter in 1998 The City operates under a CouncillManager form of government with a City Council

comprised of the Mayor and Cave Councilmembers The term of office is two years with the terms of the Mayor and two of the

vr
Councilmcmbers terms expiring in evennumbered years and the other terms of the three Councihuembers expiring in

oddnumbered years The City Manager is the chief administrative officer for the City Some of the services that the City provides

are public safety police and fire protection highways and streets water and sanitary sewer utilities health and social services

culturerecreation public transportation public improvements planning and zoning and general administrative services The 1990

Census population for the City was4096 while the estimated 1999 population is 5500 The City covers approximately 45

square miles

THE CERTIFICATES

Descitrrrtoty or rHECEttriricnTFS The Certificates are dated November 1 1998 and mature on February 15 in each of the

years and in the amounts shown on the inside cover page hereof Interest will be computed on the basis of a 360day year of

twehc 30day months and will be payable on February l5 and August 15 commencing February li 2W0 The definitive

Certificates will be issued only in fully registered form in any integral multiple of5000 for any one maturity and will he initially

registered and delivered only to Cede Co the nomhice of The Depository Trust Company DTC pursuant to the Book

EntryOnly System described herein No physical delivery of the Certificates will be made to the owners thereof Principal of

premium if any and interest on the Certificates will be payable by the Paying AgentRcgistrar to Cede e Co which will make

distribution of the amounts so paid to the participathtg members nt DTC for subsequent payment to the beneficial owners of the

Certificates See BookEntryOnlySystem herein

Aurno2rrvFn2 LtisunxcE The Certificates are being issued pursuant to the Constitution and general laws of the State of Texas
wr

particularly Sulchapter C of Chapter 271 Texas LocalGvemmem Code the Certificate of Obligation Act of 1971 as amcnde an

m Orditancc passed by the City Council

SecuturvnND Sonata or PAVntrNTAlltaxable property within the City is suljeet to a contilruuig direct annual ad valorem tax

levied by the City sufficient to provide for dre payment of principal uland interest on all obligations payable ur whole or nr part Gom ad

valorem taxes which tax must 6e levied within linrits presedhed by law Additiomdly the Certificates arc payable from and secured by a

pledge of surplus net revenues of the CitysWaterworks and Sewer System provided such pledge is limited to an tunountof1OW over

r the lift of the issue au provided in the Ordinance authorizing the Certificates

Ins RATE LmuTArxxvAll taxable property within the City is subject to the assessment levy and collection by the City of a

continuing direct annual ad valorem tax sufficient to provide for the payment of principal of and interest on all ad valorem tax debt

r within the limits prescribed by law The City operates under the general laws of the State of Texas as authorized by Article XI

Section 5 of the Texas Constitution which limits the maximum tax rate n250 per100 Assessed Valuation for all City

purposes The Citys home rule charter adopts the constitutional tax rate limitation of 250 per 10t1 Assessed Valuation

Admniistratively the Attorney General of the State of Texas will permit allocation of1Uof the 250 maximumtax rate for all

General Obligation Debt based on 90r7e tax collection
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RFDFmPCION The City reserves hc rieht at its option ki redeem he Cialilicates mntudm un and aier Fehiuary I5 207 in whole
or in pint m principal amounts of5000 or any integral multiple thereof un Fchnmry 15 2006 or any date thereatier at the par value
thereof plus acctcd interest m the date of rcdempton

MANDATORY SINKING FUND RFUEmIr10N In addition to being subject to optional redemption as provided above should he
Purchasersselect Alternate 2 a combination of Senal Ccrtilicates and Term Ccrtilicates the Term Ccrtilicates are subject to

annual mandatory sicking fund redemption prior m maturity at a price of par plus accrued interest to the redemption date from
amounts required to be deposited in the Interest and Sinking Fund on cash February I5 commencing on tine February 15 linllowing
the immediately proceeding maturity far Ccrtilicates until the stated maturity for the Term Certificates The principal amount of
Term Ccrtilicates to he ralcemed un each mandatory redemption date shall he the principal amount that would have been due and
payable in the Maturity Schedule shown on page 2 hereof had nu conversion to Term Certificates occurred

The principal amount of Term Certilicales required to he redeemed pursuant to the operation of such mandatory redemption
provisions may be reduced at the option of the City by the principal amount of Tcrm Certificates of the same maturity which i
shall have been acquired by the City at least 50 days prior to the redemption data at a price not exceeding the principal amount of
such TcrmCertificates plus accrued interest to the dale of purchase and dehvercd to the Paying AgentRegistrar for cancellation or

ishall have been redeemed pursuant to the optional redemption provision described above and not theretolbrc credited against a

mandatory redemption reyuirement

NOTIIE of RBDFmIrIONNot less than 30 days prior to a redemption date for the Ccrtificutcs the City shall cause a notice of
redemption to be sent by United States mail first class postaec prepaid to the registered owners of the Ccrtilicates w he
redeemed in whole or in part at the address of the registered owner appearing nn the registration books of the Paying
AgentRegistrar at the close of business un the business day next preceding the date of mailing such notice ANY NOTICE SO
MAILED SHALL BE CONCLUSIVELY PRESUMED IY HAVE BEEN DULY GIVEN WHETHER OR NOT THE
REGISTERED OWNER RECEIVES SCCH NOTICE NOTICE HAVING BEEN SO GIVEN THE CERTIFICATES CALLED
FOR REDEMPTION SHALL BECOME DUE AND PAYABLE ON THE SPECIFIED REDEMPTION DATE AND
NOTWITHSTANDING THAT ANY CERTIFICATE OR PORTION THEREOF HAS NOT BEEN SURRENDERED FOR
PAYMENT INTEREST ON SUCH CERTIFICATE OR PORTIONTHEREOF SHALL CEASE TO ACCRUE

BooKENreYONvSystem The Depository Trust Company DTC New York Ncw York will act as sccuritics
depository for the Certlticates The Ceruhcates wdl be issued as fully registered sccuritics registered in the name of Cede Co
DTCspartnership nontitee One fullyregistcrcd certificate will he issued for oath maturity of the Certificates in the aggregate
principal amount of each such mamricy and will be deposited with DTC

DTC is alimitedpurpose trust company organized under the New York Banking Law a hankitg organization within the
meaning of the New York Bankine Law a member of the Federal Reserve System a fleeting corporation within the meaning of
the New York Uniform Commercial Cudc and a clcanng agency registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 DTC holds securities that its participants Direct Participants deposit with DTC DTC also
facilitates the settlement among Participants of sccuritics transactions such as transfers and pledges in deposited sccuritics
through electronic computerized bookentrychanges in Participants accounts thereby elirninuting the need for physical movement

of securities certificates Direct Participants include sccuritics brokers and dcalms hanks trust companies clewing corporations
and certain other organizations DTC is owned by a number of its Direct Partiapants and by the New York Stock Exchange Inc
the American Stock Exchange Inc and the National Association of Securities Dealers Inc Access to the DTC system is also
avaIlablc to others such as securities brokers and dealers hanks and trust companies that clear through or maintain a custodial
relationship with a Direct Participant either directly or inducctly Indicet ParnctpansThe Rules applicable to DTC and its
Participants are on file with the Securities and Exchengc Commission

Purchases of Ccrtilicates under the DTC system must be made by or through DTC Paructpants which will receive a credit Cur

such purchases on DTCs records The ownership interest of each actual putchaser of each Certificate Beneficial Ownetiis in
turn to be recorded un the Direct ur Indirect Participants records Beneficial Owners will nut receive written am6rmation from
DfC of their purchase but Beneficial Owners are expected to receive written confirmations providing details of the transaction as

well as periodic statements of their holdings from the Direct nr ndtrect Participant through which the Beneficial Owner entered
into the transaction Transfers of ownership interest in the Ccrtilicates are to be accomplished by entries made on the books of

Participants acting on behalf oC Beneficial Owners Beneficial Ownets will not receive certificates representing their

ownership interests in the Certificates except in the event that use of the bookentry system described herein is
discontinued rx

To facilitate subseyucm transiers all Certificates deposited by Diect Participants with DTC are registcrcd in the name of DTCs
partnership nominee Cede Co The deposit of Certificates with DTC and theft registration in the name of Cede Co effect no

a

change in beneficial ownership DTC has no kratwledeof the actual Beneficial Ownet s of the Certificates DTCs records retied
only the identity of the Direct Participants to whose accounts such Certilicales arc credited which may or may not be the
Beneficial Owners The Participants will remain responsible fc r keepn ace n nt of their holdines on behalf of their customers

r
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Conveyance of notices and other communications by DCC to Duect Participants by Direct Participants to Indiree Participants

and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by arrangements among them subject to

any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in et7cct from time to time

Neither DCC nor Cede Co will consent or vote with respect to the Certificates Under its usual procedures DTC mails an

Omnibus Proxy to the City as soon as possible after flit Record Date hereinafter defined The Omnibus Proxy assigns Ccde

rrr Cos consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to whose accounts the Certificates are credited on the Record Datc

identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy

Principal and itteresr payments on flit Certificates will he made to DTC DTCs practice is to credit Direct Participants accounts

rrr on each payable date in accordance with thci respective holduigs shown on DTCs records unless DTC has reason to believe that

it will not receive payment on such payable date Payments by Participants o Beneficial Owners will he governed by standing

instructions and customary practices as is the case with securities held foe the accounts of customers in bearer form or registered

in street name and will he the responsibility oC such Participant and not of DTC the Paying AgenURegistrar or the City subject

to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time Payment of principal and interest to DfC is the

responsibility of the City disbursement of such payments to Direct Participants shall be the responsibility of DTC and

disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial Owners shall be the responsibility of Direc and Induect Participants

DfC may discominue providing its services as securities depository with respect u the Certificates at any time by giving

reasonable notice to flit City Under such circumstances in the event that a successor securities depository is not obtained

Certificates arc required to he panted and delivered

rr
flit City may decide to discontinue use of the system oY bookenvy transfers through DTC or a successor securities depository

In that event Certiticatcs will be printed and delivered

Use ofCertain Terms in Other Sections of this Official Statement In reading this Official Statement it should be understood that

while the Certificates are in the BookEntryOnly System references in other sections of this Official Statement to registered

owners should he read to include the person for which flit Participant acquires an interest in the Certificates but i all rights of

ownership must be exercised through DTC and flit BookEntryOnlySystem and ii except as descrihed above notices shat are

to be given to registered owners under flit Ordinance will be given only to DTC

DTC has established a Ycur 2000 Project Office and will provide information concerning DTCs year 2000 compliance to persons

requesting such iilormation The address is as follows The Depository Trust Company Year 20OD Project Office 55 Water

Street Ncw York New York 1004 L Telephone numbers for the DTC Year 2000 Project Office are 2l2 8558068 and 212

855888 L In addition information concerning DTCs Year 2000 compliance can be obtained from its website at the following

address wwwdtcorg

Information concerning DTC and the BookEntry System has been ohtained from DTC and is not guaranteed as to accuracy or

completeness by and is not to be construed as a representation by flit City or the Purchasers

ppvtyc AcetvTRFttsTwaa The initial Paying AgenURegistrar is US Trust Company of Texas NA Dallas Texas In the

Ordinance the City retains flit right to replace flit Paying AgenURegistrar The City covenants to maintain and provide a Paying

AgcnURegistrar at all times omit flit Certificates are duly paid and any successor Paying AgenURegistrar shall he a commercial

bank or trust company organised under flit laws of the State of Texas or other entity duly qualified and legally authorized to serve

as and perform the duties and services of Paying AgenURegistrar for the Certificates Upon any change m the Paying

AgenURegistrar for flit Certiticatcs the City agrees to promptly cause a written notice thereof to he sent to each registered owner

of Une Certificates by United States mail fast class postage prepaid which notce shall also give the address of flit new Paying

AgcnlRegistrar
rr

TNgtiHK ExNNtrAtopRtctsraattoN In the event the BookEntryOnlySystem should be discontinued the Certificates

may heuanslenedand exchanged tin the registration books of the Paying AgenURegistrar only upon presentation and surrender to

the Paying AgenURegistrar and such transfer or exchange shall be without expense or service charge to the rcgtstered owner

except for any tax ur other governmental charges required to be paid with respect to such registration exchange and transfer

Certificates may be assigned by the execution of an assignment form on the respective Certificates or by other instrument of

transfer and assignment acceptable to the Paying AgentRegistrar New Certificates will be delivered by the Paying

AgenURegistrar in lieu of the Certiticatcs being transferred or exchanged at the designated oftlce of the Paying AgenURegistrar

r
or sent by Cnited States mail first class postage prepaid ui the new registered owner or his designee To the extent possible new

Cenilcates issued in an exchange or transfer of Certificates will be delivered to the registered owner or assignee of the registered

owner in not more than three business days after the receipt of the Ccniticates to be canceled and the written instrument of

transfer or rcyuest for exchange duly executed by flit registered owner or his duly authorized agent in form satisfactory to flit

Paying AgendRegistrur New Certificates registered and delivered in an exchange or transfer shall be in any integral multiple of

5000 fur any one maturity and for a like aggregate principal amount as the Certificates surrendered for exchange or transfer See

BookEntryOnlySystem herein Yor a description of the system to be utilized initially ii regard to ownership and transferability

of he Certificates
g



RCCORI UAPF FOR INTFRFSTPAYMENT The record dale YZecurd Date for he interest payahle on the Certificates on anyinterest payment date means the close ul business on the lass business day of the preceding month

In the event of anonpayment of utterest on a scheduled payment date and for 30 days thereafter a new record date Ior suchinterest payment a Special Ricord Date will be established by the Paying AgentRcgistrar if and when funds tier the paymentof such interest have heen received from the City Notice uC the Special Record Date and of the scheduled payment date of thepast due interest Special Payment Date which shall he 15 days atier tha Special Record Date shall be sent at least live busuiessdays prior to the Special Record Date by United States moil first class postage prepaid to the address of each Holder of aCertificate appearing on theigislraiun books of the Payinc AganURegistrur at the close of business on the last business day nextpreceding he date of maihng of such notice

BONIItOL11EN5RFNIEIHES The Orduiancc does not establish spccdic events of default with respect to the Certilicats finderState law there is no right ro the acceleration of maturity of the Certificates upon the failure of the City to observe any covenantunder the Ordinance Aldrough a registered ownerof Certificates could presumably obtain a judgment against the Ciry if a defauhoccurred in the payment of principal of or interest on any such Certificates such judgment could not be satisfied by executionagainst any property of the City Such registered owners only prnrtical remedy if a default occurs is a mandamus or mandatoryutjunetion proceeding to compel the City to levy assess and collect an annual ad valorem tax sufticiem to pay principal of andinterest on the Ceailieates as it becomes due The enlircement of any such remedy may he ditIicult and time consuming and aregistered owner could be required to enforce such remedy on a periodic basis The Ordinance dues nut provide for theappointment of a trustee w represent the interests ul the bondholders upon any laihire of the City to pertinn in accordance withthe terms of the Ordinance ur upon any other condition Furthermore the City is eligible to seek relief from its creditors underChapter 9 of the US Bankruptcy Codc Although Chapter 9 provides fur the recognition oC a security interest represented by aspecifically pledged source of revenues the pledge of taxes al support of a general obligation of a hankrupt entity is not specificallyrecognized as a security interest under Chapter 9 Chapter 9 also includes an automatic stay provision that would prohibit withoutBankruptcy Court approval the prosccutiun of any other Icgal action by creditors or bondholders of an entity which has soughtprotection under Chapter 9 Therefore shotdd the City avml itself oC Chapter 9 protection from creditors the ability to enforcewould he subject w the approval of the Bankruptcy Court which could require that the action 6c heard in Bankruptcy Courtinstead of other federal or state court and the Bankruptcy Codc provides fbr hroad discrcuunary powers of a Bankruptcy Courtin administering any proceeding brought hefure it The opinion of Bund Counsel will note that all opinions relative to theenforceability of the Ordinance and the Certificates arc qualified with respect to the customary rights of debtors relative to theircreditors

USE of CERTFeATEPROCFEU5 Proceeds from the sale of the Certificates will be used toiacquire land far and constructa municipal complex ii acquire and construct certain improvements fur the Citys water system iiimake improvements to theCity streets and iv pay costs of issuance associated with the Certilieates
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TAX INFORMATION

Au VatoamTax Law The appraisal of properly withitt the City is the responsibility oC the Tarrant County Appraisal Distract the
rr

Appraisal Disuici fixchtdutc agricultural and openspace land which may be taxed un the basis of productive capacity the Appraisal
District is required under the Pnpcrty Tax Code to appraise all property within the Appraisal District on the basis of 1009 of its market

value and is prohibited from applying any assessment ratios In determining market value of property different methods of appraisal may

he used including the cos method of apptaisal the income method of appraisal acid market data comparison method o appraisal and the

method considered must appropriate by the chief appraiser is to be used State law further limits he appraised value oC a residence

homestead fur a tax year to tut amount not to exceed the less oflthe market value of the property or 2 the sum of a 107 of the

appraised value of the property for the last year ut which the property was appraised for taxation times the number of years since the

ra property was last appraised plus b the appraised value of the propctty far the last year in which the property was appraised plus c the

market value of all new improvements to the property The value placed upon property within the Appraisal District is subject to review

by an Appraisal Review BoaticunsLsting of three members appointed by the Board of Directors of the Appraisal District The Appraisal
District is required ut review the value of property within the Appraisal District at least every three years The City may require annual

review at its own expense and is entitled to challenge the detemvnation of appraised value of property within the City by petition filed

with the Appraisal Review Board

Relerencc is made to the VTCA Propcrty Tax Code for idenntication of property subject to taxation property exempt or which may
be exempted Frum taxation if claimed the appraisal uI property for ad valorem taxation purposes and the procedures and limitations

applicable to the levy and collection of ad valorem taxes

Article VIII of the State Constitution Article VIII and State law provide for certain exemptions from property taxes the valuation of

agricultural and openspace lands at productivity value and the exemption of certain personal property from ad valorem taxation

Under Section Ih Article VIII and State law the governing body of a political subdivision at its option may grmtt 1 An exemption
of not less ban 3t1Rof the market value of the residence homestead of persons 65 years of age or older and the disabled from all ad

valorem taxes therealtec levied by the political subdivision 2 An exemption of up ut 20k of the market value of residence homesteads

The minimum exemption under this provision is5000

rr In the case of residence homestead exemptions granted under Section 1b Article VIII ad valorem taxes may continue to be

levied against the value oC homesteads exempted where ad valorem taxes have previously been pledged fur the payment of debt if

cessation of the Icvy would impair the obheation of the contract by which the debt was created

rir State law and Section 2 Article VIII mandate an additional property Lax exemption for disabled veterans or the surviving spouse or

children of a deceased veteran who died while on active duty in the armed forces the exemption applies to either real or personal
property with the mnount of assessed valuation exempted ranging liom5000 to a maximumof 12W0

w Article VIII provides that eligible owners of both agdcuhural land Section 1d and openspace land Section 1d1including
openspace land devoted to faint or ranch purposes or openspace land devoted to timber production may elect to have such property

appraised for property taxation on the basis of its productive capacity The same land may not be qualified under both Section Id and

IdI
rr

Vonbusincss personal property such as automobiles or light trucks arc exempt from ad valorem taxation unless he governing body of a

political subdivision elects to tax this property Boats owned as nonbusiness property are exempt from ad valorem taxatiou

tr

Article VIII Section 1jprovides for freeport property to be exempted from ad valorem taxation Freeport property is dcftncd as

goods detained in Texas for 175 days or less for the purpose of assembly storage manufacturhtg processing or fabrication Decisions to

continue to tax may be reversed in the future decisiotvs to exempt freeport property are not subject to reversal

err

The City and the other taxing bodies within its territory may agree to jointly create lax increment financing zones under which the tax

values on property in the zone are frozen at the value of the property at the time of creation of the zone The City also nay enter into

tax abatement agreements to encourage economic development Coder the agreements a propeny owner agrees wconstruct certain

rr improvements on its pmperty The City in tom agrees not to levy a tax on all or part of the increased value attributable tit the

unprovements until the expiration othe agreement Tte abatement agreement could last for a period of up W 10 years

EeFFCTrve Tax RATE arro RotaaccTax Rare By each September 1 or as soon thereafter as practicable the City CouncH

r adopts a tux rate per 1fN taxable value for the current year The tax rate consists of two components 1 a rate for funding ul

maintenance and operation expenditures and 2 a rate fur debt service

Under the Property Tax Code the City must annually calculate and publicize its effective tax rate and rollback tax rate The

City Council may notadopt a tax rate that exceeds the prior years levy until it has held a public hearing on the proposed increase

following notice to the taxpayers and otherwise complied with the Property Tax Code If the adopted tax rate exceeds the

rollback tax rate the qualified voters of the Ciry by petition may rcyuire that an election be held to determine whether or nut to

r
reduce the tax rate adopted for the current year to the rollback tax rate

I1
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Effective tas rate means the rate that will produce last years total tax Icvy adjusted from this years total losable values

adjusted Adjustd means lost values are not included in the calculation ut last years taxes and new values arc not included in

this years taxable values

Rollback tax rate means the rate that will produce last yearsmaintenance and operation tax Icvy adjusted from this years
values adjusted muhiplicd by 108 phu a rate that will produce this years debt service Crom this years values unadjusted
divided by the anticipated tax collection rate

The Property Tax Code provides that certain cities and counties in the State may submit a proposition to the voters to authorize an

additional ouehall veal sales tax on retail sales of taxable items If the additional tax is levied the effective tax rate and the
rollback tax rate calculations arc rcyuircd to be offset by the revenue that will he generated by the sales tux in the current year

Reference is made to the Property Tax Code lbr definitive rcyuirements fur the levy and collection of ud valorem taxes and the
calculation of the various detined tax rates

PROPERTY ASSFSSNIBNrANU TAX PAYM1hN1 PrUperty within Che Clly i5 general assessed a5 0l January 1 Of each year
Business inventory may at the option of the taxpayer he assessed us of September Oil and as reserves arc assessed un the basis
of a valuation process which uses an average of the daily price uloil and eas 6x the prior year Taxes become due October I of
the same year and become delinquent on February l of tho tiilluwing year taxpayers 65 years old or older are permitted by State
law to pay faxes on homcstcads in tiur installments with the first due on Fehniary I of each year and the ling installmcm due on

August 1

PHNnEtes nrvu rvTEaEST Charges for penalty and interest on the unpaid balance of delinquent taxesarc made as follows

Cumulative Curnulativc

Month Penalty Lucrest Total

February h I 77
March 7 2 y

April 8 3 I 1

May 9 4 13
June IU l5

July 12 6 l8

AfterJuly penalty remains at 12c and interest hrereases at the rate of 1 I each month In addition if an account is dclinyuen in
July a LSIc attorneyscollection fee is added to the total tax penalty and interest charge Cnder certain circumstances taxes

which become delinquent on the homestead of a taxpayer 65 years old nr older incur a penalty of 87 per annum with no additional
penalties or interest assessed ngeneral property subject to the CitysLien may he sold in whole or in parcels pursuant to court

order to collect the amounts due Federal law does not allow for the collection of penalty and interest against mr estate in
bankruptcy Federal bankruptcy law provides that an automatic stay of action by creditors and other entities includuig
guvernmemal units goes into effect with the Cling of any petition inbankruptcy The autrmatic stay prevents governmental units

from foreclosing on property and prevents liens for postpetition taxes from attaching to property and obtaining secured creditor
status unless in either case an order lilting he stay is obtained from the bankruptcy court In many cases post petition taxes arc

paid as an administrative expense of the estate in bankruptcy or by order of the bankruptcy court

CrrYAIIIdCATION of TaX COUE The City grants an exemption to the marker value of the residence homestead of persons 65

years of age orolder of 50OOll hc disabled are also granted an exemption of 50000

The City has not Granted un additional exemption of 209r of the market value of residence homesteads minimum excrnption of
5000

r t

See Table l for a listing of the amounts of the exemptions described above

Ad valorem taxes are nut levied by the City against the exempt value of residence homcstcads for drepamen of dehl since the
City does not allow homestead exemptions

The City does nut tax nonbusiness personal property

The City does permit split payments and discounts are not allowed

The City does not tax Freeport property

The City does collect the additional onehalfcent sales tax for reduction of ad valorem taxes

12
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TAX AIiATEMENrPoLlcv On November l4 1991 the City established a tax ahatemcnt program to encourage economic

development In order to he considered for tax abatement a project must meet several criteria pertaining o job creation and

property value enhancement The City reviews each ahatemcnt request on a casebycasebasis Projects could be eligible for a tax

abatement of up to IIOc7o for a period of ten years The value of property subject to abatement is shown in Table 1

TABLE 1 VALUATION EXEMPTIONS AND GENERAL BLti4TON DERT
11

199899Market Valuation Established by Tarrant County Appraisal District

excluding totally exempt properly
201896563

Less ExemptionsReductions at 100k Market Value

Residential Homestead Exemptions 8

Disabled Veterans 206499

Agricultural Use Reductions 3026396

Freeport Exemptions 3583036

Over 65Disabled 8551457

Nominal Value Loss 3397 15370785

199899Net Taxable Assessed Valuation 186525778

General Obligation Debt Payable from Ad Valorem Taxes as of November 1 1998

r General Obligation Debt 450000

fhc Certificates
SLi0000

General Obligation Debt Payable from Ad ValoremIaxcs 5600000

General Obligation Interest and Sinking Fund as of September 30 1997 L2059

Ratio General Ohligation Tax Debt to Taxable Assessed Valuation 3Ie

r

1999 Estimated Population 5500

Per Capita Taxable Assessed Valuation 33914

Pcr Capita Funded Debt 1018

rr

r

r

r

r

r

w

r
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TABLF 2 TAXABLE ASSFSFIUVALUALKNtiNY CArIGURY

Taxable A noised V htc Fur Fiscal Year Ended Se tembcr 30

1991 L998 1997
7r of 7r of 9 01

CateQOry Amoum Tolat Amount Total Amount Total
Keel Residential SingleFamily S 92171670 4i 659 85839677 45109 7ZI 87579 41 33I
Real Residemial VlulliFamily I L829321 58i7 ll321540 5957 11624364 6329r
Real VacantLotsTracts 61X6778 3OU 5684732 2J97 5440621 2919
Real Acreage Land Only 3636873 18054 4044171 2127 362710 307I
Real Farm and Ranch Improvements 2468742 II x570357 1357 2439177 L319
Real Commercial 18247562 y04r 15y32d61 837I 16 36Q277 8 76r
Real Industrial I I A93207 569L L094888R 57570 RR23 119 4729
Real and Tangible Personal Dtilitics 16019529 7939 15352025 8079 14622573 7837r
Tangible Personal Commercial 11530435 571i 11885040 647c III f 73 6009
Tangihle Personal Industrial 27103407 13427 26051754 13699 3x077564 1825
Tangible Personal Other 21889 OOI S 33604 0027 35305 0027
Tangible Personal Mohile Homes 513950 025I 503670 1269 517806 087
Real Property Invcnuvv

1n
793200 0397 171600 00970 554760 0307

Total Appraised Value Before Exemptions 201896563 100007 190339519 100007r 186757128 lUU007
Less Total ExcmptiunslReductions 15370785 18341842 12611819
Net Value 18652178 5 171997677 174 149 309 a

Taxable Appraised Value for Fiscal Year Ended September 30
1996 1995

i ul 9ul
Cateorv Amount Total Amount Total

Real Residentitll SingleFamily 75259124 42539c 70654 524 42 9970
Real Residential MultiFamily 11398625 644I 8787006 535
Real Vacant LotsTracts 5294373 9901 5490618 3347

Real Acrcagc Land Only 427772 1949 x101 964 18970
Real Farm and Ranch Improvements 3 129 261 1207 1 971 061 1 209
RealCommcrcial 11178227 9J47 14870165 9057
Real Industrial 6545716 370 6753615 411I

Real and Tangible Personal Utilities 4357459 8119 14563682 8867

Tangible Personal Commercial 10712449 6057 7995705 4877
Tangihle Personal Industrial 30642778 7327c 29376932 17879

Tangible Persona Other 35940 01127r 25871 Q029

Tangible Personal Mohile Humes S I I 552 0y9 43941 027

RealPropertvlnventorvl 474850 0279 319240 0197
Toa1Appraised Value Belure Exemptions 176968126 IIN1009 LCr1349623 IOOOOI

Less Total ExcmpiolasReductions 217873611 19942798
Taxable Assessed Value 155180766 144406835

1 Reul inventory properties in the hands of developers ar builders each group of properties in this category is appraised on the
basis of its value as a sole to another developer or builder This categoy initiated in 1988

NOTE Valuations shown arc certified taxable assessed values reported by the Tarrant County Appraisal District to the State P
Comptroller of Public Accounts Certified values arc subject to change throughout the year as contested values arc resolved and
the Appraisal District updates records
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TABLE 3 VALUATION AND rsFlNlKAIOBLIGATION DIRT HISTORY

Ratio of

GO GO

Per Capita Tax Debt Tax Debt Per

Fiscal Estimated Taxahlc Taxable Outstanding to Taxable Capita

Year City Assessed Assessed At End Assessed GOTax

nded Pooulationt Valuation PerCaaita of Year Valuation Debt

1995 5065 144406825 28511 114000 008a 2251

1996 5100 155180766 3Q428 535000 034Ea 10490

1997 5250 174145309 33171 SOQO110 029 9524

1998 5350 171997677 32149 450000 0267 8411

1999 5500 186525778 33914 5550000
t

2980 100909
r

1 Source City of Kennedale

2 As reported by the Tarrant County Appraisal District nn Citys annual State Proper ty Tax Board Reports subject to change

during the ensuing year
3 Includes the Certiticates

TABLE Q TAX RATE LEVY ANU CO LLECTION HISTORY

i

Fiscal In teresc

Year and

Ended Tax Gcncral Sinking Ie Current o Total
I

930 Rale Fund Fuud Tax Levv Collections Collections

1995 50562514 0500269 0062245 812309 97999c 10L24

1996 11582525 0525856 0056669 903967 9717 9990r

1997 0578077 0529473 0048604 IH16694 9R00 101R27

1998 06000N 0550544 0049456 1031986 9797a 101123

1999 0611377 0566296 0045081 1140376 NA NA

wr

TARLF S TEN LARGEST TAXPAYERS tl

199798 yo of Total

Taxablc Taxable
wll

Assessed Assessed

Name of taxpayer Nature of Property Valuation Valuation

Heidelberg Harris Inc Printing press manufacturing 17L57050 998 sic
wr

Southwestern Bell Telephone utility 9419238 548

Fwt Inc Radiotelephone tower manu facturing 5760000 335

Texas Utilities Elechic Co t ectric utility 4721655 275

rrr Chase Elastomcr Corp Rubber compounds 2726463 159

Speed Fah Crete Corp Intl Manufacturingbuilding 24272119 141

faalwood Apartments Co Ltd Real Estate apartments 1948421 L l3

ar Ma Hanna Co Industrial 1798588 105

Sovran Acyuisition Ld Prtshp Commercial 1282461 075

Storage Trust Properties Commercial 89 L565 052

48132650 2798

I 1998199 Top Ten Taxpayers not available at this tune

GENEK4I OBLIGATION DEBT LIMITATION No general obligation debt limitation is imposed on the City under current State

law or the CitysHome Rule Charter see tax Ratc Limitation

r LS



r
TABLE 6 TAx AurQuacY

1999 Principal and Interest Rcuuircmcnts 732411
00414 Tax Ratc at 959 Collection Produces 73360

Average Annual Principal and Interest Requirements 1999 2024 369623

02086 Tax Ratc at 959 Collccuon Produccs S 369638

TABLF 7 ESTIMATED OVERLAPPING DEBT

Expenditures of the various taxutg entities within the territory of the City are paid out of ad valorem taxes levied by such emitics
nn properties within the City Such entities are independent of Utc City and may incur borrowings to finance their expenditures
This statement of direct and estimated overlapping ad valorem tax bonds1ax Debt was developed from information contained
in Texas Municipal Reports pubhshed by the Municipal Advisory Council of Texas Except 1or the amounts relatine to the City
the City has not independently verified the accuracy or completeness of such information and no person should rely upon such
information as being accurate or complete Furthermore certain of the entities listed may have issued additional bonds since the
date hereol and such entities may have programs requiring the issuanceolsubstantilamounts of additional bonds the amount ul
which cannot he determined The followin table re0ccts the estimated share of overlapping Tax Debt of the City

Citys
Overlapping

1998rX Total fax Authorocd

Ttixahic Ir8tXI Tix Fstimatai Suplxirted But Unissued

Avcsud Tax Supponed 9 Lxbt Debt as Of

TaxinaJutisdiction Value Rale Debt Applicable Asofll198 IlI98

City ofKennec4de 186525778 0611377 SCMOIxl7iML1lrlc SfiNIOtNI S 0

KennedalelndependentSchtxilDistrict 391ySa6 L665641 556600 446790 2486332 0

Fors Worltt Indcperaicnt Scha1District 12716080432 L485AM 11Y3795118 0029 20759 0

TamantCounry 54553465696 02Cr4836 18381899 034k 538498 500000

Tarrant County HospitalDistria 54553465696 i234tYT0 4ZL94987 0340 160463 0

Tarrant County JuniorCllegeDistrict 5524J1761 OIIXtil10 96681345 0349c 328717 0

Total Direct md Overlapping Tax Suprted LkM

Ratio of Direct and Overlapping Tax Supported Debt tofaxable Assecd Valuation

Per Capita Overlapping Tax Suppoaec9 L bt

1 ncludes the Certificates

l6

9134769

4907r

Ifi6lt7

r

a
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DEBT INFORMATION

TABLE PROFORMA GENERAL OBLIGATION DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS
rr

Fiscal Total

Year Debt 90 of

r Ending Outstandine Debt
o

This5150000 Issuec Service Principal

9130 Principal interest Total Pcincitral Interest Total Reuuiremcnts Rctircd

1999 50000 23240 73240 73240

2000 55000 19738 74738 439657 439657 514395

2001 55000 16645 71645 245771 245771 3 L7416 290

2002 60000 13963 73963 65000 243919 308919 382881

2003 65000 10848 75848 65000 240214 305214 381061
wr 2004 50000 7473 57473 160000 233801 393801 451274

2005 55000 4728 51728 17Q000 224396 394396 454124 15290

2006 6Q000 1635 61635 180000 215771 395771 457406

21107 185000 208014 393014 393014

2fR18 190000 199904 389904 389904

2009 200000 19L371 391371 391371

2010 210000 182299 392299 392299 3350I
rrl 2011 225000 172564 397564 397564

2012 2300H 162298 392298 392298

2013 240000 151634 391634 391634

2014 250000 140455 390455 390455
r

2015 26Q000 128756 388756 388756 55090

2016 275000 116383 391383 391383

2017 290000 103101 393101 39301

r 2018 305000 88894 393894 393894

2019 320000 73814 393814 393814

2020 335000 57588 392888 392888 822010

2021 350000 41148 391148 39L148

2022 205000 27396 232396 232396

2023 215000 16791 231791 231791

2024 225000 5681 230681 230681 100 090

rr 450000 8 98268 548268 5150000 3911920 9061920 9610187

1 Outstanding Debt does not include leasepurchase obligations
2 Average life of the issue 15885 years Interest on the Certificates has been calculated ut the rate of470 for purposes of

IDustration

TABLE INTEREST ANll SINKING FUND BURET PROJECTION

Tax Supported Debt Service Requirements Fiscal Year Ending93099 g 73240
Interesland Sinking Fund93097 12059

Interest and Sinking Fund Tax Levy C 9590 Collection 79883 91942

Estimated Balance93099 18702

AuTeolzlrED BuT tiNlssoeD GENERa OBLIGATION BONDS The City does not have any authorized but unissued Gcncral

Ohligation Bonds

ANTICIPATED ISSUANCE OF GENERAL OBLIGATION DEBT The City does not anticipate the issuance of additional general
ohlieation debt within the next twelve months

OTHER OBWGA1IONSThe City currently maintains a lease agreement for radio equipment The amine payments are

4598682and the lease will expse in May 2003

yr PENSION FUND The City provides pension benefits for all of its fullthne employees through the Texas Municipal Retirement

System fMRS a Statewide administered pension plan The City makes annual contributions to the plan equal to the amounts

accrued for pension expense For more detailed information concerning the retirement plan see Appendix B Excerpts from the

Citys Annual Financial Report Note 7
r

l7
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION

TnnLe 10 CHveeai FUND RxvsrruHS avuExrtnurruwHsroev

Fiscal Year Ended September 30

1998 1197 1906 1995 1994

Rrkenues

Taxes x1825314 170615 1651 519 154360 513436211

Licenses and Permits 90264 89529 85809 53584 47869
InR rgovemmental I5967 146127 123651 123948 l 19845

Charges forScrviccs 327889 298046 216680 128768 84316

Fine and Forlcitures 196584 179J 12 156733 128344 1223211

Interest 61231 50460 46681 42257 19776

Miscellaneous 77711 93436 77772 39794 83300

Total Revenues 2738350 S 562867 2358845 204LD55 1821046

Fvnnniitnrnc
p

CULTent

General Government 727574 5 605966 492059 5 425698 417093
Police 829798 838131 763304 716397 704178
Fire 495302 432707 350553 321759 331797
Public Works 478J80 482969 465285 361827 376476

Culture and Recrcatiou 77546 90467 64121 52155 39164

Capital Outlay 403753

Deht service

Principal retirement 65487 79986 79987 78987

Lnterest and fiscal charges 201 15 6765 8822 1 L020
Total Expenditures 2601N10 3535841 S2685827 1969645 1958715

Automotive Sub Fund X S

Operating Transfer Nct 459228 17061

Total OtYier Sources Uses 459228 1706

Excess Deficiency of

Revenues Over

Expenditures and

Other Sources Uses 129250 27026 S 132246 69706 137669

Beginning Fund Balance 680859 653833 52 L587 45188 1 589550

Ending Fund Balance 5 81009 x 681859 653833 52L587 451881

lUnaudited

r
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TARLE 11 MUNICIPAL SALES TAX HISTORY

w The City has adopted the Mucucipal Sales and Use Tax Act VATCS Tax Code Chapter321 which grants the City the power to impose
arnl levy a lrc LrxaL Sales and Use Tax within the Ciry the proceeds are credited w the Gcncral Fund and arc not pledged to the

payment of the Certificates Collections and enforcements areeffected through the offices of the Comptroller of Public Accounts State

of Texas who remits the proceeds of the tax after deduction of a 2rh service fee to the City monthly On August 13 1987 the voters of

tiw the Ciry approved the imposition oC alt additional salts and use taxofonehalfof one percent Yx7r of 1 X90 for property tax reduction

Fiscal

Year Ic of Equivalent of
it

Ended Total Ad Valorem Ad Valorem Per

93U Collected Tax Levv Tax Rate Capita

1994 S 365802 499470 00025 8579

1995 439758 5440 00030 8682

1996 466848 5191 00030 9154

1997 462963 4431ry0 00027 8818

1998 582213 557 00034 10882
w

FINANCIAL POLICIES

BasisoAccrunrin The modified accrual basis of accuunlitg is followed by the governmental funds These revenues are

recognized when susceptible to accrual ieboth measurable and available Available means collectible within the current period
or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of current period Expenditures other than interest on Longterm debt are

recorded when the liability is incurred if measurable Interest on Inngterm debt is recorded when due

rw

In applying the susceptible to accrual concept to iitergovcrnmcmal revenues he legal and contractual requirements of the

individual programs are used as guidance

Property and sales tax revenues are recorded under the susceptible to accrual concept Franchise taxes licenses and permits fines

and miscellaneous revenues except earnitgs on itvesuuents are recorded as revenues when received in cash because they arc

generally not measurable until actually received Investment earnitgs are recorded as earned since they are measurable and

available
r

The accrual basis of accounting is utilized by the proprietary fund type

For purposes of the statement of cash flows the Water and Sewer Fund considers all highly liquid investments including restricted

assets with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents

BcAgeran PoocedwesThe City Council follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reIected in the combined

rr fmancial statements L On or before August lust each year the Manager submits to the Ciry Council a proposed budget The

hudget itcludes proposed expenditures and the means of fmancing them 2 Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer

comments 3 Prior wSeptember 30 the budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance The annual appropriations
lapse at year end 4 Revisions that alCCr the total expenditures of any fund must be approved by the City Council 5 Budgets

rw for the General and Debt Service Funds are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles Budgeted
amounts presemed in the general purpose fmancial statements are as originally adopted and amended by the City Council

INVESTMENTS
iYt

The City of Kennedalc invests its investable funds in investments authorized by Texas law in accordance with investment policies

approved by the City Council of theCity of Kennedale Both state law and the Citys investment policies aresubject to change

LEGAL 1NVFSTMENTS Under Texas law the City is authorized to invest in 1obligations of the United States or its agencies and

instrumentalities 2direct obhgations of the State of Texas or its agencies and insttumentalities 3 collateralizEd mongage obligations

directly issued by a federal agency or iutrumentality of the United States the underlying security for which is guaranteed by aii agency or

r
instrumentality of the United States 4 other obligatiots the principal of and interest on which are unconditionally guaranteed or insured

by or backed by the full faith and credit of the State of Texas or the United States or their respective agencies and instnimentalides 5

ohligations of states agencies counties cities and other political subdivisions of arystate rated as to investment yuality by a nationally

recognized investment rating firttt not less than A or its equivalent 6 certificates of deposit that are guaranteed or insured by the Federal

w Deposit Insurance Corporation ur are secured as to principal by obligations described in the preceding clauses or in any other manner and

amount provided by law for City deposits 7 certificates of deposit and share certlficatcs issued by a state or federal credit union

domiciled in the State of Texas that are guaranteed or itsurcd by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or the National Credit Utuon

Share Insurance Fund or are secured as to principal by obligations described in the clauses 1 through 5 or in any other manner and

r 19



amount provided by law for City deposits 8 Tully collateralized repurchasearwmenu that hate a dc8ncd tetnination date are fully
secured by obhgations dcscrihcd in clause L and arc placed through a primary govcmment securities dealer or a financial institution

doing business in the State cl Texas 91 hankers acceptances with the rennuning tcnm of 270 days or less it the shortterm oblieuiions of
the accepting bank or iU parent arc rated at least A1 or PIor the aluivalent by at least one nationally recugnizul credit rating agency
10 commercial paper that is rated at least A I or P I or the equivalent by either a two nationally ruogncd credit rating agencies or

b one nationally rcognized credit rating agency if the paper is Cully secured by mt irrevooablc letter of credit issued by a US or state

bank ll noload money market mutual lands regulated by the Securities and Exchange Commission that have a dollar weighted
average portfolio maturity of 90 days or less and inrludc in their iuvesunent objectives the maintenance of a stable net asset value of I
for each share and l2mtload mutual ands rceisurcd with the Securitk and ExchanEa Commission that have an average weighted
maturity of less them two years invests exclusively in ohligatiuns desaihuf ii the preceding clauses and are continuously rated as w

investment quality by at least one nationally recognised iroestment rating Finn of not Icss than AAA or its equivalent

The City may invest in such obligations directly or through government investment pouts that invest solely in such obhgations provided
that the pools are rated no lower than AAA or AAAm or an equivalent by at Icast one nationally recognized rating service The City is

specifically prohibited fiom investing in 1 obligations whose payment represents the coupon payments on the outstanding principal
balance of the underlying mortgagebacked secudly collateral and pays no principal 2 obligations whose payment represents the
principal stream of cash Ilow tFom the underlying mortgaeohackedsecurity and bears no intetrst 3collateraledmortgage obligations
that have a stated Cmal maturity of greater than U years and tdallateraiedmortgage obligations the interest rate of which u
determined by an index hm adjusts opposite to the changes on a mukctindex

INVSTMFNTPOLICIES Under Tcxa law the City is required w invest its Binds under written investment policies that primarily
emphasize safety of principal and liquidity thu address investment diversilication yield maturity and the yualiry and capability oC
investment management and that includes a list oC authurizal investments iinr City funds maximum allowahle slated maturity of any
individual invesunent and the maxinum average dollarweighted mauuity allowed for pooled land groups All City timds oust he
invested consistent with a kxmally adopted Investment Strategy Statcmcn that spccllically addresses each funds investment Euh
Ltvesttmen Strategy Statement will describe its ohjectives concerning fsuaability ul invesuuent type preservation and safety of

principal 3 liquidity 4 marketabiVty of each investment S diversil3cation of the purtilio and 6yield

Under Texas law Ciy investments must he made with judgment and rare under prevailing circumstances that a person of prudence
discretion and intelligence would cxercuc in the management of the persons own atlairs not for speculation but for investment
considering the prnhable safety of capital and the probable income to lx derived At least quarterly the investment officers of the City
shall submit an investment report detailing l the investment position of the City 2 that all investment officers jointly prepared and

signed the report 3 the beginning market value any addaions and changes to market value and the ending value of each poolal fund

group 4 the book value and muket value of each separately listed asset at the beginning and end of the reporting period 5 the
maturity date of each scparatcly invested asset fi the account or fund or pooled fund group for wluch each individual investmem was

aajuired and 7 the compliance of he investment portfolio as it relates to a adopted irvestmcnt strategy statements and h state law

No person may invest City funds without express written authority from the City Council

AnDrrIONAL PROVLSIONS Under Texas law the City is additionally required to Iannually review its adopted policies and strategies
2 require any investment officers with personal business relationships or relatives with lums seeking to sell securities to the entity to

disclose the relationship aid the a statement with the Texas Ethics Commssion and the City Council 3 require the registered principal
of firms seeking to sell securities to the City to a receive and review the Citys investment policy b acknowledge that reasonable
controls and procedures have been implemented o preclude imprudent invcsUmem activities and c deliver a written statement attesting
to these requirements 4 perform an annual audit oC the management controls on investments and adherence to the Citys investment
policy 5 provide specific investment training for the Creasurer Chief Financial Oliarand investment oflcers 6 restrict reverse

repurchase agreements to nut more than 90 days and restrict the investment of reverse repurchase agreement fimds to no greater than the
term of the reverse repurchase agreement 7 restrict the investment in mutual floods in the aggregate to no more than 80rut the Citys
monthly average Cund balance excluding bond proceeds and reserves and other lands held for debt scrvicc and further restrict the

investment in nonmoney market mutual lands of any portion of bond proceeds reserves and funds held finr debt service and to no more

than 15 of the entuysmonttily average fund balance excluding bond proceeds and reserves and other funds held for debt scrvicc attd
8require local goverrunent investment pooLt to conform to the new disclosure rating net asset value yield calculation and advisory
hoard requirements

A is the policy of the City to invest puhlic funds in a manner which will provide highest investment return without safety or

liquidity risk while meeting the daily cash lktw demands of the City and conforming to all provisions of the Public Funds
Investment Act HB259

Management responsibility for the investment program is herchy delegated to the Director of Finance under the direct supervisio
of the City Manager The Director oC Finance shall serve as the Citys Investment Ofticer The Director of Finance shall establish
written procedures for the operations of the investment program consistent with this investment policy Procedures should include
reference to safekeeping repurchase ngrcemenUS wit transfer agreements banking service contracts and collatcrsdcpository
agreements Such procedures shall include explicitly dctcgation of authority to persons responsible for investment transactions
No person may engage in an investment transaction except as provided in the terms of this policy and the procedures established

by the Director of Finance under the supervision of the City Manager The Director of Finance under the supervision of the City
20
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Manager shall be responsible for transactions undertaken and shall establish a system of controls to regulate the activities of

subordinate officials

r
The City will diversity its hnvestments by security type and institution No more than 507 of the Citys total investment portfolio

will be invested in a single security type with the exception of htvestmem pool securities No more than 507 of the Citys total

investment portfolio will be invested in any one specific investment pool
rr

The Director of Finance shall establish an annual process of independent review by an external auditor This review will provide

internal control by assuring compliance with policies and procedures

The Director of Fuaance is charged with the responsibility of including a market report on investment activity and returns to

Council not less than quarterly

TABLE IZ CURRENT INVESTMENrS

As of September 30 1997 the Citys investable funds were invested in the following categories

of Purchase Market

Description Portfolio Price Value

LOGLC 320c 636596 636596

Lone Star Money Market 310 632267 632267

TexPool 3700 740715 740715

10U0a 2009578 2019578

r

As of such dale ltx9of the Citys investment portfolio will mature within 35 months The market value of the investment portfolio

was approximately Lx7c of its purchase price

ii TexPool is a local government investment pool under the control of the Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts The Comptroller

has engaged Chase Bailcof Texas and its affiliates to provide investment management and fund accounting services for TexPool

First Southwest Asset Management ne an affiliate of First Southwest Company provides customer service and marketing for

the pool TexPool currently maintains a AAAm rating from Standard Poors The poolsuvestment objectives include

achieving a stable net asset value of100 per share Daily investment or redemption of funds is allowed by the participants

W

r
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THE SYSTFM

WATERWORKS SYSTEM ANU SGNEHSYS7lMDESCRIPTION

The City provides water and sewer service primarily Yor the City and has a small number of customers outside the City limits The
City purchases wastewater trcauncnt Itum the City of Furt Wurth The City has one overhead storage tank and two ground
storage talilcs for a total storage capacity of 153 million gallons The City has fve water well sites which provides the source of
water

TABLE 13 1VIONTHLY WATER RAfltiFNFFC1IVN JANUARY 1 1999

Homeowners 65 and Ofder
Inside City Limits Outside Citv Limits andlor Disabled Persons

First2000 gallons 7S0 Minimum 2256 Minimum 6461 Minimum j
Over20xgallons 300 Per 1000 gallons 341 Pcr L000 gallons 261 Pcr1000 gallons

TABLE IQ HISTORICAL WATER CONSUNIITION GALLONS

1 IFCB

Ylal

Ended Daily Total Water

93U Averue Usage Revenue

1094 310 196665500 507493
1995 58245 212544700 546755

1996 592725 316341512 556075

1997 708450 258584209 621940
1998 754854 2i552160D 75x325

TABLE IS MOETHLY SFWFRRATES EFIECTtVE JANUARY L 1999
117

s

Inside City Limits

Residential Homeowners over 65 andor Disabad
Basic Charge 650 plus L50 per 1000 gallons Basic Charge 325 plus SL38 per 1000 gallons

Commercial

deter Sizc Basic Charge

3l4 t 600

112 715

2 850

3 1170
4 1640

1 Outside City rates double City mtg

2 Plus LX perl0N gallons

22
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TARtE lfi WASTEWATER CsaEGAtoNS
Fiscal

Year
rr

Ended Total

930 Revenue

1994 240123

1995 254246

1996 233941
1997 284745

ir 1998 280308

TAIILE I7 WACFKNYRKS AND SEWER SYSTEM CONDENSE DSIATFMENTOF OPERATIONS

itir Fiscal Year Ended September 30

1997 1996 1995 1994 1993

Operating Rcvcnue 1085347 1100786 963731 884418 926061

r

Operating Expense 1040492 g 906483 832106 755744 S 738117

Net Available fur Debt Service 44855 194303 131625 128674 187844

rr

Water Customers 1767 1743 1701 1640 1592

SewerCusunncrs 1595 1563 1529 1466 L422

Purchased computer system for City Hall out of water fund reserves General fund reimburses annually at5510133000

r

ar

r

r

writ

rr

rw
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TAX1L1TTFRS

Otmtoh On the dale of initial delivery of the Certificates McCall Parkhurst Horton LLP Dallas Texas Bond Counscl
will render their opinion that in accordance with statuua regulations published rulings and court decisions existing un the date
thereof 1 interest un the Ccrtifcates will be excludahle from the gross income of the holders thereof and 21 the Certificates
will nut be treated as spcciFcd private activity hoods the interest on which would be included as an alternative minimum tax

preference item under section 57a5of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 the Code Except as stared above Bond
Counsel wfl express na opinion as to any other lederal state ur local lax cunscqucnces of the purchase ownership or disposition
of the Certificates Sce Appendix C Form of Bond Courvscls Opinion

In rendering their opinion Bond Counscl will rely upon a the Citysnu arbitrage certificate and b covenants of the City with
respect to arbitrage the apphcatiun of the proceeds to he received from the issuance and sale of the Certficates and certain other
matters Failure of the City to comply with these representations or atvenants could cause the interest on the Certificates to
become includable in gross income retroactively to the date of issuance oC the Certificates i

The law upon which Bond Counsel have based thew opinion is suhjcct to change by the Congress and to subsequent judicial and
administrative interpretation by the courts and the Department of the Treasury There can he no assurance that such law or the
interpretation thereof will not he changed in a mtmncr which would adversely affect the tax treatment oC the purchase ownership
ur disposition of the Certificates

FEt1ERAL INCOME TAX ACCOUNTING TRFATbIFNTuF URIGIaI ISSUE DISCUONT The initial public olering price to he paid
for one or more maLUrilics of the Certifcatcs the Original Issue Discount Ccriiicates may be less than the principal amount
thereof In such event the dtfterence betweenithe amount payahle at the maturity uC each Original Issue Discount Certificate

d i h i i i l lan t e n t a o t nng pace u the public of such Original Issue Discount Certificau wuttld constitute original issue discount
with respect to such Original Issue Discount Certificate in the hands of any ownerwho has purchased such Original Issue Discount
Certiticate in the initial public ollering of the Certificates Under existing law such initial owner is entitlaf ui exclude from gross
income as dclmed in Section 61 of the Codej an amount of income with respect w such Original Issue Dtscount Certiticate eyual
W that portion of the amount of such onginal issue discount allocahle to the period that such Original Issue Discount Certiticate
continues to be owned by such owner For a discussion of certain collateral federal tax conseyuences see discussion set lurch
below

In the event of the redemption sale or other taxable disposition of such Original Issue Discount Certificate prior to stated
maturity however the amount realized by such uwncr in excess of the basis of such Origital Issue Discoum Certiticate in the
hands of such owneradjusted upward by the portion of the original issue discount allocable to the period for which such Original e
Issue Discount Certillcate was held by such initial uwncr is includabla in gross income

Under existing law the original issue discount un each Original Issue Discount Certificate is accrued daIly to the slated maturity
thereof in amounts calculated as described below for each sixmonth period ending on the date before the semiannual anniversary
dates of the date of the Certificates and ratably within each such sixmonth period and the accrued amount is added to an initial
owners basis for such Original Issue Discount Cerhlicatc for purposes of determining the amount of gain or loss recognized by
such owner upon the redemption sale or other disposition thereof The amount to he added to basis fur each accrual period is
equal to a the sum of the issue price and the amount of original issue discount accrued in prior periods multiplied by the yield to

stated maturity determined on the basis of compounding at the close of each accrual period and properly adjusted for the length of
the accrual period less b he amounts payable as current interest during such accrual period on such Certdicule

The federal income tax consequences of the purchase ownershtp rcdctnption sale or other disposition of Origital Issue Discount
Certificates which are not purchased in the ititial olletitg at the initial ollcring price may he determined according to rules which n

differ liom hose described above All owners of Original Issue Discount Certificates should consult their own tax advisors with
respect to the dctcrmination for federal state and local income tax purposes of the trcatmcnt of interest accrued upon redemption
sale or other disposition of such Original issue Discount Certicates and with respect to the federal state local and Ibreign tax

consequences oC the purchase ownership redemption sale or other disposition of such Orilinul Issue Discount Certificates

COLLATERAL FEDERAI INCOME Tax ConsFQUENCHS The following discussion is a summary of certain collateral federal
income tax consequences resulting from the purchase ownership or disposition of dte Certificates This discussion is based On

existing statutes regulations puhlished rulings and court decisions all ul which are suhjcct to change or modification
retroactvely

fhe following discussion is applicable to investors other than those who are subject to spuial provisions of the Code such as

financial institutions property and casualty insurance companies life insurance companies individual recipients oC Social Security
or Railroad Retirement bcnetrts individuals allowed earned income credit ownersolaninterest in a FASIT certain S corporations
with Subchapter C earnings and profits and taxpayers who may he deemed to have incurred fir continued indebtedness to purchase
taxexempt obligations

LNVESTORS INCLUDING THOSE WHO ARE SUBJECT f0 SPECIAL PROVISIONS OF THE CODE SHOULD
CONSULT THEIR OWN TAX ADVISORS AS TO THE TAX TREATMENT WHICH MAY Bl ANTICIPATED TO

24



RESULT FROM THE PURCHASE OWNERSHIP AND DISPOSITION OF TAXEXEMPT OBLGATIONS BEFORE

DETERMINING WI ETHER TO PURCHASE TlIE CERTIFICATES

r

Prospective purchasers should he aware that because the 6rsl interest payment will be made more than one year after the issue date

of the Bonds the first paymem may be treated as original issue discount While such treatment of the payment will not adversely

affect the excludability of the uuerest portion of the payment froth a holders gross income special tax accounting treatment may

apply This tax accounting treatment would cause a portion of the interest payment to be recognized in the taxable year in which

the Bonds are purchased rather than the taxable year in which the payment is received by he holder This treatment may

accelerate any alternative minunum tax consequences for corporations the recognition oC any portion of the payment which is

treated as market discount and any other cullateca federal income tax conseyuences for certain hohlcrs Prospective purchasers

r should consult their tax advisors for advice regarding such consequences

Interest on the Certificates will be includable as an adjustment for adjusted current earnings to calculate the alternative minimum

tax imposed on corporations by section 55 of the Code Section 55 of the Code imposes a tax equal to 20 percent for

rrr corporations or 26 perceut for non corporate taxpayers 28 percent for taxable excess exceeding 175000 of the taxpayers
alternative minimum taxable income if the amount of such alternative minimum tax is greater than the taxpayersregular income

tax for the taxable year

Interest on the Certificates may be subject to the branch profits tax unposed by section 884 of the Codc on the effectively

connected earnings and prutlts of a foreign corporation doing business in the United States

Under section 6012 of the Code holders of taxexempt obligations such as the Certificates may be requued to disclose interest

rr
received or accrued during cash taxable year on their returns of federal utcome taxation

Section 1276 of the Codc provides for ordinary income tax treatment of gain recognized upon the disposition of ataxexempt

wry obligation such as the Certificates if such obligation was acquucd at a market discount and if the fixed maturity of such

obligation is equal to or exceeds one year from the date of issue Such treatment applies to market discount bonds to the extent

such gain does not exceed the accrued market discount of such bonds although for this purpose a do minimis amount of market

discount is ignored A market discount bond is one which is acquired by the holder at a purchase price which is less than the

rr stated redemption price or in the case of a Iwnd issued at an original issue discount the revised issue priceiethe issue price

plus accrued original issue discount The accrued market discount is the amount which bears the same ratio to the market

discount as the number of days during which the holder holds the obligation bears to the number of days between the acquisition

date and the fatal maturity date

rr

STATE LOCAL ANU FOREIGN TAXES Investors should consult theu own tax advisors concerning the tax implications of the

purchase ownership or disposition of the Certificates under applicable state or local laws Foreign investors should also consult

theu own tax advisors regarding the tax consequences uniyue to investors who are not United States persons

QUALIFIF6TAXEXEMITOBLIGATIONS FOR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS Sectlon 2658Of the Code prOVldes In pertlnen

part that interest paid or incurred by a taxpayer including a financial institution on indebtedness incurred or continued to

purchase or carrytaxexempt obligations is not deductible by such taxpayer m determining taxable income Section 2656of the

rtt Code provides an exception to the disallowance of such deduction for any interest expense paid or incurred on indebtedness of a

taxpayer which is a Imancial institution allocable to taxexempt obligations other than specified private activity bonds which

arc designated by a qualified small issuer as qualified taxexempt obligations A qualified small issuer is any governmental

issuer together with any subordinate issuers who issues no more than1000Q000 of taxexempt obligations during the calendar

year Section 26565of the Code dcfmcs the term financial institution as referring to any corporation described in section

S85a2of the Codc or any person accepting deposits from the public in the ordinary course of such persods trade or business

which is suhject to federal or state supervision as a financial institution

tri

The City expects to designate the Certificates as qualified taxexempt ohligations within the meaning of section 2656of the

Code In furtherance of that designation the Ciry will covenant to take such action which would assure or to refrain from such

action which would adversely affect the treatment of the Certificates as qualified taxexempt obligations Potential purchasers

rrr should he aware that if the issue price to the public or nt the case of discount bands the amount payable al maturity exceeds

10000000 then such obligations might fail to satisfy the100000NI limitation and the obligations would not he qualified tax

exempt ohligations

tr

vtr
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OTHER INFORRIATION

RATINGS

The presently outstanding tax supported debt of the City is ratui Baal by Moodys An application for a contract rating on this
issue has bcen made to Moodys An explunatio of the signilicancc of such rating may he obtained Crom the company Garnishing
the rating The rating reflects only the respective view of such organization and the City makes no representation as to the
appropriateness of the rating Thcrc is no assurance that sorb ratine will continue liar any given period of time or that it will not he
revised downward or withdrawn entirely by such rating company if in the judgment of the company circumstances so wanant

Any such downward revision or withdrawal of suchrUin may have an adverse effect on the market price of the Certilicates

LIfI1AIIIIN

It is the opinion of the City Attorney and City Staff that there is no pending litigation against the City that would have a material
adverse financial inpact upon the City or its operations

REGISfIL4f10NAND QUALIFICATION OFCIKCIFICATPS FOR SALE

f

The sale oG the Certificates has not bcen registered under the Fedora Securities Acl of 1y33 as amended in reliance upon the

exemptia provided thereunder by Section 3a2and the Certilicates have not bcen qualdied under the Securities Act uC Texas
in reliance upon various exemptions contained therein nor have the Certilicates been qualified under the securities acts of any
jurisdiction The City assurnes no responsibility for qualification of the Certificates under die securities laws of unyjurisdiction in
which he Certificates may he sold assigned pledged hypothecated or otherwise transferred This disclaimer of responsibility lbr i
qualification for salt or other disposition of the Ccrtiticatcs shall not hc construed as an interpretation of any kind with regard to

the availability of any exemption from securities regisuution provisions

LEGAL INVESTMENTS ANrELIGIRILIPY rUFCIl K4 PLRLIC ELNDS IN TI11A5

Section 9 of the Bond Procedures Act provides that the Certilicates shall constitute negotiable instruments and arc investment
securities governed by Chapter 8 Texas UnilirmCommercial Code notwithstanditg any provisions of law or court decision to

the contrary and are legal and authorized iivestments for banks savings banks trust companies building and loan associations
savings and loan associations insurance companies fiduciaries and trustees and for the siilcing fund of cities towns villages
school districts and other political subdivisions or public agencies of the State of Texas lhe Certificates are eligible to secure

deposits of any public funds of the state its agencies and political subdivisions and are legal security for those deposits to the
extent of their market value For political subdivisions in Texas which have adopted investment policies and guidelines in
accordance with the Public Funds Investment ActVTCAGovernment Code Chapter 2216 the Certificates may hove to he
assigned a rating of A nr its equivalent as to investment quality by a national rating agency before such obligations are eligible
investments for sinking funds and other public funds No review by the City has been made of the 4tws in other states to determine
whether the Certificates arc legal investments floc various institutions in those states

LEGAL OPINIONS ANDNOLITIGATION CFRTIFICATE

The City will tarnish a complete transcript of proceedings had incident to the authorization and issuance oT the Certificates
including the unqualified approving legal opinion oC the Attorney General of Tcxus approving the Initial Certificate and to the
effect that the Certificates are valid and legally binding obligations uG the City and based upon examination of such transcript of
proceedungs the approving Icgal opinion of Bond Counsel to like effect and to the effect that the interest on thc Certificates will
be excludable from gross income for lederal income tax purposes under Section l03aof the Cnde subject o the matters

described under Ihx Matters herein iuluding the alternative minimum tax on corporations The customary clusung papers
indudin a certificate to the ctYect that no htigatiun of any nawre has been filed or is then pending w restrain the issuance and
delivery of the Certifieates or which would affect the provision made titr their payment or security or in any manner questioning
the validity of said Certilicates will also be furnished Brand Counsel was nut requested to participate and did nut take part in the
preparation of the Notice of Sate and Bidding Instructions the Official Bid Form and the Official Statement and such firm has not

assumed any responsibility with respect thereto ur undertaken independently to verify any of the information comained therein
except shat in its capacny as Bond Counsel such firm has reviewed the information describing the Certificates in the Official
Statement to verify that such description conforms u the provisions of the Ordinance The legal tee to be paid Bond Counsel for
services rendered in conocction with the issuance of the Certilicates iscontingent on the sale and delivery of the Certificates

i
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ACIHFNTICITYOh FINANCLAI DATA ANU OTH1RINFOKMATIOIV

The financial data and other information contained hereof have been obtaured from City records audited fmancial statements and

r
other sources which arc believed to he reliable There is no guarantee that any of the assumptions or estimates contained herein

will be realized All ul the summaries of the statutes documents and resolutions contained in this Official Statement are made

subject to all of the provisions of such statutes documents and resolutions These summazies do not purport to he complete

r
statements of such provisions and reference is made to such documents for further information Reference is made to original
documents in all respects

CONTINCIINC DISCLOSURE ON INIORMATHN

fill

The offering of the Certificates qualifies tier the Rulc 15c212d2exemption from Rulc 15c21265regarding the Citys

continuing disclosure obligations because the City has not issued more than 10000000 in aggregate amount of outstanding
municipal securities and no person is committed by contract or other arrangement with respect to payment of the Certificates

flr Pursuant to the exemption the City in the Ordinance has made the fullowutg agreement for the benefit of the holders and beneficial

owners of the Certificates The City is required to observe the agreement for so long as it remains obligated to advance funds to

pay the Certificates Under the agreement the City will be obligated to provide certain updated fmancial utformation and

operating data annually and timely notice oC specified material events to certain information vendors This information will be

available to securities brokers and others who subscribe to receive the information from the vendors

ANNUAL RF1ORTSThe City will provide certain fmancial information and operating data which is customarily prepared by the

City and is publicly available to any person upon request made to the City in writing provided that the City reserves the fight at

any time to commence makurg filings of such information wish the Texas State Information Depository the SID if any and if

none to each NRMSIR as dclmed below hI lieu of providing such information to persons upon request The information to be

updated includes all quantitative financial information and operating data with respect to the City of the general type included in

this Official Statement under Tables numbered I through 6 and 8 through 17 and in Appendix B The Cily will update and provide
rrr

this information within 6 months after the end of each fiscal year ending innr after 1998

The City may provide updated information in full text or may incorporate by reference certain other publicly available documents

as permitted by SEC Rule 15c212 The updated information will include audited fmancial statements if the City commissions an

audit and it is completed by the required time If audited financial statements are not available by the required time the City will

provide unaudited fmancial statements by the required time and audited financial statements when and if such audited fmancial

statement become available Any such fmancial statements will be prepared in accordance with the accounting principles described

fry in Appendix B or such other accounting principles as the City may be required to employ from thne to time pursuant to state law

or regulation

The Cityscurrent fiscal year end is September 30 Accordingly it must provide updated information by March 30 in each year

fKll unless the City changes its fiscal year If the City changes its fiscal year it will notify each nationally recognized municipal

securities information repository NRMSIR and the SID of the change

The Municipal Advisory Council of Texas has been designated by the State of Texas and approved by the SEC staff as a qualified

SID The address of the Municipal Advisory CouncIl is Glxl West 8th Street P O Box 2177 Austin Texas 787682177 and its

telephone number is 512147Cr6947

MAreRIAL EVENT NOTICCS The City will also provide timely notices of certain events o certain information vendors The

rw
City will provide notice of any oC the following events with respect to the Certificates if such event is material to a decision to

purchase or sell Certificates Lprincipal and interest payment delinquencies 2nonpayment related defaults 3 unscheduled

draws on debt service reserves reflecting fmancial difficulties 4 unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflectmg financial

difficulties 51 substitution of credit or liquidity providers or their failure to perform 6 adverse lax opinions or events affecting

the taxexempt scows of the Certificates 7 modifications to rights of holders of the Certificates 8 Certificate calls 9

dcfcasances l0 release substitution or sale of property securing repayment of the Certificates and l 1 rating changes Neither

the Certifcatcs nor the Ordinance make any provision for debt service reserves or hquidity agreements In addition the City will

yw provide timely notice of any failure by the City al provide informatiou data or financial statements in accordance with its

aerccment described above under Annual Reports The City will provide cuch notice described in this paragraph to the SID and

to either each NRMSIR or the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board MSRB

AVAILABILrrY ot INFORbIATION FKOM NRMSIRs ANn SID The City has agreed to provide the foregouig information only to

NRMSIRs and the SID The information will be available to holders of Certificates only if the holders comply with the procedures

and pay the charges established by such information vendors or obtain the information through securities brokers who do so

Information agreed to be provided by the City on request may be obtained by contacting the City at PO Bux 268 Kenncdalc

Texas 76060
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LrntiTnrtoNS AND AmtENDNtENtsThe City has agreed to update inlormation and to provide notices oC material events only us

descrihed above The City has not agreed to provide other inlbnnalion that may be relevant ur material to a complete presentation
of itc Imancia resuhs of operations condition or prospects nr agreed to update any inlormation that is provided except as

described above The City makes no representation ur warranty cunceming such inlormation or concerning its usclulness UI a

derision to uvest in or sell Certifcatcs at any future daft The City dischaims any contractual or tort liability Cordvnages resulting
in whole nr in part From any hreach of its amtuming discloswr agreement or from any statement made pursuant to its aerecmcnt
although holders of Certificates may seek a writ of mandamus to compel the City to comply with its agreement

The City may amend its Continuing disclosure agreement from time to time w adapt to changed circumstances that arise fiom a

change in legal requirements a change in law ur a change in the idcmity nature status or type of operations of the City if i the

agreement as amended would have permitted an underwriter to purchase or sell Certiticates in the offerutg described herein in

compliance with the Rule taking into account any amendments ur inlcrprctations of the Rule to he date of such amendment as

well as such changed circumstances and ii either a the holders of a majority in aggregate principal atrxuntof the outslandutg
Certificates consent to the amendment or bany person unaffiliated with the City such as nationally recognized bond counsel
determines that the amendment will not materially impair the interests of the holders and beneficial owners of the Certificates The

City may also amend or repeal the provisions of this continuine disclosure agreement if the SEC amends or repeals the apphcable
provisions of the SEC Rule L5c212or a courtof final jurisdiction enters judgment that such provisions of the SEC Rule L5c2L2
are invalid but Duly if and o the extent hat the provisions of this sentence would not prevent an underwriter from lawfully
purchasirg or selling Certificates in the primary offering of the Certifcates If the City so amends the agreement it has agreed to

include with the next financial inlormation and operating data provided in accordance with its agreement described above under
AnnualReports an explanation in narrative form of the reasons for the amendment and of the impact of any change in the type
of financial information and operating data so provided

COMPLLANCE WTTH PRIOR UNDERTAKING

The City has not previously mode a continuing disclusurc agreement in accordance with SEC Rule L5c212

Yeas21H DfscEOSUeE

The year 2000 presents potential protdems Cor computerized data files and computer programs When developed many computer
applications were not expected to be in operation at the end of the century however many of these applications continue to be
used by governments and businesses

The City recognizes the year 2000 problem and has taken certain steps to resolve these issues including i the identification and
replacement of nonyear 2000 compliant hardware ii with respect to software purchased since 1997 purchasing year 2010

compliant software and iii the director of data processing is in the process of reviewing and resolving issues that may arise
related to the Citys software It is anticipated that all systems relating to the City will he year 2000 compliant by the turn of the

century so it is not expected that year 2Xxl issues will pose significant problems for he City IVo assurance can be given
however that problems or delays will not occur in the ongoing modification and replacement efforts In the event any such

problems were to occur there could be delays beyond such projected target dates

1he City Yhrther recognizes that the year 2000 problem may affect certain other third parties with whom the City has contracted
andJor upon which it relies to provide certain services utcluding but nut limited to the Tarrant Appraisal District the Paying
AgentRegistrar and Depository Trust Company The City cannot guarantee that computer systems of such third parties upon
which the City relies will be timely modilicd or converted to address the year 2UIN pruhlem Moreover the City cannot give any
assurances that it will he afire to identify all potential year 20K problems in computer systems of third parties upon which the City
relies or that the computer systems of such entities will he timely modified urconverted to address the year 2tNN pmhlcm To the

extent that the year 2000 problem is not adequately addressed by such third parties there could be interruptions in the operations
of the City See TLc Bundy xIkEntryOnly System for a discussion of the Year 2000 compliance efforts of The Depository
Trust Company

FINANCIAL ADVISOR

First Southwest Company is employed as Financial Advisor to the City in connection with the issuance of the Certificates The
Financial Advisors fee for services renderui with respect to the sale of the Certificates is contingent upon the issuance and

delivery of the Certiticates First Southwest Company may submit a bid for the Certificates either indcpcndently or as a member
oC a syndicate organized to submit a bid for the Ccrtiticatcs First Southwest Company in its capacity as Financial Advisor has
relied on the opinion of Bond Counsel and has not verified and dues not assume any responsibility for the information covenants

and representations contained in any of the legal documents with respect to the federal income tax status of the Certiticates or the
possible impact of any present pending or liiture actions taken by any legislative or judicial bodies n the normal course of
business the Financial Advisor may fmrn time to time sell investment sccuritics to the City for the investment oC bond proceeds or

other funds of the City upon the request of he City
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bRTIFICAPIONOF THE QFFICLILSrA1hMFNT

At the tune oC payment for and delivery of the Ccnilicatcs the City will Cornish a certificate executed by proper officers active in

their official capacity to the effect that to the best of thch knowledge and belief a the descriptions and statements of or

pertaululg to the City contained in its Official Statement and any addenda supplement or amendment thereto on the date of such

O1Ccia1 Statement on the date of sale of said Certificates and the acceptance of the best hid therefor and on the date of the

delivery were and arc true and correct u all material respects b insofar as the City and its affairs including its fmancial affahs

arc concerned such Official Statement did not and does not contain an untrue statement of a material fact or mnit to state a

material fact reyuircd to be stated therein or necessary w make the statements therein in the light of the circumstances under

which they were made not misleading c insofar as the descriptions and statements including fmancial data of or pertaining un

r
entities other than the City and their activities contained in such Official Statement are concerned such statements and data have

been obtained from sources which the City believes to be reliable and the City has no reason to believe that they are untrue in any

material respect and d there has been no material adverse change un the financial condition of the City since the date of the last

audited fmancial statements of the City

The Ordinance authorizing the issuance of the Certificates will also approve the form and content of this Official Statement and

any addenda supplement or amendment thereto and authorize its further use in the reoffering of the Certificates by the Purchaser

ATTEST
wr

City Secretary
City of Kennedale Texas
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Mayor

City of Kennedale Texas
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THP CITY The City ul Kennedale is situated at dtc apex ifthe southeast border of Furl Worth and he southwest border of

Arlington in southern Tarrant County The CirYs location is the hub of Interstate Highway 20 Loop 820 and US Highway 2137
rrr which combine u provide the most vigorous umvsporuuion access in the Meuoples Tens of thousands ul moutriststravel

through this transportation hub daily Business Highway 287 Mansfield highway bisects the City of Kcnncdalc from north to

south providing easy accessihility to and from all areas of the City

Twentylive miles from DallasFortWorth International Airport ten miles from the downtown areas of the cities of Fort Worth

and Arlington thirty miles from downtown Dallas and within fifteen miles of five major recreational lakes the City of Kcnncdalc

comhines the henefits of heing part of one of the ugest metropolitan areas ul the nation with all tfthe advantages of a small

community almosphcrc
r

The City of Kennedale has a popuLrtion of approximately 5350 with ahout 50 of its land area developed Much of hc

remainint land htu bceu identified and urned for commercial and htdustrial use

w City leaders have directed their attention to planning for the future by placing priorities in the areas of economic development

emergency services land use water and sewer service and recreationlopen space

Quality home construction continues at a high pace in Kcnncdalc in several residential developments The City of Kennedale

rr exhihits pride uI providing the type of industrial atmmereial and residential environment that will continue to make Kennedale the

location of preference in the southern Metroplcx

EnucxrxrvMost of Kennedale is located within the Kennedale Independent School District however a portion of the Citys
rw northwest land wren lies within the Fort Worth Independent School District Both school districts provide excellent educational

opportunities for Kennedales youth

With a total enrollment of over 2J00 students Kennedale htdependent School District host one elementary one noddle school

ti and one high school In addition to standard curriculum Kennedale Independent School District provides educational

oppurumiies for gilled and spatial needs students as well as vocational and technical skills training

The City is within commuting distance of nine mtivcrities and more than 25 colleges junior and community colleges and trade

trr schools

The major universities in the DallasFortWorth area utcludc Texas Christian University and Texas Wesleyan University in Fort

Worth Southern McthodLst University in Dallas the University of North Tcxas and Texas Womans university in Denton the

rr University of Dallas in Irving and the University of Texas at Arlington in Arlington These universities offer a variety of

undergraduate and graduate degrees in the arts sciences and business

The Tarrant Cotmty Junior College system offers a variety of academic technical and vocational courses toward a two year degree

srr in arts or applied sciences at three carnpuses TCJC South Campus is located within three miles oC Kennedale

MFutentFclttTte5 nrvn 5Exvtct The hospital needs of Kennedale are served by over 2U hospitals located throughout
Tarram County Night major hospitals located within fifteen milts of Kennedale provide n wide range of quality medical and

surgical care covering obstetrics cardiac care cancer neurology orthopedics gynecology kidney treatment chemical

dependency pediatrics physical therapy respiratory treatment psychiatric major trauma general emergency and much more

the City of Kennedale Fire Department provides superior emergency medical assistance through the operatidn of a fully equipped
advanced lilt support ambulance system Trained paramedics and EMTs respond to emergencies within four minutes of a call for

help The Kennedale ambulances transports to most of the major hospitals in Fort Worth and Arlington LSU rating of 4

Hehcopter amhnlanec service is provided to Kennedale from Care Flight hascd at Harris Methodist Hospital Fort Worth A

helicopter will respond to an emergency call in less than en minutes to transport the seriously injured

Emergency Ill telephone service is avadablc in Kennedale and Chroughon Tarram County far police fire and medical

emergency help

7 5Pttts arvuRRCRFATIOM1AL FaCltirIFS There are approximately acres of developed parkland in the Kennedale City Park

which includes facilities far family or company picnics fishing and halt fields for all ages

w
PUBIJC LrBitnt3Y Opened u 1989 Friends of the Library Kennedale worked diligently to open a library in Kenacdalc

Through their hard work and dedication ofvolunteers the Kennedale Library hecame State Accredited as of September 1 ll9d

Rtsnttrvrtnr Houstrvr ANtr CONIMONITY CONVENIEVLPSKennedale is about 5G developed not including individual vacant

lots About 25 square miles remain to he developed Much of that laud is to the northeast of Highway 287

rr A1



EvtPLOYb1ENfThe labor markol to Currant County continues to he suon Unemploymeuligmcs tUC asti4kiws

Average Average Average Avcrae

August Annual Annual Annua Anmial

Area 1998 f997 f996 1995 X993
Tarrant Gwnly

Civilian Lahor Force 763873 736552 726348 714 la 704191

Employed 78193 709798 69801 67941L 66138

IJncmployed 5680 2G7S3 38337 34890 39053
9 of Unemployment 33L 36r 397 497 55

Ciy oC Kenncdalc

Civilian Labor Force 2583 2489 2451 2400 2360
Employed 2532 2435 2394 2330 282

Unemployed 51 54 57 70 78
7 of Unempluymcnl03I 3I 297 33Y

PEILRONAI INCOME ANU I3UYIN PONH1

1997 1997
Touxl ECfcclivc Median

Entity Buyine Income Household
Tarrant County 3474827Hl1 39722

HousEtto n EARNINGS

TarrantQiuntv
2URN 1x339x1 2189r

SQxNland over 3759

Source Sales and Mukefmg Managemem Survey uCBuying Power August 1 998 n
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APPENDIX 13

EXCERPTSFROM TEIP

CITY OF KENNEDALF TPXAS

ANNUAL FINANCIAI REPORT

Fur the Year Ended Septembcr 30 1997

The information conained in this Appendix consists of excerpts Gom the City of Kennedale

TcxuAnnual Financial Report for the Year Ended September 30 1997 and is not intended to

be a complete statement of the Citystinarxial condition Reference is made to the complctc

Repurt for further information
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STOVALL GRANDEY WHATLEYLLP
CERTIFIED PUBLIC 4000UNTANTS

1300 South Umverstty Drtve

Suite 308

Fort 4brth Texas 761075735

r
8173381115

Metro 8174297422
Fax 8173381163

sgwtilsgwcpaswm

rr

vrp

INDEPENDENT AUDITORSREPORT

Honorable Mayor City Council and City Administrator

City ofKennedale

Kennedale Texas

Members of

Amencan Insntwe nt

Certified Pubttc Accoumanis

Division ofCPA Firms

SEC and Pnvate Compame
Practice Secuons

v

We have audited the accompanying general purpose financial statements of the City of Kennedale Texas

as ofand for the year ended September 30 1997 as listed in the table of contents These general purpose

w financial statements are the responsibility ofthe Citysmanagement Our responsibility is to express an

opinion on these general purpose financial statements based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards Those standards
p require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the general

purpose financial statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes examining on a test

basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the general purpose financial statements An

audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by

management as well as evaluating the overall general purpose financial statement presentation We

believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for ouropinion

In ouropinion the general purpose financial statements zeferred to in the first paragraph present fairly in

all material respects the financial position of the City of Kennedale Texas as of September 30 1997 and

the results of its operations and cash flows of its proprietary fund types for the year then ended in

conformity with generally accepted accounting principles

STOVALL GRANDEY ATLEY

Fori Worih Tcsas

January 27 1998
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CITY OF ICENNEDALE TEXASCOMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN RETAINED 1
EARNINGS

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES ALLENTERPRISE FUND TYPES
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 301997

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services

OPERATING EXPENSES
Personal services

ConVactual srnices

Supplies
Materials
General services

Depreciation
Bad debu

Intergovernmental charges

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES
OPERATING INCOlt1E

NONOPERATINC REVENUES EXPENSES
Interest revenue

Interest expense and fiscal charges

TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUE EXPENSE

NET INCObtE

RETAINED EARNINGS October 1

RETATNED EARNINGS September 30

iVATER AND A1116ULANCE
SERER FUND FUIVp

5 085347 S 185 682

210342 78663
40478
29468 12778
18226 2720

262529 25829
175514 16175
2990 25444

300943

TOTALS
tERtORANDCrt0111
SEPTEiDER30

997
1996

S 1271029 S L2801

289005
40478
42246
20946
288358
191689
28434

300 945

1040492 161609 1202101
44 855 Zq 68928

42899 730 4362924646 573 25 219

18253 157 1 R 40

63108 24230 87338

917707 22 769

980 R t 5 46 oao

940476

102Rtes

iR

32965
191
32772
19005

27433

22843381
254850

1 192

88050

3045
1 45

29 00

11705
823 42

srk

pr

at

See accompanping Notes and
auditors report
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CTTY OF KENNEDALE TEXAS

COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE ALL ENTERPRISE FUND TYPES

YEAR ENDED SEPTEA4BER 30 1997

INCREASE DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

itr

CASH FLOVSFROM OPERATING

11r ACTMTIES

Cash received from customers

Cash paid to suppliers
Cash paid to employees

Net cash provided by
r operating activities

CASH FLOVSFROM NONCAPTTAL

FINANCINGACIMTES

Water sewer deposits
Net cash provided by
noncapital financing
activities

CASH FLORSFROM CAPITAL AND

RELATED FINANCING ACTMTIES
Advance to General Fund

Capital expenditures
Interest and fiscal charges

itt paid
Payment of COS

Principal payments on loan

Proceeds of Cos

Capital contributionfrom C1P

Advance from CIP

Net cash used for capital
and related financing
activities

Ya

CASII FLOSFROM INVESTING

ACTIVITIES

Interest on investmenu

Net cash provided by
investing activities

NET INCREASE DECREASE IN CASII

AND CASH EQU VALENTS

YYllt CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASII AND CASII EQUIVALENTS
AT END OFYEAR

tar

M

w

See accompanying Notes and

w auditorsreport

aw

TOTALS

AtEMORANDUtONII

YATERAND AMBULANCE SEPTEDIBER30

SEERFUND FUND 1997 1996

S 1086975 5 188969 5 1245944 3 1269087
633139 41311 674650 600076
210342 78663 289005 329691

243494 3R795 282289 339320

2245

2245

57174
239028

24646
15500

2245 2SSa

2245 2834

57174
535 239563

24646
15500

5958 5958

336348 6493 342841

42313 730 43043

42313 730 43043

4829G 37032 15264

954656 9315 963971

5 906360 S 4234 9487D7707

9

384098

11780

6500
28200
56D8
23228

91442

29064

29064

279796

684175

tr



CITY OF KENNEDALE TEXAS
COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS CONTINUED

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH PROVIIEDBY
OPERATING ACTMTIES

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE ALLENTERPRISE FUND TYPES 1
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30 1997

TOTALS

lA1E7tORANDUi10NL11
VATERAND AiBULANCE SEPTEIISDER 0

SEVER FUND FUND 1997 1996

OPERATING INCOptE

Adjuslmrnu to reconcile

operating income to net

cash provided by operating
activities

Depreciation and amortization

Provision for uncollectible
accounu

Change in assets and liabilities
Decease in acrnunu receivable
Increase m accounu receivable
Decrease in due liom othtt 1Lnds
Increase N due from other funds

Increase in accounts payable
Decease in accounu payable
Incease in accrued liabilities
Decrease in accrued liabilities

NET CASEI PROVIDED HY
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

S 4485s S 24073 5 68928

176692 1674 192866

4618 46 8
1269 1269

20775 338 21113
43050 4267 47317

4946 41121 9 0581

NONCASR INVESTING CAPITAL AND FINANCING ACTIVIES

Developers paid forand contributed waterlines and storm sewers inthe amount of

CDBG lines wtte completed in the amount of

S 482513

135325

a asoso

228460

656

11741
16

395
50112
328
689

16199

v
S cvin

i

See accompaning Notes and

auditorsreport
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CTTY OF KENNEDALE TEXAS

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
r

SEPTE1ViBER 30 1997

rr NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City ofKennedale was incorporated in 1947 The City operates under aMaporCouncil form of government and

provides the following senrices

Police and fire protection public vorks public library ambulance and general administrative senzces In addition
the City owns and operates awater and sewer system
The combined general purpose Financial statements of the City have been prepared in conformity ith generally

accepted accounting principles GAAP as applied to government units

The reporting entity for financial reporting purposes include all activities over which the City Council exercises

oversight responsibility The activities of the Kennedale Economic Development Corporation a nonprofit
corporation established during the current year are blended and reported in the General Fund because the City
Council has oversight responsibility Therefore the following are not included because they are autonomous entities

Kennedale Independent School District provides educational services

The accounting policies of the City of Kennedale Texas conform to generally accepted accounting principles as

applicable to governmental units The follongis a summary of the more significant policies

A BASIS OF PRESENTATION FUND ACCOUNTING

The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds and account groups each of which is

r considered a separate accounting entity The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of

selfbalancing accounts that comprise its assets liabilities fund balanceretained earnings revenues and

expendituresexpenses The various funds are grouped bytpe in the combined general purpose financial

statements The folloingfund types and account groups are used by the City
rr

GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES

rre Governmental Funds are those through which most governmental functions of the City are financed The

acquisition use and balances of the Citys expendable financial resources and the related liabilities except those

accounted for in the proprietary fund type are accounted for through governmental funds The measurement

focus is upon determination of changes in financial position rather than upon net income determination The

following are the Citys governmental fund types

General Fund The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City It is used to account for all

rrr financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund There are two sub

funds of the general fund and they are reported there

Debt SeniceFund The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for and

the payment of general longterm debt principal interest and related costs
r

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE

w Enterprise Funds Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations a that are financed and operated in a

manner similar to private business enterprises where the intent of the governing body is that the costs

expenses including depreciation of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be

financed or recovered primarily through user charges or b where the governing body has decided that periodic
r

determination of revenues earned expenses incurred andor net income is appropriate for capital maintenance

public policy management control accountabilit or other purposes

a

w
11

rr



CITY OF KENNEDALE TEXAS
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER301997

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

ACCOUNT GROUPS

Account groups are used to establish accounting rnntrol and accountabilir for the Cirys general fixNassets and general longterm debt The following are the Citys account groups

General Fixed Assets Account Groun This group of accounts is established to account for all fixed assets of theCiry other than those accounted for in proprietary funds

General LoneTerm Debt Account Groun This group of accounts is established to account for all longtermdebt of the Ciry except that accounted for in proprietary funds

Total Columns On Combined Statements Total columns on the Combined Statements are captionMemorandum Only to indicate that they are presented only to facilitate financial analsis Data in thesecolumns do not present financial position results of operations or changes in financial position in conformiwith generally accepted accounting principles Nor is such data comparable to a consolidation Interfeliminations have not been made in the aggregation of this data

B BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The modified accrual basis of accounting is followed by the governmental funds These revenues arerecognized when susceptible to accrual ie both measurable and available Available means collectible withthe current period or soon enough thereaRer to be used to pay liabilities of the current period Expenditureother than interest on longterm debt are recorded when the liability is incurred if measurable Interest onlongterm debt is recorded when due

In applying the susceptible to accrual concept to intergovernmental revenues the legal and contracturequirements of the individual programs are used as guidance

Property and sales tax revenues are recorded under the susceptible to accrual concept Franchise tax
f

licenses and permits fines and miscellaneous revenues except earnings on investments are recorded asrevenues when received in cash because they are generally not measurable until actually received Investmeraearnings are recorded as earned since they are measurable and available

The accrual basis of accounting is utilized by the proprietary fund type

For purposes of the statement of cash flows the Water and Sewer Fund considers all highly liquid investmenincluding restricted assets with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents

3
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CITY OF KENNEDALE TEXAS
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30 1997

NOTE 7 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continuedrr

C BUDGETARY DATA

1 General Budeet Policies

The City Council follor5 these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the combined
financial statements

r

1 Prior to the beginning of the fiscal year the City Administrator submits to the City Council a
proposed budget The budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them

r

2 Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments

3 Prior to September 30 the budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance Tle annualr

appropriations lapse at year end

4 Revisions iliac alter the total expenditures of any fund must be approved by the City Council
irr

5 Budgets for the General and Deb Service Funds are adopted on a basis consistent with generally
accepted accounting principles Budgeted amounts presented in tle general purpose financial
statements are as originally adopted and amended by the City Council

D ENCUMBRANCES

rw Encumbrance accounting under which purchase orders contracts and other commitments for the
expenditure ofmoneys are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation is employedin the governmental fund types Encumbrances outstanding at year end are reported as reservations of fund
balances because they do notconstitute expenditures or liabilitiess

E INVESTMENTS

rr Investments are stated at cost which approximates market See Note 2

F GENERAL FIXED ASSETS

r
General fixed assets have been acquired for general governmental purposes Assets purchased are

recorded as expenditures in the governmental funds and capitalized at cost in the General Fixed Assets Account
Group Contributed fixed assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the time received

r

Fixed assets consisting of certain improvements outer than buildings and street improvements funded by
General Obligation Bonds including roads bridges curbs and gutters streets and sidewalks drainage systems

w
and lighting systems have not been capitalized prior to 1980 Such assets normally are immovable and of value
onty to the City therefore the purpose of stewardship for capital expenditures is satisfied without recording
these assets

No depreciation has been provided on general fixed assets and no interest has been capitalized

r
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CITY OF KENNEDALE TEXAS
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30 1997

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

G PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Property plant and equipment owned by Enterprise Funds are stated at cost or estimated fair market vale
at the date contributed Depreciation has been provided on a straightline basis over the estimated useful lives
the respective assets as follows

Buildings structures and improvements 20 50 years

Machinery and equipment 4 0 years
No interest has been capitalized

H COMPENSATED ABSENCES

Vacation sick leave and compensatory time are granted to City employees in limited amount
Accumulated vested amounts that are expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources aa
accrued as expenditures and fund liabilities in the General Fund and Enterprise Funds Liabilities accrued as

September 30 1997 by fund are

General Fund 76973
Water and Sewer Fund 13461
Ambulance Fund 1994

92428

I RESERVES

Retained earnings have been reserved for the excess of restricted assets over related liabilities

J UNBILLED CHARGES

Unbilled utility service charges of the Water and Sewer Fund at year end arc estimated and recorded as

receivables netof estimated uncollectibles

K TRANSACTIONS BETWEEN FUNDS

Residual equity transfers between funds are reported as changes to fund balances of governmental fungiand contributed capital of the proprietary funds There were none this year All other transfers between fun
are treated as operating transfers and are included in the results of operations of both governmental and
proprietary funds

fY

j
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CITY OF KENNEDALE TEXAS
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEDIENTS

SEPTEMBER 30 1997

NOTE 2 CASH AND INVESTMENTS

The City maintains a cash pool and an investment pool that is available for use by all funds Each fund types portion
of these pools is displayed on the combined balance sheet as Cash and Investments In addition imestments arc

separately held by several of the Citys funds

rr Deposits
At yearend the carrying amount of the Citys cash on hand and deposits was 312384 including deposits in

transit and the bank balance was 307515 The bank balance was entirely covered by federal depository
insurance or by collateral held by the Citys agent in the Citys name

Investments
The City in general is authorized to invest its public funds in arty obligations or securities described in Section 2

irw or 3 of the Public Funds Investment Act of 1987 as amended and specifically four government pools within
certain limitations

The Citys investments are categorized to give an indication of the level of risk assumed by the entity at yearendr
Category 1 includes imestmcnts that are insured or registered or for which the securities are held by the City or
its agent in the Citys name Category 2 includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which the
securities are held by the brokersordealers trust department or agent in the Citys name Category 3 includes
uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the broker or dealer or by its trust

department or agent but not in the Citys name

CATEGORY CARRYING MARKET
1 2 3 AMOUNT VALUE

Mutual fundslpools
Teapool 576678 576678

r0
Lone Star Imestment Pool 532857 532857
Alliance Government Series 212 212

Local Government Investment Cooperative 610391 610391

rwr

Total Investments 1720138 1720138

Imestments during the fiscal years ended September 30 1996 and 1997 were limited to governmental
pools investing in government securities and to U S Treasury obligations only

rw

r

r

w
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CITY OF KENNEDALE TEXAS
NOTES TO COMBINED FIIVANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30 1997

NOTE 3 PROPERTY TAX

Pro a taxes attach as an enforceable lien on roeP nY p p rty as of January I Taxes are levied each Octobe
on the assessed value for all real property and certain personal property located in the City The assessed value
net of exemptions upon which the fiscal 199697 levy was based was approximately 162090521

S

General property saxes are limited by the Texas Constitution to 150per 100 of assessed valuation T
combined tax rate to finance general govemmental service and debt service for the year ended September 30
1997 was 57807 per 100 of assessed valuation

Property taxes are due by January 31 following the levy date Current tax collections for the year ended
September 30 1997 were9781of the tax levy Property taxes are being collected by Tarrant County for t
City

Property taxes of 937095 were levied for 199697 and are recorded as receivables net of estimated
uncollectibles The net receivables collected and those considered available at September 30 1997ir
property taxes collected within 60 days of year end are recognized as revenues in 1997 Prior year levies w

recorded using these same principles The remaining receivables are reflected as deferred revenue

The appraisal of propertyuthin the City is the responsibility of a countyvidc Appraisal District
required by legislation passed by llte Texas Legislature The Appraisal District is required under such legislati
to assess all property thin the Appraisal District on the basis of 100 of its appraised value and is prohibitedfrom applying any assessment ratios The value oC the property within the Appraisal District must be reviews
every two years however the City may at its own expense requireannual rcvievs of appraised values

NOTE 4 DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTS
r

The amount due for City sales tax revenue for September 1997 amount to3493t

16



t7 A summary of changes in general fixed assets follows

BALANCE BALANCE
OCTOBER l SEPTEMBER 30

996 ADDTTIONS DELETIONS 1997
wr

Land buildings and

improvements
Machinery and

equipment
Streets and other

r

r

w

w

w

w

1581370 63D0 1587670

1716364 178921 71259 1824026

improvements 2739770 280845 3020615

6037504 466066 71259 6432311

A summary ofproprietary fund type property plant and equipment at September 30 1997 follows

WATER AND AMBULANCE
SEWER FUND FUND

Land 66060
Buildings structures and improvements 7098857
Machinery and equipment 368323 159 748

7533240 159748
Less accumulated depreciation 2180160 130 622

5353080 29126
CAPITAL LEASES

Leased property at September 30 1997 under Capital leases is capitalized in general fixed assets

Machinery and equipment in the amount of475726

The following is a schedule by years of future minimum lease payments under Capital leases together with
the present value of the net minimum lease payments as of September 30 1997

Year ending September 30

1998 49056
1999 48034
2DOD 45987
2001 45987
2002 45987
2003 45 987

Total minimum Icase payments 281038
Less Amount representing interest 57695

Present value of net minimum
lease payments 223343

17

CITY OF KENNEDALE TEXAS

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER301997

NOTE 5 FIXED ASSETS
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CTTY OFIENNEDALE TEXAS

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 301997

NOTE 6 R1Sh MANAGEMENT
The City carries its general insurance risks with a public entity risk pool by transferring all risks to t

insurance carrier except for small deductible amounts

NOTE 7 EMPLOYEE PLANS

a Deferred Compensation Plan

The government offers its emploees a deferred compensation plan administered by a trust established

public employers in which the deferred amounts are not held by nor required to be considered assets of the

City and are notsubject to the claims of the Citys general creditors No costs or liabilities are incurred h
the City

b VolunteerFireAmbulance Incentive Program VIP
This program was established March 9 1989 by City Council as an incentive to encourage volunteersjoin andor stay in the program by providing life insurance and savings plan benefits All costs are to
paid by the City and includes furnishing 10000 of term life insurance and 200 per ear in the savings
plan for each volunteer The volunteers may continue the insurance coverage at their own expense in ca
of departure The savings program vests 75 after 10 years up to 100 after 15 years The City reser
the right to discontinue the program at anytime by giving 30 days notice

f3
The contribution by the City to the savings plan for the current year amounted to 5200 The balan

including interest in the cash account at September 30 1997 was23413 Life insurance premiums pa
during the ear amounted to 2106

c Cafeteria Plan IltC Sec 125
Plan benefits consist of a health plan hospitalization and a dental plan for which the City pays the

employee portion of the premiums Dependent coverage is funded by charges to employees Disabilieand accident coverage is paid entirely by employees

d Pension Plan

1 Plan Description

Beginning April 1 1992 all fulltime employees of the City arc covered by the Texas Munici
Retirement System TMRS which is amultipleemployer public employee retirement system It is the

opinion of the TMRS management that the plans in TMRS are substantially defined contribution plact
but they have elected to provide additional voluntary disclosure to help foster a better understanding
some of the nontraditional characteristics of the plan

Benefits depend upon the sum of the employees contributions to Ute plan with interest and the Cif
financed monetary credits with interest At the date the plan began the City granted monetary credij
for service rendered before the plan began of a theoretical amount equal to two times what would have
been contributed by the employee with interest prior to establishment of the plan Monetary credits fre
service since the plan began are a percent 100 150 or 200 of the employees accumulat
contributions In addition the City can grant as often as annually another type of monetary ere t

referred to as an updated service credit which is a theoretical amount which when added to the

employees accumulated contributions and the monetary credits for service since the plan began wou
be the total monetary credits and employee contributions accumulated with interest if the curve

employee contribution rate and City matclting percent had always been in existence and if the

employees salary had ahvays been the average of his salary in the last three years that are one yeR
before the effective date At retirement the benefit is calculated as if the sum of the employe
accumulated contributions and the employerfinanced monetary credits with interest were used

purchase an annuity
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NOTE 7 EMPLOYEE PLANS continued

r Members can retire at ages 60 and above With 10 or more years of senice or ttith 25 ears of senice
regardless of age The plan also provides death and disability benefits A member is vested after 10
years but he must leave his accumulated contributions in the plan If a member thdraws his oun

money he is not entitled to the employerfinanced monetary credits even if he is vested The plan
provisions are adopted by the governing body of the City eithin the options available in the state

statutes governing TMRS and within the actuarial constraints also in the statutes

2 Contributions
The contribution rate for the employees is5 and the City matching percent is currently 100 both as

adopted by the governing body of the Ciry Under the state law governing TMRS the Ciry contribution
rate is annually determined by the actuary This rate consists of the normal cost contribution rate and

w the prior service contribution rate both of which are calculated to be a level percent ofpa7o11 from year
to year The normal cost contribution rate finances the currently accruing monetary credits due to city
matching percent which are the obligation of the City as of an employees retirement date not at the
time the employees contributions are made The normal cost contribution rate is the actuarially
determined percent of payroll necessary to satisfy the obligation of the City to each employee at the time
his retirement becomes effective The prior service contribution rate amortizes the unfunded actuarial
liability over the remainder of the plans25year amortization period When the City periodically

tr adopts updated service credits and increases its annuities in effect the increased unfunded actuarial

liability is to be amortized over a new 25year period Curmntly the unfunded actuarial liability is
being amortized over the 2Syearperiod which began April 1992 The unit credit actuarial cost method
is used for determining the City contribution rate Contributions are made monthly by both the

employees and the City Since the City needs to know its contribution rate in advance to budget for it
there is a oneyear lag between the actuarial valuation that is the basis for the rate and the calendar year
when the rate goes into effect

r

The Cirys total payroll for the ear ended September 30 1997 was1370481 and their contributions
were based on a participating payroll of1348835 Both the City and the employees made the

required contributions amounting to 53653 at a retirement rate of 405for the City and 67442
5 for the employees There were no related party transactions

3 Funding Status and Prowess
Even though the substance of the Citysplan is not to provide a defined benefit in some form some
additional voluntary disclosure is appropriate due to the nontraditional nature of the defined
contribution plan which had an initial unfunded pension benefit obligation due to the monetary credits
granted by the City for service rendered before the plan began and which can have additions to the
unfunded pension benefit obligation through the periodic adoption of increases in benefit credits and
benefits Statement No 5 of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board GASB 5 defines pension
benefit obligation as a standardized disclosure measure of the actuarial present value of pension
benefits adjusted for the effects of projected salary increases estimated to be payable in the future as a

result of employee service to date The measure is intended to help users assess the funding status of

public employee pension plans assess progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits

rt
when due and make comparisons among public employee pension plans

r

v

w
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NOTE 7 EMPLOYEE PLANS continued

The pension benefit obligation shown below is similar in nature to the standardized disclosure meast
required by GASB S for defined benefit plans except that there is no need to project salary increa
since the benefit credits earned for service to date are not dependent upon future salaries The
calculations were made as pari of the annual actuarial valuation as of December 31 1996 Because
the moneypurchase nature of the plan the interest rate assumption currently50per year does r
have as much impact on the results as it does for a defined benefit plan Market value of assets is no
determined for each citys plan but the market value of assets for TMRS as a whole was 1027of book
value as of December 31 1996

Pension benefit obligation
MEMBER CITIES

Amounts in Millions

Annuitanu currently receiving
benefits 5817

Terminated employees 4850
Current employees

Accumulated employee contributions

including allocated invested earnings 15396
Employer financed vested 24134
Employer financed nonvested 3136

Total 53333

Net assets available for benefits
at book value 41486

Unfunded pension benefit obligation 11847

The book value of assets is the amortized cost for bonds and original cast for shortterm securities a

stocks The actuarial assumptions used to compute the actuarially determined City contribution rate arc
the same as those used to compute the pension benefit obligation

4 CiNsContributions

FYE93097 FYE93096

General Fund 43567 36530
Water and Sewer Fund 7213 6081
Ambulance Fund 2873 3944

53653 46555

5Trend Information

Tenyear historical trend information presenting the TMRS progress in accumulating sufficient assets t

pay benefits when due is presented in the TMRS December 31 1996 Comprehensive Annual Financi
Report
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CITY OF KENNEDALE TEXAS

r
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30 1997

rw

NOTE 10 TRANSACTIONS BETWEEN FUNDS

Individual fund interfund receivable and payable balances at September 30 1997tereas follos

IiTERFUND INTERFUND
FUND RECERAIILES PAYAIILES

as General Fund S 11542 5 57153
Water Sewtt Fund 57153 338
Ambulance Fund 338 542

69033 69033
w

The Water Sewer Fund paid the General Fund 146127 as its share of overhead eapense as authorized in the

budget The charges areclassified as intergovernmental charges

r NOTE 11 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

A sewer contract with the Cityof Fort Worth is based on volume and is paid monthly
rar

A garbage disposal contract with a third party commercial contractor is paid monthly with a portion retained as
franchise revenue

r
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Proposed Form of Opinion of Bond Counsel

Ara opinion ira rubstanttally the followingform will be delivered by McCall
Parklzuast HoatonLLP Bund Counsel upon the deliveay of the

rs

Ceatificates assuming rao mateaial changes in facto or law

CITY OF KENNEDALE TEXAS

COMBINATION TAX AND REVENUE CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION

SERIES 1998 DATED NOVEMBER 1 1998

IN THE AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF5150000

AS BOND COUNSEL for the City of Kennedale Texas the issuer the Issuer of the

Certificates ofObligation described above the Certificates we have examined into the legality and

validity of the Certificates which bear interest from the date specified in the text of the Certificates
until maturity or redemption at the rates and payable on the dates as stated in the text of the

Certificates and maturing on Febnaary IS in each of the years 2002 through 2024 all in accordance

with the terms and conditions stated in the text of the Certificates

WE HAVE EXAMINED the applicable and pertinent provisions of the Constitution and laws

of the State of Texas arrd a transcript of certified proceedings of the Issuer and other pertinent instru

ments authorizing and relating to the issuance of the Certificates includuig one of the executed

Certificates Certificate Number T1
w

BASED ON SAID EXAMINATION IT IS OUR OPINION that said Certificates have been

authorized issued and delivered in accordance with law and that except as may be limited by laws

applicable to the Issuer relating to bankruptcy reorganization and other similar matters affecting
creditorsrights generally the Certificates constitute valid and Legally binding obligations of the Issuer
and that ad valorem taxes sufficient to provide for the payment of the interest on and principal of said

w

Certificates have been levied and pledged for such purpose within the limit prescribed by law and

that the Certificates are additionally secured by and payable from alimited pledge of the revenues of

the IssuersWaterworks and Sewer System remaining after payment of all operation and maintenance

expenses thereof and all debt service reserve and other requirements in connection with all of the

Issuers revenue obligations now or hereafter outstanding which are payable from all or part of said

revenues all as provided in the Ordinance of the Issuer authorizing the issuance of the Certificates

IN OUR OPINION except as discussed below the interest on the Certificates is excludable

from the gross income of the owners for federal income tax purposes under the statutes regulations
published rulings and court decisions existing on the date of this opinion We are further of the

opinion that the Certificates are not private activity bonds and that accordingly interest on the

Certificates will not be included as an individual or corporate alternative minimum tax preference item

under section 57a5 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 the Code In expressing the
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aforementioned opinions we have relied on and assume compliance by the suer with certain

representations and covenants regarding the use and investment of the proceeds ofthe Certificates

We call your attention to the fact that failure by the Issuer to comply with such representations and

covenants may cause the interest on the Certificates to become includable in gross income

retroactively to the date of issuance of the Certificates

EXCEPT AS STATEll ABOVE we express no opinion as to any other federal state or local

tax consequences of acquiring carrying owning or disposing of the Certificates

WE CALL YOUR ATTENTION TO THE FACT that the interest ontaxexempt obligations
such as the Certificates is a included in a corporations alternative minimum taxable income for pur

poses of determining the alternative minimum tax imposed on corporations by section 55 ofthe Code
b subject to the branch profits tax imposed on foreign corporations by section 884 of the Code and

c included in the passive investment income of an S corporation and subject to the tax imposed by
section 1375 of the Code

WE HAVE ACTED AS BOND COUNSEL for the lssuer for the sole purpose ofrendering
an opinion with respect to the legality and validity of the Certificates under the Constitution and laws

of the State of Texas and with respect to the exclusion from gross income for federal income tax

purposes of the interest on the Certificates and for no other reason or purpose We have not been

requested to investigate or verify and have not independently investigated or verified any records data

or other material relating to the financial condition or capabilities of the Issuer and have not assumed

any responsibility with respect thereto We have relied solely on certificates executed by officials of

the Issuer as to the current outstanding indebtedness of assessed valuation of taxable property within
and the sufficiency of the pledged revenues of the lssuer

r

w

w

Respectfully
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